
Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 24 July 2020 1

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Telephone:  (01874) 624437
Plas y Ffynnon
Cambrian Way
Brecon
Powys
LD3 7HP

Dear Member

A meeting of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ON FRIDAY, 24TH 
JULY, 2020 AT 10.00 AM when your attendance is requested.

Link for Members:  https://call.lifesizecloud.com/2288154

Yours sincerely

Julian Atkins

Chief Executive

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FILMS AND
WEBCASTS ALL ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE  - 

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/ 

Fire Evacuation Advice

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase,

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3

1 CORRESPONDENCE (Pages 5 - 60)

To receive and consider the attached Schedule of Correspondence and 
any recommendations thereon (below).

 
To note the report from the Auditor General on his findings on 
Sustainable Development Principle Examinations (attached)

 

Public Document Pack

https://call.lifesizecloud.com/2288154
http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/


Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 24 July 2020 2

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest from members relating to items 
on the agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to 
the attendance sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally 
and in writing, specifying the nature of the interest.
 
If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure 
that you inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so 
that this can be recorded in the minutes

 

3 MINUTES (Pages 61 - 66)

To receive the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 31 
January 2020 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them as a correct record

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING SCHEME 

To give the public an opportunity to address the committee in line with 
the notice required under the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme.

 

A: Budget Monitoring

5 DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019/20 (Pages 67 - 128)

6 2019/20 OUTTURN, RESERVES AND PROJECT FINANCES (Pages 
129 - 140)

7 BUDGET MONITORING SUMMARY AND PROJECTS FINANCIAL 
SCORECARD Q1 2020/21 (Pages 141 - 162)

8 INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE Q1 2020/21 (Pages 163 - 178)

9 WALES AUDIT PLAN 2020 (Pages 179 - 196)

10 AUDIT WALES RESILIENCE AUDIT 2020 (Pages 197 - 210)

To note the project brief for the audit currently being carried out by Audit 
Wales.  A verbal update will be given at the meeting.



Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 24 July 2020 3

B: Performance and Risk

11 INTEGRATED ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK Q4 2019/20 (Pages 211 - 
230)

12 RISK REGISTER (Pages 231 - 240)

13 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/COMPLAINTS/COMPLIMENTS 
(Pages 241 - 254)

14 ACTION TRACKING (Pages 255 - 260)

C: Other Business

15 OTHER BUSINESS 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE

1. To receive apologies for absence

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 
as to warrant consideration.

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Julia Gruffydd – 
Julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk or Angharad Hawkes – Angharad.hawkes@beacons-
npa.gov.uk  

mailto:Julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk
mailto:Angharad.hawkes@beacons-npa.gov.uk
mailto:Angharad.hawkes@beacons-npa.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



So, what’s different? 
Findings from the Auditor General’s Sustainable 
Development Principle Examinations

May 2020

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



page 2 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Adrian Crompton
Auditor General for Wales
Audit Wales
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff  
CF11 9LJ

The Auditor General is independent of the Senedd and government. As well as auditing the 
accounts of Welsh public bodies, the Audit General undertakes examinations of the extent 
to which public bodies have applied the sustainable development principle when setting and 
pursuing well-being objectives. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires 
the Auditor General to report such examinations to the Senedd. 

The Auditor General has a wide range of audit and related functions. These include auditing the 
accounts of the Welsh Government and its sponsored and related public bodies, including NHS 
bodies, and reporting to the Senedd on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which 
those organisations have used their resources. The Auditor General also audits and reports 
on local government bodies in Wales. The Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and 
other resources provided by the Wales Audit Office, which is a statutory board established for 
that purpose and to monitor and advise the Auditor General. 

Audit Wales is the umbrella name for the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office, 
which are separate legal entities each with their own legal functions as described above. Audit 
Wales is not a legal entity and itself does not have any functions.

© Auditor General for Wales 2020 

You may re-use this publication (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium. 
If you re-use it, your re-use must be accurate and must not be in a misleading context. The 
material must be acknowledged as Auditor General for Wales copyright and you must give 
the title of this publication. Where we have identified any third-party copyright material you 
will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned before re-use. For further 
information, or if you require any of our publications in an alternative format and/or language, 
please contact us by telephone on 029 2032 0500, or email info@audit.wales. We welcome 
telephone calls in Welsh and English. You may also write to us in either Welsh or English, and 
we will respond in the language you have used. Corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay. 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.

I have prepared this report under section 15 of the  
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.
My examination team was led by Catryn Holzinger  
and directed by Mike Usher.

Page 6



page 3 Well-Being Future Generation report

Contents

Auditor General’s Foreword  4

What you’ll find in this report 6

What we’ve done and why 8

 Our focus for the first reporting period, 2015-2020 10

 Working with the Future Generations Commissioner 12

The implementation challenge: Is it getting easier? 13

What we found 16

 Setting the first well-being objectives: Findings from  
 our 2018 report  16

 Taking steps to meet well-being objectives 20

  Long-term 20

  Prevention 25

  Integration 32

  Collaboration 37

  Involvement 42

So, what’s next? 48

 What’s next for public bodies? 48

 What’s next for the Well-being of Future Generations Act? 50

 What’s next for our audit approach? 51

Appendix
1 Examination methodology 53

Page 7



page 4 Well-Being of Future Generations report

When we began the work that underpins this report, none of us imagined that  
we would today be engaged in an effort to tackle the biggest crisis in most  
our lifetimes. 

For all of us – as individuals, communities and public bodies – the world 
is suddenly a very different place. The global pandemic has affected and 
is affecting all of us. The last few months have been frightening, stressful, 
pressured and distressing. But every day we have been comforted and uplifted 
by the stories of ingenuity, commitment and bravery of public sector workers. 
We are all proud and eternally grateful for their efforts.   

For some time to come, the focus will be on responding to the crisis. Further 
down the line, there will be an opportunity to pause and reflect. Innovation is 
often born out of crisis and I am sure there will be much that public bodies will 
have learned in their response to Covid-19. I am determined that Audit Wales 
supports that learning process and that we work with public bodies to capture 
and draw out those lessons. 

The evidence for this report was gathered in a different time. It does not cover 
emergency planning or the response to Covid-19. This report summarises the 
findings from our examinations of 44 public bodies under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in the first reporting period, from 2015-2020. 

It would be tempting to dismiss the Act as irrelevant in the face of such a crisis. 
But the best public sector leaders will recognise that the ways of working it 
sets out – planning for the long term, preventing problems, working with and 
listening to others and taking a broader perspective – are sound principles for 
dealing with whatever challenges the future might hold. On that basis, I hope 
this report provides some insights that can help public bodies develop their 
foresight and resilience.

Auditor General’s Foreword 

Page 8



page 5 Well-Being of Future Generations report

In these early years, our main objective has been to add value by helping 
public bodies learn and improve. We worked with public bodies, the Future 
Generations Commissioner and other stakeholders to understand how we 
could best do that. We co-designed a methodology that focuses on ways of 
working and on behaviours. It promotes self-reflection. It aims to help bodies 
learn and develop their own actions in response to our findings. The sustainable 
development principle is not something that can be uniformly applied or audited. 
So, we have listened, tried to understand context and to appreciate differences. 
We have learned so much that we can carry forward into our future work. 

Overall, we have found that public bodies can demonstrate that they are 
applying the sustainable development principle. But it is also clear that they 
must improve how they apply each of the five ways of working if they are going 
to affect genuine cultural change – the very essence of the Act. In the next five-
year reporting period, public bodies across Wales will need to work together in 
taking a more system-wide approach to improving well-being if they are to take 
their work to the next level. 

I understand it may be some time before all of the 44 bodies are able to 
consider and respond to these findings. It may also be some time before 
Members of the Senedd, civic society and others can be part of a conversation 
about what we have found. When appropriate, the Commissioner and I will 
create the time and space to explore the findings and recommendations.

Adrian Crompton
Auditor General for Wales

Page 9



page 6 Well-Being of Future Generations report

What you’ll find in this report

1 This report sets out the main findings from the Auditor General for Wales’s 
(the Auditor General) sustainable development principle examinations, 
carried out under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
(the Act). 

2 During 2018-19 and 2019-20, we carried out 71 examinations across the 
44 Welsh public bodies named under the Act.1 We published reports on 
each examination, which can be viewed on our website.2 

3 This report provides an overview of what we looked for, what we found 
and what we will expect to see in future. It also draws on other relevant 
findings across the breadth of our audit work. 

4 The Future Generations Commissioner for Wales (the Commissioner) has 
also published a report today, the Future Generations Report. Together, 
these reports describe how public bodies in Wales are applying the Act 
and improving well-being across Wales.3

1 The 44 public bodies named under the Act are Welsh Ministers (the Welsh Government), 
Local Authorities, Local Health Boards, Public Health Wales NHS Trust, Velindre NHS Trust, 
National Park Authorities, Fire and Rescue Authorities, Natural Resources Wales, the Higher 
Education Funding Council for Wales, the Arts Council of Wales, Sport Wales, the National 
Library of Wales and the National Museums and Galleries of Wales.

2 The Auditor General must examine each public body at least once in a five-year period and 
report on the examinations to the Senedd before each Senedd election.

3 The Commissioner must publish a Future Generations Report 12 months before a Senedd 
election giving her assessment of the improvements public bodies should make to set and 
meet well-being objectives in accordance with the sustainable development principle.Page 10

https://www.audit.wales/publications


page 7 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Exhibit 1 – key concepts for this report4

The Well-being Duty requires...

...public bodies to carry out sustainable development. As part of this, they must set well-being 
objectives and take all reasonable steps to meet them.

Well-being goals

Globally Responsible Vibrant Culture and 
Thriving Welsh Language

Cohesive Communities

More Equal Healthier Resilient Prosperous

The Auditor General must examine public bodies and assess the extent to which 
they have acted in accordance with the sustainable development principle when 
a) setting well-being objectives, and b) taking steps to meet those objectives.

The Future Generation’s Commissioner must promote the sustainable 
development principle. 

This includes monitoring and assessing the extent to which public bodies  
are meeting their well-being objectives. 

4 For more information see Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and Shared Purpose:  
Shared Future Statutory Guidance on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (2016).

‘…the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at 
achieving the well-being goals.’

Sustainable development is...

‘…which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the 
ability of future generations to meet their own needs.’

To do this, they must take account of the ‘five ways of working’.

The sustainable development principle is defined as acting in a manner...

Long-term Integration InvolvementCollaborationPrevention

Page 11



page 8 Well-Being of Future Generations report

What we’ve done and why

Exhibit 2 – audit for future generations: What we’ve done and why

The duty

We must assess the 
extent to which 44 public 
bodies have acted in accordance 
with the sustainable development 
principle when 
setting well-being  
objectives and 
taking steps to 
meet them

The challenge

Assessing ‘ways  
of working’

44 bodies, that are very different!

Understanding how the 
sustainable development principle 
fits with value for money 

Coordinating with and 
complementing the 
Commissioner’s 
work

The ask from stakeholders

‘You need to look beyond strategic 
planning and corporate arrangements 
and include a focus on more operational issues’

‘You need to focus ways of working and take 
account of behaviours, rather than focusing on 
processes and arrangements’

‘You should engage with a range of people – 
including partners and citizens’

‘You need to work with the Commissioner 
so that you set consistent expectations and 
coordinate your activity’

‘You need to avoid  
a focus on compliance  
and consistency’

The conversation

We ran a consultation with the public 
sector and wider stakeholders 

We ran engagement sessions with staff and 
stakeholders

We worked closely with the Commissioner  
and her team

We ran a programme 
of nine pilots to help us 
co-create and test audit 
methods

11

22

33

44

Page 12



page 9 Well-Being of Future Generations report

The delivery The future

We conducted 71 examinations in  
2018-19 and 2019-20 at all 44 
bodies

We looked at steps they were taking to 
meeting their well-being objectives

We looked at a diverse range of steps, 
including health and social care, economy 
and regeneration, healthy lifestyles, waste 
management, employment and skills

We published reports, which included 
actions the bodies committed to take in 
response to our findings

We have summarised the 
findings in this report, to 
be laid before the Senedd

We are asking for and will 
respond to feedback from 
public bodies

We will integrate our sustainable 
development principle and value  
for money work

We will do more joint working  
with the Commissioner

We will continue to apply  
the sustainable development 
principle in the 
way we carry out 
our work

Our commitment

Focus on the ‘five ways of working’

Focus on ‘how’ organisations are working, as well as  
‘what’ they are doing

Help public bodies to self-reflect and explore what they  
could do differently

Capture narrative and seek the views of a cross-section  
of staff and stakeholders

Give early feedback 

Encourage public bodies to develop their own actions  
in response to our findings

55

66 77

Page 13



page 10 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Our focus for the first reporting period, 2015-2020
5 This first reporting period under the 2015 Act has been unique. Public 

bodies (excluding Welsh Ministers) were required to publish their first  
well-being objectives part way through, by April 2017.5 They then needed 
some time and space to start delivering against those objectives. This 
meant that the time available for carrying out our examinations was shorter 
than it will be in future reporting periods. 

6 We appreciate that applying the Act well, and doing that consistently, is 
difficult. Public bodies are still learning, and so we have aimed to strike a 
careful balance between support and constructive challenge in this first 
reporting period.

7 We have made sure that we covered the elements required by law, while 
being mindful of the total amount of audit work and the load this could 
place on public bodies. We therefore built our picture of how public bodies 
are applying the Act by carrying out some specific examinations, as well 
as gathering useful information from other audit work. In the first reporting 
period we have:

• published an initial report Reflecting on year one: How Have Public 
Bodies Responded to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015? which explored how public bodies were beginning to apply 
the Act and how they developed their first set of well-being objectives;

• asked public bodies how they are embedding the Act more generally to 
help inform our overall understanding and the planning of future work;

• gathered relevant information through our local and national studies; 
and

• undertaken detailed examinations of how the sustainable development 
principle has been applied in relation to specific activities (‘steps’).

8 Our detailed examinations covered a variety of themes including health 
and social care, economy and regeneration, healthy lifestyles, waste 
management, employment and skills. Exhibit 3 provides an overview 
of these themes. This has meant we have been able to report practical 
findings that provide insight and support service improvements.

9 This report gives an overview of the diverse findings, important themes 
and main learning points from those examinations, each of which 
contained our conclusions on how public bodies were applying the 
sustainable development principle. 

5 Welsh Ministers were required to publish their well-being objectives six months after the 
Assembly election Page 14

https://www.audit.wales/publication/reflecting-year-one


page 11 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Exhibit 3 –  themes we examined across the 44 public bodies

Digital

Public  
involvement

Antisocial 
behaviour

Partnership  
working

 Natural 
environment

Health &  
social care

Service 
transformation

Housing

Waste and 
recycling

Strategic  
planning

Schools &  
Youth Services

Leisure  
services

Healthy  
lifestyles

Arts  
& culture

Tackling poverty

Children  
& families

Employment  
& skills

Economy & 
regeneration

The steps we examined covered…

Page 15



page 12 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Working with the Future Generations Commissioner
10 The Commissioner must (among other things) ‘monitor and assess’ the 

extent to which public bodies are meeting their well-being objectives. This 
is closely related to what the Auditor General must do. In broad terms, the 
Auditor General must look at the way public bodies have planned and 
carried out their work, while the Commissioner must look at what they 
have achieved.

11 The Commissioner’s Future Generations Report must summarise the 
work she has undertaken and set out the improvements that public bodies 
need to make so that they can better apply the sustainable development 
principle. 

12 We have worked closely with the Commissioner’s office while developing 
our two statutory reports. The findings in this report have helped to inform 
the recommendations the Commissioner has made in her report. 

13 This report contains two recommendations; one to the Welsh Government 
and one to the Senedd (see page 50), but does not include a separate set 
of recommendations to the 44 public bodies. Our individual reports to each 
body identified areas for improvement, which they developed an action 
plan in response to. Setting another set of recommendations in this report 
would risk ‘recommendation overload’. As the Commissioner has set 
recommendations in her report, this means there is a single set of national 
recommendations for public bodies to focus on. This fits with the Auditor 
General’s and Commissioner’s previous commitments to set clear and 
consistent expectations of public bodies.  

Page 16



page 13 Well-Being of Future Generations report

14 Our year one report Reflecting on year one: How Have Public Bodies 
Responded to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015? highlighted several constraints that make it difficult for public 
bodies to fully embed the Act and maximise its potential across their work. 
These included short-term funding, legislative and governance complexity 
and performance reporting (see Exhibit 4). These constraints provide 
important context to our findings on how public bodies are applying the 
sustainable development principle.

15 It is also reasonable to assume that if the constraints set out in Exhibit 4 
can be addressed, public bodies are likely to make more rapid progress in 
applying the Act. This is perhaps even more important, in the context of the 
major, complex challenges they will face in the next reporting period (see 
page 48). If we want to see a greater rate of progress and increase 
public bodies’ capacity to deal with the prevailing challenges, then 
these barriers need to be addressed. The Welsh Government, the 
Commissioner and the Auditor General all need to play their part in helping 
to create the conditions for change.

The implementation challenge:  
Is it getting easier?

Page 17

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/reflecting-on-year-one-2018-english.pdf


page 14 Well-Being of Future Generations report

16 The Welsh Government itself has multiple 
roles to play. Clearly, it is responsible for the 
legislation, issuing guidance and supporting its 
implementation. It is also itself bound by the 
legislation as one of the 44 bodies. In addition, it 
has a wider leadership role, which would include 
modelling the behaviours it expects from others, 
demonstrating how the Act can be applied and 
communicating that clearly. This means that the 
Welsh Government has a responsibility not only to 
address the barriers that are in its direct control, 
but also to help other public bodies implement the 
Act. This is particularly challenging for the Welsh 
Government, as it requires a comprehensive 
approach to applying the Act so that new policy, 
legislation and funding reflect the sustainable 
development principle (see Exhibit 4), and to do all 
of this ahead of other bodies. The leadership role 
should also include considering how it interacts 
with other public bodies and how it can best 
support the changes it wants to see.7 However, the 
Commissioner has criticised the resourcing and 
support the Welsh Government has put in place. 
In essence, to help other bodies to get it right, the 
Welsh Government must itself get it right.

17 The Commissioner and Auditor General can 
help by focusing on the right things, setting 
consistent expectations and not over-burdening 
public bodies with monitoring requirements. Both 
also have a role in promoting good practice and 
supporting learning and improvement. Our two 
offices have worked together closely to try to 
achieve this, but we recognise more can be done. 
We will continue to strengthen the co-ordination of 
our work in the next period.

18 Audit Wales’ examination methodology was 
designed to respond to the concerns and requests 
from public bodies and other stakeholders.  
We restate our own commitment to ensuring our 
approach helps drive the right behaviours and 
supports, rather than impedes, progress.

6 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Progress towards the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act, October 2019 

7 See also our summary and supplementary reports on The Well-being of Young People, 
September 2019.

The Welsh Government has 
not sufficiently resourced the 
implementation of the Well-
being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act in terms of 
leadership development, 
support for transformational 
change and delivering the 
infrastructure required by 
the Act; both within their 
own organisation and the 
organisations they sponsor.

Future Generations 
Commissioner for Wales6

Page 18



page 15 Well-Being of Future Generations report

8 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Future Generations Report, May 2020.

Exhibit 4 – barriers to progress, as identified by public bodies in 2017 and how things have 
changed since

Then… …Now

Public bodies were clear that short term 
funding hampers their ability to plan 
effectively over the long term. Some 
sponsored bodies stated that the annual 
remit letter poses the same challenge. Linked 
to this, public bodies cited a lack of flexibility 
over how grant funding can be spent and 
disproportionate monitoring requirements as 
inhibiting long term planning and a focus on 
outcomes.

Short term funding and late  
notifications remain a reality. There are 

some examples of grants being merged 
and flexibility being increased.  

The Commissioner is recommending that, 
starting with Welsh Government, financial 

planning should move to a model of  
well-being budgets and remit letters to 

national bodies should be reformed so that 
they are set in a longer-term context.8     

Some bodies described the challenge of 
legislative complexity and the difficulty 
of joining-up statutory requirements in 
practice. Specifically, they referred to the 
need to find a practical means of meeting the 
requirements of the Act whilst also meeting 
the requirements of the Social Services 
and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016 or planning 
policy and legislation.

This remains a practical challenge. 
Our national studies have identified 

references to and consideration of the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act as 

part of the development of national policy. 
However, we have seen examples  
of policy, guidance and legislation  

making only marginal or unclear 
references to the Act.

There were some concerns about existing 
national reporting requirements and a 
focus on indicators, which were considered 
to detract from a focus on long term 
outcomes and preventative benefits. A few 
bodies expressed concerns that audit and 
regulatory requirements could drive a focus 
on compliance with a process, rather than 
promoting the spirit of the Act.

There have been some changes in national 
reporting requirements for local authorities, 

who are no longer required to report on 
national performance measures. However, 

national performance measures in health 
are based on the performance of acute 

services. The Commissioner is considering 
undertaking a review to explore this.

Public bodies highlighted some challenges 
that need to be overcome if Public Services 
Boards are to be as effective as intended. 
These included; the complexity of the 
partnership governance environment, some 
potentially influential partners not being 
engaged, different levels of commitment and 
different ways of working.

The debate on partnership governance 
in Wales continues, informed by various 

published reviews since devolution  
in 1999. The Local Government  

and Elections (Wales) Bill potentially 
adds to an already complex and crowded 

partnership environment by creating 
statutory Joint Committees.

Page 19



page 16 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Setting the first well-being objectives: Findings from 
our 2018 report 
19 We explored how public bodies had set their first well-being objectives 

in our 2018 report. We found that most public bodies had set their first 
objectives in 2017 and were able to provide some examples of how they 
applied the five ways of working as part of that process. 

Challenges 

20 We reported in 2018 that publishing well-being objectives had posed some 
difficulties for public bodies. The Act prescribed a challenging planning 
timetable and, of course, none of the 44 bodies was starting with a blank 
sheet. Some were required to publish their first well-being objectives mid-
way through an existing planning cycle. Local authorities, fire and rescue 
authorities and national park authorities had to meet the requirements of 
the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009, but the Act also required 
them to publish well-being objectives shortly before the local elections. 
Individual bodies were required to publish their objectives before Public 
Services Boards (PSBs) and this was also highlighted as a barrier to 
integration by some. 

What we found

This section covers

• Setting the first well-being objectives: Our findings on how public 
bodies set their first well-being objectives, taken from our 2018 report 
Reflecting on year one: How Have Public Bodies Responded to 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015?

• Taking steps to meet well-being objectives: An overview of our 
findings on how public bodies have taken steps to meet their well-
being objectives, based on the examinations we undertook in 2018-19 
and 2019-20.

Page 20

https://www.audit.wales/publication/reflecting-year-one


page 17 Well-Being of Future Generations report

21 Public bodies took different approaches to aligning or integrating their  
well-being objectives with existing strategies and corporate objectives.  
Our 2018 report identified that in 2017 most public bodies had developed 
well-being objectives that either added to or replaced their previous 
corporate objectives. A few chose not to set well-being objectives by the 
statutory deadline and others said that they intended to revise them soon 
after setting them. 

22 Where public bodies had not integrated their well-being and corporate 
objectives, it was sometimes unclear how their various objectives 
related to each other, or fitted with their corporate planning processes, 
performance measures and budget setting. This was despite clear 
guidance that corporate planning (and corporate plans where relevant) 
should be the mechanism for setting well-being objectives.9  

Applying the sustainable development principle

23 For our 2018 report, we asked public bodies how their process for setting 
well-being objectives had differed from how they had set corporate 
objectives in the past. Most told us it had been different, but often failed 
to give a detailed explanation of ‘how’ or give examples of how they had 
used all of the five ways of working. Where they did give examples, these 
tended to relate to collaboration, involvement or integration.

24 Most local authorities said that they had drawn on work they had done 
in collaboration through the PSBs to help them develop their well-being 
objectives. They described how they had used the PSBs’ well-being 
assessment as part of their evidence base, as did some health bodies.10 

25 Most local authorities made reference to how they had engaged the public 
in developing their well-being objectives. It was not always clear how 
this differed from engagement and consultation they had undertaken in 
the past and made the shift to ‘involvement’. Some described how they 
had drawn on the engagement undertaken by the PSB as part of the 
development of the well-being assessment. However, our recent Review 
of Public Services Boards report found that:

‘Whilst engagement activity has been time consuming and extensive 
it has nonetheless tended to follow traditional approaches focused on 
informing rather than involving people and consequently falls short of 
meeting the new expectations of the Act.11

9 Welsh Government ‘Shared Purpose: Shared Future’ – statutory guidance on the  
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, 2016

10 PSBs are required to prepare and publish an assessment of well-being under section 37  
of the Act.

11 Auditor General for Wales, Review of Public Services Boards, October 2019 Page 21

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf


page 18 Well-Being of Future Generations report

26 Most health bodies said they had engaged internal and external 
stakeholders as part of the process of developing their well-being 
objectives, though few referred to engaging the public (beyond drawing 
on the results of any engagement included in the well-being assessment). 
A few said they intended to undertake greater involvement when they 
revised their well-being objectives.

27 Similarly, the Welsh Government and sponsored bodies tended to involve 
staff and stakeholders in the development of their well-being objectives 
and some stated that they had involved a wider circle than they had in 
previous years. However, only a few of these bodies directly involved the 
public in developing their well-being objectives, though others went on to 
launch large-scale public engagement processes. 

28 Some public bodies said that they had taken a more ‘integrated’ approach by 
involving people from different backgrounds and disciplines, who had helped 
them think more broadly about their work. While public bodies may feel that 
they have improved the process, this did not necessarily result in objectives 
that reflected all the aspects of well-being. The Commissioner found that: 

‘Overwhelmingly, objectives have a focus on improving the economic 
and social well-being of localities, with little emphasis on the 
environment or culture.’12

29 We received limited information on how public bodies had considered the 
long term when setting their well-being objectives. There was even less 
information on prevention. Some of this had been drawn from well-being 
assessments, though the Commissioner also highlighted weaknesses in 
the information those assessments included on long-term trends. There 
were, however, references to preventative activities in plans. These 
included references to delivering the Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014. Notably, fire and rescue authorities emphasised that 
prevention is a well-established and successful way of working for them 
and gave examples, such as work with health and police partners on falls 
prevention and home fire safety.  

12 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Well-being in Wales: The journey so far, 
May 2018. Page 22



page 19 Well-Being of Future Generations report

13 Ibid.

30 While public bodies may have felt they applied the five ways of working, it 
was not always clear how the process was different or what changed as a 
result. The Commissioner’s analysis also highlighted that: 

‘At the moment, public bodies are committing to well-being objectives 
that largely resemble the corporate objectives they would have set prior 
to 2017.’13

31 In our recent work, we identified the need for a few public bodies to clarify 
how they were going to deliver and monitor progress towards their well-
being objectives. This included two public bodies that had set well-being 
objectives without setting out the steps they would take to meet them. As 
this is necessary for them to meet their statutory obligations, we reported it 
to those bodies.  

32 We will conduct further work on the setting of well-being objectives in the 
next reporting period and we will be looking to see full and meaningful 
consideration of all five ways of working.

Page 23



page 20 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Why it’s important: Planning for the long term is at the heart of the Act.  
If public bodies do not look ahead and balance what they need to achieve 
today with what they and future generations need to achieve in the future, 
they risk reducing well-being and increasing costs over the long term. 

Public bodies 
must…

Take account 
of balancing 
short-term needs 
with the need to 
safeguard the 
ability to meet 
long-term needs, 
especially where 
things done to 
meet short-term 
needs may have 
detrimental long-
term effect.

Public bodies could demonstrate this by…15

• Having a clear understanding of ‘long term’,  
in the context of the Act.

• Designing actions to deliver well-being 
objectives and contributing to long-term vision.

• Designing actions to deliver short or medium-
term benefits, balanced with long-term impact.

• Designing actions based on a deep 
understanding of current and future needs, 
trends and pressures.

• Having a comprehensive understanding of 
current and future risks and opportunities.

• Allocating resources to ensure long-term, as 
well as short-term, benefits.

• Focusing on delivering outcomes and, where 
this is long term, identifying milestone steps.

• Being open to new ways of doing things which 
could help deliver benefits over the longer term.

• Valuing intelligence and pursuing evidence-
based approaches.

The expectation14

Taking steps to meet well-being objectives

The following sections set out findings from our examinations of specific steps 
that public bodies are taking to meet their well-being objectives, and how they 
applied the five ways of working. They also include some references to our other 
published reports. There are some case studies from Wales which are designed 
to illustrate effective application of the five ways of working. There are also some 
case studies from beyond Wales, which we hope are helpful resources. 

Long-term

14 Expectations are set out in section 5 of the Act and associated statutory guidance.
15 These ‘positive indicators’ were developed through our pilot work with public bodies.Page 24



page 21 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Understanding the present and the future

33 Clearly, public bodies can’t predict the future with complete certainty. 
But we do expect to see them thinking about the future and engaging 
with uncertainty. That means better understanding needs, risks and 
opportunities as they are now and exploring how they could play out over 
the long term. It means being clearer about what they want the future to 
look like and what they can do to get there. There are a number of tools 
that can help them do this.

34 Linked to this, the definition of long term under the Act goes beyond 
simply ‘thinking about the future’. It requires public bodies to think about 
balancing what they want and need to achieve now, with what they or 
future generations will want or need to achieve over the long term. 

35 We found that many public bodies had a reasonable understanding of 
current needs and demand pressures. Some were also able to describe 
how demand and other pressures were likely to change over time. 
They were using performance data, the results of consultations and 
local research, such as population needs assessments and well-being 
assessments, to help them understand the needs of people and places.16

36 While some public bodies could describe some of the likely changes in 
demand and the factors that might affect it, we found limited examples of 
forecasting and scenario planning. We identified opportunities for public 
bodies to think about how wider intelligence and trends might impact 
on what they were seeking to achieve. They need to think about the 
connections between social, economic, environmental and cultural trends, 
rather than focusing only on those that are most obviously and directly 
related. They also need to ensure they update their trend analyses, as 
appropriate.17

16 Regional Partnership Boards are required to produce a Population Needs Assessment under 
the Social Services and Well-being Act.

17 See also Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Progress towards the Well-being 
of Future Generations Act, October 2019.

What we found: Our work identified many examples where public bodies 
had thought about what they want to achieve over the long term. In the next 
reporting period, public bodies will need to undertake more sophisticated 
planning for the future, informed by a rounded understanding of both 
current needs and future trends and supported by appropriate measures of 
progress and impact.

Page 25



page 22 Well-Being of Future Generations report

37 The Commissioner previously highlighted weaknesses in well-being 
assessments because they:

‘… did not meaningfully consider the long-term, future trends or 
multigenerational policy challenges’ and ‘implicit messages from the 
data needed further exploration to better understand the causes and 
effects of key issues and trends’.18

If well-being assessments are to be an important source of evidence for 
public bodies to continually draw upon, then PSBs will need to strengthen 
their information on future trends. The Welsh Government’s forthcoming 
Future Trends report should provide a valuable source of information 
for public bodies across Wales. Inevitably, all public bodies will need to 
reconsider medium and long-term trends as they begin responding to the 
aftermath of the global pandemic.

Case study – Gwent Futures Report

In March 2018, Ash Futures published its horizon scanning 
report for the Gwent area Public Services Boards (PSBs). It 
described the global and local trends and what they might mean 
for the people, business and the environment of Gwent over the 
next 10 to 20 years.
They used the ‘three horizons model’, which explores external 
factors in a) the present b) the less near future and c) the 
medium to long term. Whilst this work recognises the inherent 
unpredictability of the future, it also provides a helpful baseline 
from which to ask questions.
For more information on the Gwent Futures Report please 
follow this link 

18 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Well-being in Wales: Planning today for a 
better tomorrow, 2017. Page 26

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/sites/your.caerphilly.gov.uk.publicservicesboard/files/Gwent%20Futures%20Summary%20report%20FINAL.pdf


page 23 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Planning for the future 

38 We found a few notable examples of public 
bodies setting out and working towards a 
genuinely long-term vision, looking 10 or more 
years ahead. This should help guide the actions 
and decisions they take in the short and  
medium term. The Commissioner also notes  
that well-being objectives tend to be long term.19  
We also saw a few examples of public bodies 
appraising the risk and benefits of projects over 
the very long term, for example 40 to 60 years.

39 More typically, we saw public bodies were 
planning to deliver activities over the short 
and medium term. But this didn’t mean they 
weren’t thinking further ahead. We found many 
examples of public bodies thinking about what 
they wanted to achieve over the long term, though 
we highlighted that some of those activities were 
disadvantaged by the lack of a clear long-term 
vision, actions, resources and measures. Overall, 
we saw more evidence of long-term thinking than 
long-term planning. 

40 We also highlighted opportunities for public 
bodies to work together more to plan for 
the future. This would help them explore 
interconnected issues and work towards shared, 
long-term outcomes that tackle the root causes of 
problems. 

41 Some public bodies were clear about how they 
would measure progress and impact over the 
long term. This was often not the case and we 
challenged many public bodies to think about how 
they could do this. We understand this can be 
difficult; different partners are involved in delivery, 
outcomes can be difficult to measure and it can 
be resource intensive. Nevertheless,  
it is important to be clear about what they want to 
achieve over the long term and whether they are 
on track to achieve it (see also ‘prevention’).

Natural Resources Wales 
(NRW) is facilitating the 
development of a shared vision 
for the natural environment 
in Wales to 2050. NRW 
will monitor the natural 
environment in Wales through 
its State of Natural Resources 
Reports (SoNaRR) looking at 
Wales as a whole, together 
with medium-term performance 
measures and short-term 
annual targets to monitor 
NRW’s own contribution.

View the report here.

A view from the auditor 

It’s positive to see that public 
bodies are thinking about what 
they need to do to improve 
well-being over the long term. 
To make that a reality, they 
need to be clear about what 
they want to achieve, how 
they will deliver, resource and 
measure it and over what 
time horizon. We want to see 
evidence of long-term thinking 
that is informed and supported 
by long-term planning.

19 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Future Generations Report, May 2020Page 27

https://www.audit.wales/publication/natural-resources-wales-well-being-future-generations-examination-2019-20


page 24 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Investing for the future

42 Public bodies need to think about the resources they need to deliver 
improvements in well-being over the long term. They need to think about 
how risks and opportunities could shape their investment decisions, 
as well as the impact that using resources now is likely to have on the 
resources that are available in future. This means thinking about financial 
sustainability and value over the long term and how costs might be 
avoided by taking preventative action.

43 We saw many public bodies investing for the medium and long term by 
building capacity, developing specific expertise and investing core or 
grant funding. We saw that public bodies were often redesigning services 
so that they would better meet need and be financially sustainable over 
the medium to long term. However, where public bodies were relying on 
grant funding there were concerns about long-term sustainability and 
development of ‘exit strategies’ (see also ‘prevention’).

44 Many public bodies are grant funders, as well as grant recipients. We 
found a few examples of public bodies working to give the organisations 
they fund more certainty or encourage them to plan for the long term. 

Things for public bodies to think about…

• Developing a more sophisticated understanding of the different 
factors that will shape the future and what this might mean.

• Being clear about what they want to achieve over the long term 
and how they will measure progress and impact.

• Investing resources to deliver well-being over the long term.

Page 28



page 25 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Why it’s important: Prevention is about protecting the well-being of people 
and places by building capacity, stopping problems from occurring or 
worsening. It’s also about using resources in a smarter way and, ultimately, 
delivering better value as well as better well-being.

Thinking preventatively

45 We examined some activities that had been designed with prevention in 
mind. For example, projects to reduce ecosystem decline, improve health 
and well-being and ensure that children have the best start in life. 

Prevention

Public bodies 
must…

Take account of 
how deploying 
resources 
to prevent 
problems 
occurring, or 
getting worse 
may contribute 
to meeting 
the body’s 
well-being 
objectives, or 
another body’s 
objectives.

Public bodies could demonstrate this by…

• Seeking to understand root causes of problems 
so that negative cycles and intergenerational 
challenges can be tackled.

• Seeing challenges from a system-wide 
perspective, recognising and valuing long-term 
benefits they can deliver for people and places.

• Allocating resources to preventative action likely 
to contribute to better outcomes and use of 
resources even where this may limit the ability to 
meet some short-term needs.

• Having decision-making and accountability 
arrangements that recognise the value of 
preventative action and accept short-term 
reductions in performance and resources in 
the pursuit of improved outcomes and use of 
resources.

The expectation

What we found: Public bodies are thinking preventatively, but are 
sometimes missing opportunities to deliver and measure system-wide 
preventative benefits.

Page 29



page 26 Well-Being of Future Generations report

46 We also examined activities where prevention was not the foremost 
consideration but could still help to deliver wider preventative benefits.  
For example, town centre regeneration could be designed to improve the 
local economy, but could also promote active travel, improve air quality 
and improve health and well-being. In these cases, public bodies were 
often aware of the potential wider benefits, but they were not always 
planning to deliver or measure them. 

47 We found that public bodies were sometimes missing opportunities to 
identify preventative benefits and to make the connections between 
their work and the outcomes that other bodies were seeking to achieve. 
Prevention cannot be the responsibility of one service or organisation 
and may require innovative thinking that connects different parts of the 
system. For example, actions undertaken by leisure or culture services 
could reduce demand for social care and health. Public bodies will need 
to integrate different agendas and work with a broader range of partners 
to deliver wider preventative benefits. This will enable them to focus their 
efforts far upstream so they can undertake ‘primary’ prevention.20

20 The Commissioner has agreed a definition of prevention with the Welsh Government that is 
based on four tiers; primary prevention, secondary prevention, tertiary prevention and acute 
spending. See the Future Generations Report for further information.Page 30



page 27 Well-Being of Future Generations report

The Higher Education 
Funding Council for Wales’ 
‘Learning Analytics Cymru’ 
project will collect and 
analyse retrospective and 
real-time student data to 
help improve student support 
and learning outcomes. The 
analysis of learning patterns 
will also provide anonymised 
nationwide insights into: 

a) what causes different 
educational outcomes  
for students; 

b) the success or otherwise 
of student support 
interventions; and 

c) tracking improvements in 
learning and teaching on 
individual programmes. 

View the report here.

Understanding the root causes of problems

48 Some bodies were able to describe the reasons 
that certain problems were occurring or getting 
worse. For example, the connection between 
physical activity and health and mental health 
or the importance of early years and outcomes 
later in life. Public bodies often drew on national 
research for this, combined with local data and a 
few commissioned their own research. 

49 We did identify several opportunities for public 
bodies to deepen their understanding of the root 
causes of problems. They need to understand the 
reasons behind an issue and how it might have 
developed over time, in some cases over multiple 
generations. 

50 We know that comprehensive analysis of root 
causes can be technically challenging and time-
consuming and might not always be feasible. 
However, public bodies can delve into root causes 
by working with partners, service users and the 
public to understand the factors affecting people’s 
lives, ask why they are choosing not to take part 
in an activity or service or why interventions have 
not been successful. They can gather information 
that helps them interpret research in their local 
context. Understanding root causes, and having 
a common understanding, is important if public 
bodies are going to work together in a system-
wide approach to prevention.  

Investing in prevention

51 We found many examples of public bodies 
investing in prevention; often through levering 
external funding and making smarter use of  
existing resources. They were accessing grant 
funding, drawing funding streams together and 
adapting roles and responsibilities to help deliver 
preventative benefits.21

21 For information on the shift towards preventative delivery in adult social care, please see our 
report The ‘Front Door’ to Adult Social Care, September 2019.Page 31

https://www.audit.wales/publication/higher-education-funding-council-wales-well-being-future-generations-plan-wellbeing


page 28 Well-Being of Future Generations report

52 Public bodies were often proactively seeking 
grant funding to help make a shift to more 
preventative models and deliver long-term, 
preventative benefits. But they often lacked a 
plan for sustaining the work when the funding had 
ended. 

53 One source of funding for health and social care 
is the Integrated Care Fund; many of the projects 
focus on prevention and earlier intervention. Our 
report on the fund found that while there has been 
a clear expectation from the Welsh Government 
that effective projects should be mainstreamed 
into core budgets, funding pressures have made 
that difficult. Many have effectively become core 
services and regional partners may have to make 
some difficult decisions to disinvest from some 
services.22

54 Public bodies find it difficult to redirect core 
resources to deliver new, preventative delivery 
models. Reasons include rising demand 
pressures, core funding constraints and 
performance monitoring that focuses on outputs. 
However, they need to consider how best to 
sustain or mainstream activities that are likely to 
help manage demand over the long term. Over 
time, public bodies will need to make a more 
extensive and fundamental shift to preventative 
working that connects different parts of their 
organisations and their partners. We will explore 
this further in future work, including through our 
planned thematic review of ‘prevention’ across 
local government in 2020-21. 

Measuring prevention  

55 We saw that some public bodies had developed, 
or were developing, ways of measuring prevention. 
This included measuring the wider impact, such as 
in Cardiff where targets have been set to measure 
interventions to address poor air quality (for 
further information see page 46). It also included 
measuring the difference a service has made to 
individuals (see ‘Connect’ case study below). 

A view from the auditor 

Examining investment in 
prevention is an important way 
for us to understand whether 
and how public bodies are 
delivering value for money in 
the present and over the longer 
term. Our future examinations 
will explore whether they 
understand cost and benefits 
over time and whether these 
are informing the difficult 
choices they will inevitably face.

22 Auditor General for Wales, Integrated Care Fund, July 2019.Page 32

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/integrated-care-fund-report-eng.pdf


page 29 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Working with key partners 
and using data, Mid and 
West Wales Fire and Rescue 
Authority’s Arson Reduction 
Team spent time understanding 
the unique nature of the arson 
problem in the area. This 
included understanding the 
cyclical pattern of incidents, 
identifying the key community 
leaders, a lack of trust in 
emergency services, and a 
cultural acceptance of arson 
attacks as ‘the norm’.

56 For most of the steps we reviewed, public bodies 
had not identified a way of measuring the impact 
of prevention. This is difficult, but public bodies 
should consider how best to measure impacts on 
individuals, and how their efforts add up to overall 
improvements in well-being. This would help build 
the evidence base for preventative work, inform 
decisions about resources and strengthen the 
case for external funding, particularly when wider 
benefits are being delivered. This also needs 
to be a collective endeavour; public bodies can 
only really plan for and measure the impact of 
prevention across the delivery system. Benefits 
delivered by one partner may reduce demand for 
another. This underlines the importance of linking 
prevention with integration.

57 Furthermore, to work preventatively and improve 
well-being, public bodies need to understand what 
well-being means to individuals. This underlines 
the importance of linking involvement with 
prevention.23

23 See also our summary and supplementary reports on The Well-being of Young People, 
September 2019.

Things for public bodies to think about…

• Taking opportunities to work with others to deliver  
a broader prevention agenda.

• Measuring the impact of prevention.

• Investing in prevention and making sure that  
preventative benefits can be sustained.

• Exploring with the Welsh Government how preventative  
spend could best be supported and incentivised.

Page 33



page 30 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Oldham warm homes 

The Warm Homes Oldham scheme was set up by Oldham 
Council, NHS Oldham Clinical Commissioning Group and 
Oldham Housing Investment Partnership (OHIP) in 2013. 
It offers advice, support and energy saving measures to 
residents in fuel poverty. 
Sheffield Hallam University have evaluated this programme, 
considering savings to the NHS as well as wider economic 
benefits, using self-reported health outcomes. An investment 
of £250,000 per year from Oldham CCG resulted in a 
monetary benefit from an increase of Quality Adjusted Life 
Years (QALYs) of between £399,000 and £793,000 depending 
on the method used. The study reported £178,000 of extra 
GDP due to higher employment rates, £37,700 of extra GDP 
due to reductions in sickness absence, and £137,300 of 
reductions in benefits claims. 
Source: Ashden Consulting, A toolkit for city regions and local 
authorities: Chapter 2 Health and Well-being.

Page 34

https://www.ashden.org/downloads/files/CAC-Chapter2-FINAL.pdf
https://www.ashden.org/downloads/files/CAC-Chapter2-FINAL.pdf


page 31 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – New Connect: Weight Management Service 
for Children and Young People, Aneurin Bevan University 
Health Board

In May 2019, the Health Board launched ‘Connect’, a new 
Gwent-wide team of health care professionals working 
together to support children, young people and their families, 
to improve their physical and emotional health and to treat the 
complications of obesity. It was developed as a partnership 
between physical and mental health services.
The service was designed with a long-term, preventative 
focus. Staff worked collaboratively to identify the cost of 
obesity, as well as to estimate the current and future demand 
for the specialist service, service capacity and required 
resources both finance and workforce. They evaluated the 
resources used to provide care for children and young people 
with obesity to identify how much could be reinvested in the 
new service. 
The Health Board worked with a range of partners to map 
services and resources for tackling obesity, for example in 
relation to physical activity and access to healthy affordable 
food choices. Connect is helping to shape a whole-systems 
approach to tackling childhood obesity. For example, Connect 
is linking with Health Visiting teams implementing the Healthy 
Child Wales Programme and the School Health Nursing 
Service, which undertakes the childhood measurement 
programme.
An outcomes framework was developed alongside, to 
inform service delivery and improvements, to monitor clinical 
outcomes and to understand the impact and experience 
of children and their families. Measures include specially 
developed patient (child) reported outcome measures, patient 
(child) experience measures and quality of life measures.
Developing a new service (the first in Wales) required 
trust, risk-taking and support from senior leaders within the 
organisation to commit resources where outcomes may not be 
evident in the short term.
View the report here.

Page 35

https://www.audit.wales/node/5847


page 32 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Integration

Why it’s important: Integration requires public bodies to take a different 
perspective; one that considers social, economic, environmental and cultural 
well-being in combination. Thinking in an integrated way will help public 
bodies balance different factors, identify a broader range of benefits and 
work in a more co-ordinated way. It should also facilitate preventative work.

What we found: Public bodies can often describe connections between 
their objectives, their partners’ objectives and the national goals. However, 
there are further opportunities for integration to add value and help deliver 
wider benefits.

Public bodies 
must…

Consider how 
the body’s  
well-being 
objectives may 
impact on each 
other, on other 
public bodies’ 
well-being 
objectives and 
on the well-being 
goals.

Public bodies could demonstrate this by…

• Everyone understanding their contribution to 
delivering the vision and well-being objectives.

• Everyone understanding what different parts of 
the organisation do and seeking opportunities 
to work across organisational and public sector 
boundaries.

• Everyone recognising that achieving the vision 
and objectives depends on working together.

• Having an open culture where information  
is shared. 

• Gaining a well-developed understanding of how 
the well-being objectives and steps to meet them 
impact on other public sector bodies.

• Proactively working across organisational 
boundaries to maximise their contribution across 
the well-being goals and minimise negative 
impacts.

• Having governance structures, processes and 
behaviours that support this. 

The expectation

Page 36



page 33 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Making the links

58 Public bodies were often able to describe some of the connections 
between their work and the national goals or, in more general terms, 
how they might improve social, economic, environmental or cultural well-
being.24 Many public bodies had formally documented the contributions 
and connections (see paragraphs 65 and 66).

59 We also found many public bodies aligning activity to other public bodies’ 
plans and PSBs’ well-being plans. We found good examples of joined-
up planning with partners, often based on a good understanding of their 
objectives in related areas of activity. However, there were many other 
examples where we highlighted the need to develop or strengthen these 
links or to extend the range of organisations and issues public bodies 
were considering.

60 Many public bodies told us how what they were doing was helping to 
deliver their own well-being objectives. They could describe how those 
activities related to different parts of their business and we found some 
good examples of cross-organisational working. For example, Newport 
Council recognised that their city centre regeneration required a whole-
system approach, linking environment, community safety and health and 
well-being. This demonstrated the council’s consideration of impact on a 
number of different objectives.

61 Departments (in the same organisation) and partner organisations were 
often making important connections in areas where there is a clear need for 
integration; for example, health and social care, social care and housing, 
education and leisure. However, we also identified many examples where 
internal integration could be strengthened. There are opportunities for 
public bodies to challenge themselves to make the less typical connections 
and think more systematically about the range of potential positive and 
negative impacts on their own and their partners’ well-being objectives.25

24 See also our report, The Effectiveness of Local Planning Authorities in Wales, June 2019.
25 See also Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Progress towards the Well-being  

of Future Generations Act, October 2019. Page 37



page 34 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Sport Wales: understanding sport and well-
being

Sport Wales commissioned the Sport Industry  
Research Centre (SIRC) at Sheffield Hallam University  
to conduct research on the overall impact that sport has 
on well-being. The research explored the value (or social 
return on investment) that sport has to the nation and the 
contribution that it can make towards health, crime, education, 
social cohesion and overall well-being. 
Read our report here.

Understanding and valuing integration 

62 Integration is central to the Act. Public bodies will need to take it seriously 
if they want to use the Act to add value to their work.

63 It has a unique focus under the Act. It requires public bodies to think about 
social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being in combination. 
Public bodies that work in this way will take a wider view and ensure 
coherence between their own activities and the work of others. Integration 
is a precursor to effective collaboration and can facilitate a system-wide 
response, which enables public bodies to work preventatively. Ultimately, it 
enables them to deliver a broader range of benefits for people and places. 

64 We found that ‘integration’ is still sometimes misunderstood as being 
‘service integration’ or ‘joint working’ between organisations. This is partly 
a result of the language used in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) 
Act 2014. 

65 It is important that public bodies properly consider and can demonstrate 
integration. We highlighted opportunities for public bodies to more clearly 
and explicitly show these links.

Page 38

https://www.audit.wales/publication/sport-wales-well-being-future-generations-examination


page 35 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Nottingham Good Food Partnership: 
improving health and cutting the carbon footprint of food 

The Nottingham Good Food Partnership is part funded by 
Nottingham City Council. It is a growing coalition of over 50 
member organisations working together to transform the 
sustainability of Nottingham’s local food system. 
As part of the Sustainable Food Cities (SFC) Network, the 
Partnership aims to improve the health and well-being of all 
and to create a more connected, resilient and sustainable 
Nottingham. 
It is addressing several key issues including: 
• promoting the importance of healthy and sustainable food 

to the diverse local communities; 
• working towards a circular food economy;
• radically reducing the ecological footprint of the food 

system; and
• aiming for zero edible food waste.
Source: Ashden Consulting, A toolkit for city regions and local 
authorities: Chapter 2 Health and Well-being

A view from the auditor 

With integration, seeing the 
links is important but we need 
to ask the ‘so what?’ question. 
Clear links between strategic 
documents are good to see, 
but what practical differences 
do they make, how are they 
shaping the thinking and what is 
going to be different as a result?

66 However, there is a risk that integration can be 
approached as a bureaucratic exercise, mainly 
focused on showing the links between steps 
and well-being objectives or the national goals. 
Retrofitting or cosmetic alignment of objectives 
and actions is both a missed opportunity and a 
waste of time. 

Page 39

https://www.ashden.org/downloads/files/CAC-Chapter2-FINAL.pdf
https://www.ashden.org/downloads/files/CAC-Chapter2-FINAL.pdf


page 36 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Building a greener and fairer Scotland

The Scottish Government has set up a ‘Just Transition 
Commission’ to advise Ministers on how ‘just transition 
principles’ can be applied to climate change action in 
Scotland. The aim is to help ensure that climate targets can be 
met, whilst also considering the economic and social impacts 
of climate action:

‘The imperative of a just transition is that Governments 
design policies in a way that ensures the benefits of climate 
change action are shared widely, while the costs do not 
unfairly burden those least able to pay, or whose livelihoods 
are directly or indirectly at risk as the economy shifts and 
changes.’

The Commission’s interim report can be viewed here. It will 
share its final recommendations with the Scottish Ministers by 
January 2021.

Things for public bodies to think about…

• Being clear about what integration means and how 
they can use it to add value to their work.

• Challenging themselves to expand their thinking 
so that they better understand how they can take 
every opportunity to improve the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.

Page 40

https://www.gov.scot/publications/transition-commission-interim-report/


page 37 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Why it’s important: Collaboration is a longstanding feature of policy and 
service delivery in Wales. Thinking about collaboration alongside the other 
ways of working helps define why it’s important and what it can achieve. 
By working together public bodies can have a wider impact, tackle the root 
causes of problems and prevent them from occurring in future. 

Working with the right partners

67 We found many examples of public bodies working with key partners to 
deliver shared outcomes. In some cases, this was an extensive range of 
partners, often co-ordinated through the PSBs and in some cases with 
regional partners through the Regional Partnership Boards (RPBs) or city 
region and growth deals. However, we did identify valuable opportunities 
for public bodies to work with different partners (both internal and  
external) to increase and broaden their impact (see also ‘integration’  
and ‘prevention’).  

Collaboration

Public bodies 
must…

Take account 
of how 
collaborating 
with others could 
assist the body 
to meet its well-
being objectives, 
or assist another 
body to meet its 
objectives.

Public bodies could demonstrate this by…

• Focusing on place, community and outcomes  
not organisational boundaries.

• Understanding partners’ objectives and their 
responsibilities, which helps to drive collaborative 
activity.

• Having positive and mature relationships with 
stakeholders, where information is shared in an  
open and transparent way.

• Recognising and valuing the contributions that  
all partners can make.

• Seeking to establish shared processes and ways  
of working, where appropriate.

The expectation

What we found: There are many positive examples of collaboration, but 
we identified opportunities for public bodies to work with a broader range 
of partners to increase impact. They could also continue to strengthen their 
collaborations by reviewing their effectiveness and applying the learning. 

Page 41



page 38 Well-Being of Future Generations report

68 We identified a good degree of trust, mutual 
respect and shared understanding between 
partners for many of the examples we reviewed. 
These public bodies described how they valued 
their partners and recognised the need to work 
with others to deliver better outcomes. 

69 We saw examples of joined-up delivery, including 
through shared processes, co-located and 
multi-agency teams and multi-agency steering 
groups. However, we found some instances 
where under-developed processes were getting 
in the way. Examples include unclear roles and 
arrangements, lack of common vision and data 
sharing challenges. 

70 A significant amount of partnership working is  
coordinated through the PSBs. However, our 
‘Review of Public Services Boards’ report 
found that inconsistent attendance and a sense 
among some third sector representatives that the 
agenda is owned by the local authority were seen 
to reduce effectiveness and collective ownership. 
The review also found that PSBs invite a wide 
range of organisations to participate but there 
were opportunities to involve other partners, 
including from the private sector and  
faith groups.26

Resourcing collaboration

71 This report has already set out some of the 
challenges associated with grant funding (see 
‘prevention’). Our review of PSBs highlighted 
that resources and capacity are key risks and 
PSBs feel there is a need for a dedicated PSB 
funding stream.27

72 RPBs can access funding through the Integrated 
Care Fund. Our 2019 report on the fund found 
that it has ‘helped bring organisations together 
to plan and deliver services’. However, it also 
found that short-term funding horizons hampered 
regional delivery.28

A view from the auditor 

We have continued to look 
at arrangements – they will 
always be important – but 
effective collaboration relies 
on relationships and trust. 
We’ve explored both in 
these examinations and we’ll 
continue do so in future work.

26 Auditor General for Wales, Review of Public Services Boards, October 2019. 
27 Ibid.
28 Auditor General for Wales, Integrated Care Fund, July 2019. Page 42

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/cardiff_vale_regional_partnership_board_english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/integrated-care-fund-report-eng.pdf


page 39 Well-Being of Future Generations report

73 The disparity in resourcing these two related partnerships has also been 
identified as an issue by the Commissioner, who reported that it has:

‘…meant that the attention of Health Board staff is often diverted from 
the work of Public Services Boards to Regional Partnership Boards, 
where the scope of improving well-being is more limited’.29

This is due to the PSB having broader representation and the potential to 
influence the wider determinants of health.30

74 Some public bodies can also struggle with the capacity to work in 
partnership, both at a strategic and operational level. Our ‘year one’ report 
highlighted the difficulties that smaller bodies and national bodies face 
when engaging with PSBs.

Assessing the impact and effectiveness of collaboration

75 We found that some public bodies needed to ensure they could assess 
the impact of an activity and progress towards well-being objectives. 
However, the challenges of measuring long-term, preventative impacts 
that have already been outlined clearly also relate to measuring the impact 
of collaborative activities. 

76 We also highlighted opportunities for public bodies to assess the 
effectiveness of their collaborative activity. We saw a few examples 
of public bodies doing this through citizen stories, scrutiny and formal 
evaluation. Public bodies need to understand whether their collaborations 
are delivering what was originally intended, whether they are still fit for 
purpose and how they can strengthen partnership working in future.

77 Our review of PSBs found that scrutiny arrangements were ‘too 
inconsistent and variable’, and that ‘despite some positive and effective 
work to embed and make scrutiny truly effective, more work is required to 
ensure a consistent level of performance and impact’.31

78 Similarly, our report on the Integrated Care Fund found that ‘despite some 
positive examples, the overall impact of the fund on improving outcomes 
for services users remains unclear’.32

29 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Progress towards the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act, October 2019.

30 Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Future Generations Report, May 2020. 
31 Ibid.
32 Ibid. Page 43



page 40 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – North Powys Well-Being Programme,  
Powys County Council and Powys Teaching Health Board

The North Powys Wellbeing Programme (NPWBP) is focused 
on the development of a new integrated delivery model in 
North Powys. It brings partners together across health, social 
care and the third sector with linkages to education, housing, 
leisure, police and ambulance services.
The scope of the NPWBP includes working with local 
communities to co-design, test and deliver a new integrated 
model to a rural population. The programme has taken a 
robust and innovative approach to gathering and visualising 
Health and Social Care data. An example of this is the  
Well-being Information bank, and the North Powys Population 
Assessment which is available online here. The intention is 
to use the visualised data to help engage stakeholders and 
citizens in the development of the NPWBP.
View the report here.

Page 44

https://sway.office.com/K5dOVVrDpXhCYGcy?ref=link
https://www.audit.wales/node/5803


page 41 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(GMCA): Cost Benefit Analysis Tool for Partnerships

The GMCA is made up of ten local authorities and the Mayor of 
Greater Manchester, who work with other partners, and serve a 
city region of 2.8 million people. The GMCA has also had a series 
of ‘devolution deals’, giving the region more powers and control of 
budgets.
The GMCA sought to develop a rigorous means of understanding how 
benefits – whether to the public, the public purse, the planet or the 
wider economy – are likely to be accrued by different organisations 
and communities. The GMCA worked with New Economy to produce 
its ‘Partnerships Cost Benefit Analysis’ (CBA) model, which helps them 
consider the value for money offered by different interventions that 
might otherwise be difficult to compare. It quantifies economic benefits 
and social benefits, including improved health and well-being. It helps 
inform decisions by showing how money flows between organisations 
that invest and those that accrue the benefits. 
The CBA model has been used by different sectors and applied  
to different issues. For more information follow this link.

33 See also recommendation 3 in our Review of Public Services Boards report.

Things for public bodies to think about…

• Working with the appropriate range of partners to ensure they can 
deliver a wider range of benefits, including system-wide approaches  
to prevention.

• Assessing the effectiveness of collaboration, determining whether it 
is delivering intended outcomes and using the learning to help them 
improve.

• The Welsh Government should consider how it can better incentivise 
and enable public bodies (including via funding flows) to work together 
to deliver national strategic priorities.33

Page 45

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/research/research-cost-benefit-analysis/


page 42 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Public bodies 
must…

Take account of 
the importance 
of involving 
people with 
an interest in 
achieving the 
well-being goals 
and ensuring 
they reflect the 
diversity of the 
population.

Public bodies could demonstrate this by…

• Understanding who needs to be involved,  
and why.

• Reflecting on how well the needs and challenges 
facing those people are currently understood.

• Working co-productively with stakeholders to 
design and deliver.

• Seeing views of stakeholders as vital information 
to help deliver better outcomes. 

• Ensuring the full diversity of stakeholders is 
represented and that they are able to take part.

• Having mature and trusting relationships with its 
stakeholders. 

• Sharing with stakeholders in an open and 
transparent way.

• Ensuring stakeholders understand the impact of 
their contribution.

• Seeking feedback from key stakeholders which is 
used to help learn and improve.

Why it’s important: Involvement can help public bodies understand what 
people might need and want now and in the future; how they can effectively 
tackle the root causes of problems; and how they can identify opportunities 
to deliver a broader range of benefits. 

Involvement

The expectation

What we found: Public bodies are often not creating opportunities for 
citizens to be involved from the early stages of design through to evaluation 
and they need to do more to involve the full diversity of the population.

Page 46



page 43 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Involvement: What and when?

79 The definition of involvement in the Act and 
guidance challenges public bodies to go further 
by ‘involving people in decisions that affect 
them’.34 This suggests an open, iterative and 
shared process – a progression from seeking 
more narrowly defined information at a set point 
in time. It suggests that public bodies should 
speak to people early and look for opportunities to 
involve them in delivery through to evaluation.

80 We found many examples of public bodies 
seeking the views of the public and stakeholders 
to help inform their activities. These examples 
were often consultation and engagement 
exercises, aimed at gathering views on specific 
issues as part of the process of designing a 
given activity. Public bodies were speaking to 
established forums and networks to engage 
with specific groups. In some cases, they were 
drawing on the expertise of others to help them 
connect with the public, recognising that they 
were not always best placed to do it themselves.  

81 We found some examples of bodies involving 
the public early, working with them to shape the 
design of new services or buildings. Taken one 
step further, public bodies could consider how 
they involve people in ‘problem definition’, i.e. 
what they are trying to solve and why. This could 
help them better understand the root causes of 
problems and help identify preventative solutions 
that improve well-being. Early involvement can 
also help to deliver better value for money by 
ensuring public bodies design services that people 
want and need and that they get it right first time.

Conwy County Borough Council 
has worked with families to 
design family centres. 

Families have helped shape 
the concept of the family 
centre; the location of centres 
and the services they offer; 
and the way centres measure 
outcomes.

View the report here.

34 Welsh Government ‘Shared Purpose: Shared Future’ – statutory guidance on the  
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, 2016. Page 47

https://www.audit.wales/publication/conwy-county-borough-council-well-being-future-generations-examination


page 44 Well-Being of Future Generations report

82 Some public bodies are using the language of 
‘co-production’, which is a more radical approach 
to working with others, characterised by sharing 
power and responsibility.35 We examined some 
steps where people and community groups were 
directly involved with delivering solutions. We 
saw a few notable examples in NHS bodies, 
where patients and former patients share their 
experiences to inform others or champion certain 
issues. There were other examples of public 
bodies recruiting volunteers and working with 
community groups. 

83 We saw a few examples where public bodies 
were working directly with individuals to involve 
them in decisions about their well-being and the 
services they receive, often taking a ‘strengths-
based’ approach. This included ‘what matters’ 
conversations undertaken as part of work under 
the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014.36 Our report The ‘Front Door’ to Adult 
Social Care also found that local authorities are 
making good progress.

‘…and there has been a positive change in 
focus to strengths-based assessments, ‘what 
matters’ conversations and citizens have voice, 
choice and control’.37

84 We found a few examples of public bodies 
seeking and responding to views on a routine 
basis. This included creating opportunities for ‘real 
time’ feedback, often using digital technology. 
However, we also challenged bodies to consider 
how they could continually seek and respond 
to the views of service users and communities. 
Public bodies should make sure that people who 
use their services can comment and contribute to 
their ongoing improvement.

35 The Coproduction Network for Wales defines co-production as: 
 ‘… an asset-based approach to public services that enables people providing and people 

receiving services to share power and responsibility, and to work together in equal, reciprocal 
and caring relationships. It creates opportunities for people to access support when they 
need it, and to contribute to social change.’

36 ‘The 2014 Act and its Codes require practitioners to work with individuals as equals – sharing 
power and esteem by co-producing the ‘what matters’ conversation’. Social Care Wales. 

37 Auditor General for Wales, The ‘Front Door’ to Adult Social Care, September 2019. 

Hywel Dda Health Board’s 
Education Programmes 
for Patients (EPP) offers 
educational opportunities for 
people to implement changes 
to improve their health and 
wellbeing particularly those 
living with a long-term/chronic 
condition and that of their 
families. Staff and volunteers 
work together to deliver the 
programme. Volunteers are 
recruited to provide their 
personal perspective; for 
example, in relation to mental 
health, disability, substance 
misuse, and gender identity.

Page 48

https://socialcare.wales/service-improvement/what-matters-conversations-and-assessment


page 45 Well-Being of Future Generations report

85 Overall, we sense that most public bodies are still consulting and engaging 
more often than involving. Similarly, our review of PSBs found that they 
have ‘tended to follow traditional approaches focused on informing rather 
than involving’.38

86 The definition may be more stretching, but there has been a longstanding 
drive to encourage a more responsive, citizen-centred public service in 
Wales. Existing legislative requirements, alongside the Citizen-Centred 
Governance Principles, National Principles for Public Engagement and 
the National Participation Standards for Children and Young People 
should have provided a good foundation for public bodies to carry out 
‘involvement’. However, findings from our examinations and other reviews, 
and from work conducted by the Commissioner show that there remains 
more to do. 

87 Public bodies and PSBs need to consider how they make the shift to a 
more open, responsive and inclusive way of working with others. The 
level of actual involvement will vary, but the Act requires public bodies to 
challenge themselves to look for opportunities to involve others throughout 
design and delivery. 

Involvement: Who?

88 We challenged many public bodies to involve a broader range of people 
in design and delivery. We highlighted some instances where certain 
stakeholders who could add value had not yet been involved. We also 
identified opportunities for public bodies to go beyond involving partner 
organisations, community groups or even current service users and speak 
directly to the public, or those who might use a service or facility in future. 

89 We found many examples where public bodies needed to do more to 
involve the full diversity of the population. They need to think about how 
they can best involve vulnerable people and those with different protected 
characteristics, recognising that decisions and activities will impact 
different people differently.39 To do this they need to understand the make-
up of their populations, use appropriate methods and build sufficient time 
into the process.

90 Public bodies have opportunities to connect involvement to their equality 
duties, which include engagement and carrying out equality impact 
assessments. This would help ensure they are listening to different voices 
and reflecting them in their decisions.  

38 Auditor General for Wales, Review of Public Services Boards, October 2019. 
39 The Equality Act 2010 sets out nine protected characteristics; age, disability, gender 

reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion  
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Page 49

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf


page 46 Well-Being of Future Generations report

91 Public bodies should also ensure they review the effectiveness of their 
involvement activity. They could review the rate and diversity of responses 
and ask for feedback on the quality of the process to help learn lessons for 
the future. The numbers of people involved might be an important measure, 
but public bodies should also review the outcomes of involvement. This 
could include the impact and people’s experience of the process.

Case study – Cardiff Council: Working with others to 
develop the ‘big ideas’ for sustainable travel

In March 2018 the council launched its Green Paper on Transport and 
Clean Air containing 18 ‘big ideas’ for the future of transport in the city. 
These ideas included a wide range of initiatives such as; the ‘Future 
of the Metro and buses’, ‘Clean Air Zones’, a ‘comprehensive cycle 
super-highway and primary cycle route network’ and ‘autonomous 
vehicles’. One of the main drivers for this work was research from 
the local public health team that clearly showed that investment in 
sustainable and active travel has both short and long-term preventative 
benefits on the environment and on health and well-being. 
These are potentially big changes, which could be unpopular with 
some, so the council wanted to engage its citizens in helping to 
prioritise the initiatives. In early 2018 it undertook an extensive, 
independent and well-resourced consultation process. This included 
a survey which received over 3,500 responses, face-to-face 
conversations with seldom-heard groups and sessions as part of 
geography lessons in secondary schools. The results have directly 
informed the Transport and Clean Air White Paper published in 2019.
For more information on Cardiff’s approach to sustainable travel and 
clean air service please follow this link to the council’s Green Paper. 
View the report here.

Page 50

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/resident/Parking-roads-and-travel/transport-and-clean-air-green-paper/Documents/Cardiff%27s%20Transport%20and%20Clean%20Air%20Green%20Paper.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/publication/cardiff-council-well-being-future-generations-examination


page 47 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Case study – Amgueddfa Cymru: Involving others in the 
future of St. Fagans

Amgueddfa Cymru set up ‘participatory forums’ and other 
collaborative ways of working to involve people in redeveloping 
St. Fagans National Museum of History. The forums have given 
a large number of people, from different backgrounds, the 
opportunity to genuinely shape work at the museum. 
This approach won the ‘Art Fund Museum of the Year Award’ in 
2019 and was described by the chair of judges as ‘a monument 
to modern museum democracy… a major development project 
involving the direct participation of hundreds of thousands of 
visitors and volunteers, putting the arts of making and building into 
fresh contexts’.
View the report here.

Things for public bodies to think about…

• Involving others throughout planning and decision-making, from 
the early stages of defining problems through to delivering and 
evaluating the solutions.

• Creating opportunities for people who are likely to be affected to 
be involved. This means current and potential service users and 
the full diversity of the population. 

• Asking for feedback, learning and improving involvement.

Page 51

https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/1544A2019-20_Amgueddfa Cymru_WFG examination_Eng.pdf


page 48 Well-Being of Future Generations report

What’s next for public bodies?

The challenges ahead

92 The Act is intended to bring about changes in culture and practice that will 
help public bodies address the major challenges facing Wales, both now 
and over the long term. Findings from our 2018 report suggest that most 
public bodies recognise that the Act should indeed be central to what they 
do, and that it can help them in designing and delivering more sustainable 
services and better outcomes.40

93 This initial 2015-2020 reporting period has been a time of very 
considerable change, during which a combination of significant economic, 
political and social factors have affected trends, strategies and plans. New 
issues and challenges – some foreseen, and others unexpected – have 
appeared or have risen in prominence. One constant factor has been the 
rising demand pressures on public services, despite some recent easing 
of the public finance austerity that began in 2008. For Wales in 2020, 
grappling with the immediate and unprecedented emergency pressures 
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the challenges and problems facing public 
services are complex and immense. 

94 Exhibit 5 looks ahead at the next reporting period (2020-2025), giving an 
overview of four of the major challenges that those leading Welsh public 
services will have to address.

95 In the next reporting period, we will expect to see public bodies using the 
framework of the Act to address these and other challenges. When we 
look at the setting of well-being objectives, we will expect these key trends 
to have been considered. When developing our audit work programmes, 
we will consider the significance of activities and the contribution they 
make to meeting well-being objectives.

So, what’s next?

40 Auditor General for Wales Reflecting on Year One: How Have Public Bodies Responded 
to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015? May 2018.Page 52



page 49 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Exhibit 5 – four defining challenges for Welsh public services from 2020-25

Climate change and biodiversity loss

Climate change is increasingly a defining 
issue in public and political debate, as 
countries across the world struggle to meet 
their commitments to reduce carbon emissions. 
The Welsh Ministers and 11 local authorities have 
declared a ‘climate emergency’, and the Welsh 
Government has stated its ambition for the Welsh 
public sector to be carbon neutral by 2030.
We depend on biodiversity in a number of ways, 
including regulating the climate and reducing the 
impact of natural hazards, such as the devastating 
flooding experienced in South Wales in February 
2020. But biodiversity is declining faster than ever 
before and the World Economic Forum included major 
biodiversity loss and ecosystem collapse as one of its 
top three global risks in 2020.41

A key challenge will be how the Welsh Government 
and other public bodies can ensure a fair transition to 
a low carbon economy, and how they can protect the 
most disadvantaged from the effects of climate 
change and biodiversity loss.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

The Covid-19 crisis response is necessarily
focused on saving lives and putting in 
place measures to reduce the immediate 
economic impacts on businesses and individuals. 
The wider implications of the crisis are extremely 
complex and are likely to have wide-ranging and 
long-lasting consequences, particularly for the most 
vulnerable.
Public bodies already appear likely to come through 
this period with even stronger collaborative 
relationships, having supported each other with 
dedication and ingenuity in the face of the crisis. This 
should stand them in good stead to tackle the 
medium and longer-term impacts. The framework of 
the Act can help build the foresight and resilience that 
can ensure bodies are well-placed to plan for and 
respond to emergencies.

Tackling inequality

Inequality continues to be a particularly 
important issue in Wales. There remains 
a ‘stark gap between the experiences and 
opportunities of different people, particularly 
people born into poverty, disabled people, 
and some ethnic minority groups in Wales’.42

Evidence shows that health inequalities have 
continued to grow.43 Homelessness has risen 
dramatically since 2015-16, despite spend on 
homelessness increasing. Public bodies will 
need to do even more to improve well-being for 
disadvantaged groups, against a challenging social 
and economic backdrop as Wales grapples with the 
medium and longer-term effects of the COVID-19 
emergency.

The UK’s departure from the European Union

The UK’s departure from the European 
Union is an historic event and one that will 
have a very significant impact across the 
entire public sector, including here in Wales. 
Whilst negotiations on the nature of the UK’s future 
relationship with the European Union continue, much 
remains uncertain. However, the risks of ‘no-deal’ 
appear considerable and, whatever the eventual 
outcome, the immediate, medium and longer-term 
effects will all need to be carefully managed.44

When considered in combination with the 
still-developing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the resultant pressures on public services and 
economies across the globe, it is clear that the UK’s 
new trading status will pose a wide range of new 
challenges, risks and opportunities. 

41 ‘Top risks are environmental, but ignore economics and they’ll be harder to fix’,  
World Economic Forum 15 January 2020.

42 Equality and Human Rights Commission, Is Wales Fairer? 2018.
43 Public Health Wales, Life Expectancy and Mortality in Wales, 2020.
44 Auditor General for Wales, Preparations in Wales for a ‘no-deal’ Brexit, February 2019.Page 53

https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2020/01/what-s-missing-from-the-2020-global-risks-report/


page 50 Well-Being of Future Generations report

What’s next for the Well-being of Future Generations Act?
96 Public services are changing. The Local Government and Elections 

(Wales) Bill proposes significant changes in governance, including a 
general power of competence for local authorities and the establishment 
of joint committees. These changes will sit within an already complex 
system of local and regional partnerships, which span different sectors 
and geographies. Public bodies are operating in a complex environment, 
seeking to navigate these arrangements to address multifaceted problems.

97 The Well-being of Future Generations Act has the potential to provide 
a common purpose and consistent culture, to simplify some of this 
complexity. However, five years on from its enactment, we have learned a 
lot about the Act and its practical workings. 

98 Public bodies will need to use the Act when addressing the major 
challenges outlined in Exhibit 5. To do so effectively, the barriers to 
successful implementation described in this, and the Commissioner’s, 
report will need to be overcome. Early consideration of how this can 
be achieved, by the Senedd and the Welsh Government after the next 
election, would help Wales remain at the forefront of actions to improve 
well-being and maintain its reputation as a global leader on sustainable 
development. 

Recommendation 1

The Auditor General therefore recommends that:
• The Senedd and the Welsh Government should give post-legislative 

consideration to the Act to explore:
a. how the barriers to successful implementation described in this 

report, and that of the Commissioner, can be overcome; and
b. how Wales can remain at the forefront of actions to improve  

well-being.

Page 54



page 51 Well-Being of Future Generations report

99 The public sector landscape has also changed since the original 
designation of the 44 bodies under the Act, and the schedule of 
designation could usefully be revisited. The Act requires a collective and 
co-ordinated effort across the public sector. However;

• several new public bodies have been established since 2015 but have 
not been designated under the Act;45 and

• other pre-existing bodies (such as the Wales Ambulance Service NHS 
Trust) may also warrant designation.

Recommendation 2

The Auditor General therefore recommends that:
• The Welsh Government considers whether additional public bodies 

should be designated by Order to be subject to the Act.

45 The new bodies include: Health Education and Improvement Wales, Social Care Wales and 
the Welsh Revenue Authority.

What’s next for our audit approach?
100 We are continuing to involve and collaborate to ensure our examination 

methodology adds value. We will soon be seeking feedback on the 
approach taken so far.

101 We will have discussions with stakeholders, including the Commissioner, 
to help inform the strategic direction of our work under the Act from 
2020-2025. We intend to invite views on our proposals through a formal 
consultation, which will launch at an appropriate point later in 2020.

Page 55



page 52 Well-Being of Future Generations report

1 Examination methodology

Appendix

Page 56



page 53 Well-Being of Future Generations report

1 Examination methodology

• The evidence base for this report is drawn from a wide range of sources, 
including relevant value for money examinations undertaken and 
published by the Auditor General in the period 2015-2020:

 − The Effectiveness of Local Planning Authorities in Wales,  
June 2019

 − The ‘Front Door’ to Adult Social Care, September 2019

 − Integrated Care Fund, July 2019

 − Preparations in Wales for a ‘no-deal’ Brexit, February 2019

 − Reflecting on Year One: How Have Public Bodies Responded  
to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015?,  
May 2018

 − Review of Public Services Boards, October 2019

 − The Well-being of Young People, September 2019

• However, the bulk of the evidence is derived from the specific 
examinations that we conducted at all 44 public bodies named in the Act:

Our examinations of the 44 public bodies

• We undertook a total of 71 examinations across the 44 public bodies.  
In local government, fire and rescue authorities and national parks 
we carried out examinations in both 2018-19 and 2019-20 as part of 
our programmes of audit work. At the other bodies we carried out an 
examination in either 2018-19 or 2019-20. 

• For each of these examinations, we selected a single ‘step’ that the body 
was taking to meet its well-being objectives. At the Welsh Government 
itself, we examined three separate steps to ensure appropriate coverage 
of its main delivery groups.

• In considering the extent to which bodies acted in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle in taking steps to meet their well-being 
objectives, we also sought to understand the corporate context in which 
‘steps’ are being taken. This information will also help inform our future 
planning.  

Page 57

https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/planning-services-2019-full-report-english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/Front-door-to-adult-social-care-english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/integrated-care-fund-report-eng.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/preparations-in-wales-no-deal-brexit-english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/reflecting-on-year-one-2018-english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/reflecting-on-year-one-2018-english.pdf
https://audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/publication/well-being-of-young-people


page 54 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Method

The table below describes our core activities for each examination:

Activity Description

Planning In discussion with each public body, we identified an 
appropriate ‘step’ for detailed examination.

Fieldwork scoping 
workshop 

We ran a structured workshop at the beginning of our 
fieldwork to understand: 

• why key officers/members/other stakeholders involved 
in designing and delivering the step/activity did so in the 
way that they did.

• what they felt they achieved and what they learned. 
Specifically, considering how they had applied the five 
ways of working.

The output from this workshop was a narrative informed by 
attendees’ contributions, which formed an important part of 
our audit evidence.

Document reviews We reviewed documents relevant to the delivery of the 
selected step.

Interviews We conducted interviews and focus groups to seek the views 
of a wide cross-section of staff and other stakeholders.

Feedback and response 
workshop

We ran a workshop where we shared our findings to promote 
discussion and encourage the body to reflect on what 
we found, then develop its own improvement actions in 
response.

Summary report These reports included: 

• a summary of the key findings from the examination 
grouped under each of the five ways of working; and 

• the actions the body decided upon in response to 
our findings, agreed at the Feedback and Response 
workshop.

We reserved the right to make proposals for improvement in 
addition to the action identified by the body.

Page 58



page 55 Well-Being of Future Generations report

Main examination questions

The table below sets out the main questions we sought to answer in 
undertaking this examination, and these centred on the ‘five ways of working’:

To what extent has the body acted in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle when taking the step?

1 To what extent has the body considered how the step will meet 
short-term and long-term need? 

2 To what extent has the body considered how the step will prevent 
problems from occurring or getting worse? 

3 To what extent has the body considered the need to take an 
integrated approach in delivering the step? 

4 To what extent has the body taken account of the need to 
collaborate in delivering the step? 

5 To what extent has the body taken account of the need to involve 
the right people and ensure those people represent the diversity  
of the population?

Reporting on the examinations

• The findings from each examination were set out in a report. These reports 
also included the bodies’ actions in response to our findings. 

• This report provides an overview of the diverse findings, important themes 
and main learning points from those examinations. It does not set out 
definitive conclusions on the performance of each body, sector or of the  
44 public bodies as a whole.

Page 59



Audit Wales

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff 

CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500

Textphone: 029 2032 0660

We welcome telephone calls in  
Welsh and English.

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Page 60

mailto:info%40audit.wales?subject=info%40audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales


Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 31 January 2020

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 31ST JANUARY, 2020

PRESENT:

Blaenau Gwent

Carmarthenshire
Cllr Andrew James

Powys

Monmouthshire
Cllr Ann Webb

Merthyr Tydfil

Rhondda Cynon Taff

Torfaen

Members appointed by the Welsh Government

Mr James Marsden and Mrs Sue Holden

In Attendance

Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive
Elaine Standen, Finance Manager
Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager
Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager

Apologies

Cllr G Thomas, Cllr McIntosh and Cllr Madge

Page 61

Agenda Item 3



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 31 January 2020

1/20 Correspondence 

The Chair welcomed members and officers to the meeting and also welcome Helen 
Cargill from the Authority’s internal auditors TIAA.  She asked that best wishes be sent to 
Cllr Graham Thomas who was unable to attend today.

2/20 Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made.

3/20 Minutes 

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 25 October 2019 be 
approved and the Chair authorised to sign them as a 
correct record.

4/20 Action Tracking 

Members considered the outstanding actions from previous meetings and highlighted the 
need to draw up an action plan from the final version of the Climate Change Position 
Statement. Actions should then appear in project plans as well as the Corporate Plan.  
The Chief Executive advised that officers had hoped to bring the draft Corporate Plan to 
the Authority on 11 February but this had been delayed by the need to allocate resources 
to addressing the unfunded pressures money from the Welsh Government.

5/20 Public Speaking Scheme 

No requests to speak had been made.

6/20 Q3 Budget Performance 

The Finance Manager presented the Quarter 3 budget report and referred to the 
additional £611,000 from Welsh Government to be spend or committed before the end 
of the financial year.  She advised this was a significant burden on staff during the change 
programme and would need to be managed to avoid any impact on delivery.  Some 
strategic decisions were needed in order to be able to spend money available for 
mitigating the impact of climate change.  She also advised that variance might creep in 
partly due to key posts missing due to the change programme.  Officers were working on 
new projects, building on existing projects to avoid endangering delivery.  It was suggested 
that funding might be delegated to external partners to deliver on climate change and the 
Chief Executive agreed that there was potential to do this. He highlighted the issue that 
additional funding was capital rather than revenue and any agreement to change this 
would need to be negotiated with Welsh Government. Members stressed the need for a 
more strategic method of delivering projects in a short space of time and assessing which 
were not top priority.  It was noted that the Welsh Park Chief Executives were talking to 
Welsh Government about the length of budget cycles which needed to be longer term. 
 

Page 62



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 3 31 January 2020

A member concluded that the organisation was constipated due to its culture, lack of 
empowerment or will on part of some officers, and chronic lack of forward business 
planning despite the high level direction agreed on 29 Oct 2019.
 
Members questioned the methodology used on the monitoring report and did not accept 
that a project with zero expenditure could be classed as on track.  There was a need to 
plan capital expenditure long term, linked to vision and strategic direction to deliver 
purposes and duty.  The current delays in preparing the State of the Park Report (SOPR) 
and National Park Management Plan were not acceptable.  The IT and Systems Manager 
advised that he had attempted to give an update on this at the Authority meeting in 
December but there had not been time.  He was acutely aware of the need to progress.  
He advised that the Senior Leadership Group was working on project ideas to score, set 
against funding opportunities to plan longer term and ensure a realistic approach to 
delivery.  The Chief Executive advised that the Nature Landscapes Partnership had 
potential for significant sums to deliver on green infrastructure, and this would be the 
focus of the bid.  He noted the comments on the culture of the organisation and would 
review this. 
 
The Finance Manager explained the methodology for the colour coding in the budget 
report which was based on quarterly budget profiling and expressed confidence that 
projects would be delivered.  She acknowledged the piecemeal portfolio of projects and 
said confidence and certainty was needed that officers would be here in 12 months to 
deliver.  Members did not accept the explanation, nor the personal assurances that 
projects would be delivered, and did not accept that uncertainty was a valid reason for 
projects not being progressed. A number of projects should be assessed as red rather 
than green and it was the Finance Manager’s job to do this. A member felt that while staff 
were employed they must deliver, never mind the future.  
 
A member concluded that the report on resources showed there is scope to do 
something dramatic in a strategic direction with strategic leadership.  He cited the 
example of Meithrin Mynydd where there had been zero spend as a symptom of the 
cultural problem.  A member urged officers to think creatively about capital versus 
revenue and suggested that perfectionism could be a problem in the Authority and 
projects had a tendency to get bogged down in tenders and mapping exercises.  Officers 
assured members that the team did take opportunities and that this culture was needed 
across the organisation.  A member suggested that there were things that could be 
effected quickly by approaching landowners to capitalise on their ability to manage land to 
deliver our priorities, including fencing and woodland regeneration.
 
Referring to the draft budget for 2020/21 presented at the Authority meeting on 24 
January a member said that this needed substantive work and should be deferred until the 
Authority meeting on 31 March.  The Chief Executive advised that that the budget needed 
to be approved at the Authority meeting on 11 February in order to issue the levy to 
constituent authorities.
 

RESOLVED:  Not to accept the Quarter 3 budget 
monitoring report. 

7/20 Pension Fund Triennial Valuation 

Page 63



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 4 31 January 2020

Members noted the Pension Fund Triennial Valuation which would result in a £50,000 
saving for the next three years.
 

RESOLVED:  That the contents of the enclosed reports be 
accepted by the Committee

8/20 Wales Audit Annual Audit Letter 

Members received the Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19.  A member asked about the level 
of reserves and whether resources could be spent on projects that could ideally bring a 
return on investment or attract match funding.
 
The Finance Manager advised that the level of reserves should not fall below £500,000 but 
approximately £300,000 could be redeployed. In response to a question about whether 
members could instruct officer to reallocate Welsh Government capital funding to 
revenue the Chief Executive advise that this would need discussion with Welsh 
Government and a clear audit trail.
 
A member said that it would be difficult for the Authority to approve the budget on 11 
February as he felt there was a lack of a detailed action plan and strategic direction.  
There needed to be an intense period of action and delivery planning with proposals 
presented to the Authority on 31 March giving assurance as to how the budget would be 
spent.  The IT and Systems Manager explained that officers were currently working on 
this and wasn’t clear what was missing.  The member felt it bizarre that given the 
directives from the Welsh Government and Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 
that the budget proposed to spend five times the resources on the second purpose than 
on the first purpose.  A member cautioned against reducing the reserves unless spend was 
certain to bring a return.  She suggested that the Policy Working Group might discussion 
this as a strategy.
 
The Chief Executive reiterated the need to have an approved budget in order to issue the 
levy. The draft budget presented to the Authority on 24 January made assumptions about 
the original change programme, and he had now set out some alternatives.
 

RESOLVED:  That the committee receives the Annual 
Audit Letter

9/20 Internal Audit progress report Q3 

Ms Cargill presented the third quarter Block 2 internal audit report and went through the 
outstanding actions.  At the next meeting she would present her annual report which 
would give an overall opinion of risk controls.  This was the final year of TIAA’s contract 
with the Authority and she advised that the company was also working for Pembrokeshire 
Coast National Park Authority and she would be discussing any opportunities that this 
might present.
 
A member asked whether the audit of health and safety had elicited any complaints of 
bullying, and Ms Cargill advised that they did not do a detailed audit of wellbeing but could 
consider this in future given the priority currently being given to mental health.
 

Page 64



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 5 31 January 2020

A question was also asked about the Authority’s lone working policy and received details 
of some of the procedures in place.  The Chief Executive would advise further.  A 
member asked about outstanding actions on the recruitment policy and what she 
preferred to call the reward and benefit policy, which she felt would be better done now 
than waiting for the change programme to be implemented.  The Chief Executive would 
raise this with the HR consultant when appointed.
 

RESOLVED:
 
a)  That Members receive the internal auditor’s report;
b) That outstanding actions be noted.

10/20 Performance and Risk review - quarter 3 

The IT and Systems Manager presented the Quarter 3 performance and risk report and 
thanked colleagues for the data they had supplied.  He advised that Ffynnon would cease 
at the end of June and an alternative reporting mechanism would need to be found that 
met specifications of members and officers, which would join performance and risk, 
connected to objectives and using a more engaging way to present information, which 
would replace the three reports before members today.
 
A member objected to some of the comments in the report which explained performance 
levels which he did not feel to be appropriate.  He criticised the inconsistent reporting in 
terms of colour coding and while he liked the format, it was not yet fit for purposed as 
there was no baseline or smart objectives.  The officer responded that this would be a 
matter for the Chief Executive and his new Corporate Governance Team to address but 
he was confident that they could deliver an effective new system.
 
A member felt that if these comments were not the collective view of the Corporate 
Governance Team then they were not appropriate to be put in the public domain.  She 
was disappointed that the Chief Executive had not monitored the comments.  The Chief 
Executive said that while he had reviewed it he had not scrutinised it in detail, although 
there were some comments that he agreed with.
 
The point was made by one member that he found it disrespectful of officers to bring a 
report of insufficient quality; he referred to one example of first purpose work where 
discussions had taken place but no actions or impacts recorded.  Officers acknowledged 
the need for better wording and noted members’ comments that both the progress and 
the outcomes needed to be measured, and said that this would be addressed when 
designing the new system.
 
Members opted to receive the report only.

11/20 Complaints, Freedom of Information and Compliments 

Members received reports updated since the last meeting.

12/20 Role of Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

Page 65



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 6 31 January 2020

The Democratic Services Manager advised that both internal and external audit 
recommended a review of effectiveness of committees as a matter of good governance.  
There was general agreement that the remit was appropriate and she had witnessed a 
significant level of challenge earlier in the meeting, but she asked for members’ views on 
their role and whether they felt they needed any further development or support.
 
A member felt the role was simple, to provide assurance to the Authority that available 
resources were being aligned to achieve purposes and duty and the needs of external 
policy drivers against meaningful, measurable target that were reported transparently with 
evidence with a clear baseline.  If the committee was doing this then there was no need 
for additional scrutiny studies.  In line with points he had made earlier in the meeting he 
felt it was difficult for the committee to do this.
 
Officers said that this could be turned round and the member offered to help.  
 
One member felt that some additional guidance to officers on the RAG (Red, Amber 
Green) system in terms of percentages would give greater consistency for members to 
analyse.  The Chair of Governance and Member Development Working Group felt that 
there had been confusion amongst some members in the governance survey about what 
the committee did.  She agreed that they did not need to carry out scrutiny but they 
could improve the quality of performance reporting and urged officers to think about the 
context of reporting and consider benchmarking with other organisations.

13/20 Election of Interim Deputy Chair of Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

The Democratic Services Manager advised that committee member Ian Rowat, who was 
currently Deputy Chair, would be finishing his term of office on 31 March 2020. This 
would need an interim appointment of Deputy Chair.  The Chair invited nominations.
 

RESOLVED:  That Cllr A James be appointed interim 
Deputy Chair of Audit and Scrutiny Committee from 1 
April 2020 until the Annual General Meeting of the 
Authority on 26 June 2020.
 

The Chair thanked Mr Rowat for his hard work over the last eight years. Members would 
have a further opportunity to recognise his contribution at the Authority meeting on 31 
March.

14/20 Other Business 

The Chair advised that there was no further business and closed the meeting.

Signed as a correct record
Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Page 66



Review of Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

1.0  Introduction 

The 2019/20 draft Statement of Accounts, produced in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards as interpreted by CIPFA and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations, 
was published on the website on 3 June.  The statutory deadline for accounts approval would 
normally be 31 July 2020.  In recognition of the impact of Covid19, this has been deferred until 
the Autumn, to allow authorities and Wales Audit additional time to complete the accounts and 
audit process.  The authorized draft is presented here to the Committee to provide an 
opportunity to consider the document before it is published on the Authority’s website.

The audited statement will be approved by the authority in the Autumn at a date to be 
confirmed with Wales Audit and will be accompanied by the corporate plan report on the 
2019/20 financial year.

CIPFA Accounting Standards - impact on the presentation of the Authority’s draft 
income and expenditure and balance sheet.

The Accounting Standards are applied across all private and public sector bodies with the aim 
of increasing the comparability and consistency of accounts internationally and between sectors.  
The body which sets the standards for local authority accounting in the UK (The Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, CIPFA) effectively prescribes the format in which 
authorities must produce the accounts and, although National Park Authorities are much 
smaller bodies, they are required to follow the same format and timetable for production and 
audit.    In some instances the Regulations require a different accounting treatment from that 
specified in the Standards and, where this is the case, adjustments have been made and 
explained in the Statement as required by CIPFA.  

Report to: Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 24 July 2020
Report Author: Elaine Standen

Finance Manager
Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report: To present the draft Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 published 
on the Authority’s website.

Enclosures (a) 1) Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Background Papers None 

Recommendation a) That Members note the contents of the report and the 
Draft Statement as enclosed. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Statement of Accounts Approval Process

The timeline for the production, audit, public inspection and approval by Members of the 
Accounting Statement is below 

23/6/20: The draft Statement of Accounts was signed off by the Chief Financial Officer 
(Section 151 Officer).  A copy was submitted to Wales Audit (WA).  Draft 
Statement sent for translation before a copy can be placed on the Authority’s 
website.

3/8/20: Members of the public are entitled to examine the accounts and supporting 
information on request.  They can make an appointment to discuss any aspect of 
the Statement with the Auditor.  

25/6/20: Wales Audit review content and presentation of the Accounts and identify any 
material changes which need to be made to the draft statement.   This work is being 
carried out remotely in 2020 due to the requirements of social distancing.

24/7/20 Original draft Statement presented to Audit and Scrutiny Committee.

1/9/20: Date on which Wales Audit will meet members of the public, if required, to discuss 
any aspect of the Statement of Accounts 

Tba: Audit team meet the Finance Manager to discuss the outcome of the audit and any 
accounting adjustments required.  The Finance Manager/S151 Officer makes any 
changes needed and these are reviewed by the Audit Team.  This process normally 
takes 1-2 weeks.

Tba: The revised Statement is approved by the Auditor General for Wales

Tba: NPA receives and approves the final Statement, which has been re-signed by the 
Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer).  The approved Statement is then 
signed by the Chairman and published, with the Audit Opinion via the Authority’s 
website.  The response of the Chief Executive and Chair of Audit and Scrutiny to 
the letter from Wales Audit ‘Audit enquiries to those charged with governance and 
management’ will also be presented.

1.2 Main Feature of the Statement

The Statement of Accounts comprises: 

The Narrative Report – an introduction to the Statement and comparison of actual and 
budgeted performance during the year.  The Report is not audited but must be included to 
provide the reader with some background information and analysis of financial performance in 
the year.

Page 68



The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts – which sets out the 
role of Management and Members in the production of the Statement.
The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement - the income and expenditure 
during the financial year, accompanied by notes which explain the figures in greater detail as 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.  This is supplemented by the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis which explains the adjustments between the management and financial 
accounts on a departmental basis.  
The Balance Sheet - the assets and liabilities, cash held and amounts set aside in reserves at 
the financial year-end. Notes are provided to give further details of specific balances where 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.  
The Statement of Movements in Reserves – shows the total gains and losses to the 
Authority during the year, including the effect of actuarial gains and losses on the pension fund 
and valuation gains and losses on fixed assets.  It distinguishes between usable reserves which 
represent cash funds held by the Authority and unusable reserves, which are created for 
accounting purposes only (an example being the negative Pensions Reserve, which balances to 
the Pensions Liability)
The Cash Flow Statement - expenditure and income for the financial year, excluding all 
amounts owed or receivable. Further explanation is provided in the notes to the statement.
Notes to the Statements – further details explaining, for example the purposes of reserves, 
changes in asset values and the basis used to calculate the Authority’s pension fund liability as 
well as providing further information on other material elements of the Statement.  The 
principles behind the methodologies used to produce the Statements are described in the 
Accounting Policies which constitute Note 1.  

The format of the Statement of Accounts is as laid down by the CIPFA Code of Practice and 
there is very limited scope for simplification.  There has been a joint drive to reduce the cost of 
audit both in terms of Authority staff time required to support the process and the financial 
cost of auditor time borne by the Authority.  This has led to a simplified audit process and a 
more focused audit visit, as well as an increased materiality threshold (now set at 2% of gross 
expenditure), or approximately £120,000 below which individual errors or omissions are not 
reported to the Authority.

The Statements are produced in round £000’s.  This leads to some rounding differences in 
casting across the statements arising from the complexity of the presentation required and the 
interrelationships between the various statements and notes.

1.3 Accounting differences between the Statement of Accounts and Management 
Reports

A report on the 2019/20 financial outturn for management purposes is provided in a separate 
report.  The actual cost of running the Authority as represented in the management accounts is 
prepared on a different basis to that of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as included in the Statement of Accounts.  The most significant differences between 
management reports prepared for Members and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are:

Page 69



 The treatment of the year’s pension costs; actual pension costs paid in the year are 
replaced by accounting entries based on an actuarial review of the Authority’s share of future 
earnings and liabilities of the Powys Pension Fund.   The pension cost figures for accounting 
purposes are also subject to very large fluctuations between years.  Impacting both the 
Authority’s accounting surplus and net assets/(liabilities).

 The treatment of the Authority’s net share of Powys Pension Fund assets and 
future obligations; on the Balance Sheet, the largest single item is the net liability relating to 
the Pension Fund – this is a recurring item which is calculated by the funds actuary and balanced 
in the accounts by a notional negative reserve of the same amount.  The substantial increase in 
the liability (the net difference between the long term asset values and long term liabilities of 
the pension fund is due to an increase in the present value of the Authority’s obligations under 
the Pension Scheme.

 Capital charges associated with the Authority’s Property, Plant and Equipment of 
some appear in the Statement but not in management accounts, as they are not chargeable to 
the taxpayer.

 Expenditure and income.  Internal recharges from one department to another, eg for room 
hire or stock supplied are excluded from total income figures and instead reduce the 
expenditure of the department providing the service.

 Unusable Reserves are notional amounts built up on the Balance Sheet to balance 
revaluations of property plant and equipment, pension fund liabilities, etc. they do not represent 
actual funds and can be negative.

1.5 Conclusion
The Statement of Accounts is one of the ways in which the Authority demonstrates good 
financial management and provides accountability for the way in which it has used the public 
funds entrusted to it.  The audit process is designed to ensure that the public can have 
confidence in the quality of the Statement of Accounts and to minimize the risk that the 
financial position of the Authority has been materially miss-stated.  

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Members note the contents of the report and the Draft Statement as 
published

Page 70



1Page 71



2Page 72



3Page 73



4Page 74



5Page 75



6Page 76



7Page 77



8Page 78



9Page 79



10Page 80



11Page 81



12Page 82



13

1,157 (406) 751 1,139 (198) 941

3,543 (1,258) 2,285 3,516 (1,394) 2,122

1,008 (28) 980 1,407 (62) 1,345

405 0 405 260 0 260

20 30

81 189

195 181

(4,768) (4,550)

Page 83



14Page 84



15Page 85



16Page 86



17Page 87



18Page 88



19Page 89



20Page 90



21Page 91



22Page 92



23Page 93



24Page 94



25Page 95



26Page 96



27Page 97



28Page 98



29Page 99



30Page 100



31Page 101



32Page 102



33Page 103



34Page 104



35

525 554

131 138

100 106

45 48

36 38

28 29

27 28

892 941

2,827 2,827

455 0

455 338

139 444

Page 105



36Page 106



37

Gross
Value as at
last
valuation

Surplus
Assets

Assets
under

Construction TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carried at
historic cost 0 440 1,193 729 0 141 2,503
Valued at
fair value as
at 1 April
2019 5,474 0 0 0 0 0 5,474

TOTAL 5,474 440 1,193 729 0 141 7,977

Page 107



38Page 108



39Page 109



40Page 110



41Page 111



42Page 112



43Page 113



44Page 114



45Page 115



46Page 116



47Page 117



48Page 118



49Page 119



50Page 120



51Page 121



52Page 122



53Page 123



54Page 124



55Page 125



56Page 126



57Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



1.0 Financial Outturn and Reserves Balances 2019/20
Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 24 July 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Email
elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To inform Members of the final outturn for 2019/20 and 
the reserves position.

List of  Enclosures (a) Budget Outturn 2019/20

(b) Project Scorecard 2019/20

(c) Reserve Balances at 31 March 2020

Recommendation(s) a) That Members consider the report and 
enclosures.

1.0 Introduction or Background.

The final portion of the 2019/20 financial year has been affected by the impact of Covid19 on 
the decision process relating to the change programme and on many aspects of the Authority’s 
day-to-day operations and management.  

2.0 Outturn

The significant variances are highlighted and identified in the enclosure.  Overall, the Authority 
has underspent by some £223,000.  The principal areas of variance relate to management 
vacancies, partnership project delivery being delayed by both internal and external factors, 
particularly in the Waterfalls area, and the impact on visitor centres of a decline in footfall, 
partly due to the very poor weather over the winter months, compounded by closure due to 
Covid19 in the spring.  A budget provision for future termination costs, which would potentially 
have been included in the 2019/20 accounts following possible Authority decisions on 31 
March, was not required in the event.

Page 129

Agenda Item 6



There is a substantial increase in the level of financial reserves; the current reserves position as 
at 31 March 2020 is detailed in the enclosure.  The total reserves balance stands at just under 
£4.1m, as against an anticipated opening balance for 2020/21 of just under £2.9m.  The 2020/21 
estimate includes a withdrawal of some £860,000 from earmarked reserves, mainly to finance 
project delivery.   Many of the impacts on project delivery have been relatively short term and 
will be recovered during 2020/21.  A process of carrying forward and reviewing budgets is 
underway, prior to submission of a full revised estimate to the Authority in the Autumn.

The project financial summary indicates progress on project delivery as at 31 March 2020.  

Covid19 has impacted the Authority’s financial position in the current year and increased net 
spend overall as detailed in the 20/21 first quarter budget monitoring report.  This is likely to 
absorb the additional balance carried forward from 2019/20 on the General Reserve.   

Recommendation

a) That Members consider the report and enclosures.

Page 130



Brecon Beacons Summary Report:- up to 31/03/2020

APPROVED ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 12

Costc Account

Budget less actuals &

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive
210 0 H u man Res ou rc es 66, 57 0 0 66, 57 0 7 5, 1 14 -493 7 4, 621 -8 , 0 51
210 1 L egal 63, 550 0 63, 550 7 0 , 364 0 7 0 , 364 -6, 8 14
210 2 Financ e 156, 7 90 -19, 140 137 , 650 157 , 8 69 -15, 8 15 142 , 0 55 -4, 40 5
210 3 O ffic e S ervic es 7 3, 620 -2 7 0 7 3, 350 61 , 559 -1 , 313 60 , 245 13, 1 0 5 A llpaper/pos tage/c opyingc os ts below bu d get

210 4 P oolC ars 35, 7 0 0 -35, 7 0 0 0 36, 1 0 5 -32 , 466 3, 639 -3, 639

N eed forreplac ementres erve to fu nd pu rc has e ofEV

poolc ars in fu tu re -5 yearreplac ementc yc le
2110 Training 20 , 0 0 0 0 2 0 , 0 0 0 1 7 , 7 8 3 -2 8 5 1 7 , 498 2 , 50 2
220 0 Information Tec hnology 250 , 92 0 -16, 530 234, 390 252 , 47 6 -13, 920 238 , 556 -4, 166
220 1 C ommu nic ations -Trans lation (formerly P R) 10 , 0 0 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0 11 , 257 0 11 , 257 -1 , 257
230 1 A d minis trative B u ild ings -P las Y Ffynnon 125, 0 1 0 -1 , 0 0 0 124, 0 1 0 12 7 , 325 -2 , 515 124, 8 1 0 -8 0 0
310 4 N ationalP arkM anagementP lan 39, 0 0 0 0 39, 0 0 0 1 , 950 0 1 , 950 37 , 0 50 P lan P rod u c tion d elayed
3120 P arkP lan O ffic er 46, 7 2 0 0 46, 7 2 0 23, 315 0 23, 315 23, 40 5 P os tVac antfor6 months
50 0 0 C orporate M anagement 293, 7 50 -11 , 58 0 2 8 2 , 1 7 0 254, 57 4 -11 , 58 1 242 , 993 39, 1 7 7 P os tVac antfor3 months

510 0 D emoc ratic Repres entation & M anagement 296, 1 8 0 -13, 57 4 2 8 2 , 60 6 257 , 393 -14, 60 4 242 , 7 8 9 39, 8 1 7

M emberS alaries , travelc os ts , c arers allowanc e c os ts

below es timate
510 2 D emoc ratic S ervic es P rojec t-N P A 's Ind u c tion 1 8 , 2 7 8 -1 8 , 2 7 8 0 16, 450 -1 7 , 360 -910 910

Total for Chief Executive 1,496,088 -116,072 1,380,016 1,363,534 -110,352 1,253,182 126,834

Delivery - Revenue Projects

110 2 W ard ens W orks and P rojec ts 7 7 , 545 -7 9, 0 8 5 -1 , 540 66, 68 6 -8 7 , 7 52 -21 , 0 66 19, 526

ad d itionalinc ome from a range ofs ou rc es notfu lly

applied in year, no s ingle large varianc e
110 7 W aterfalls C ou ntry W ard ening, Volu nteers and s ite managementc os ts35, 540 -35, 540 0 36, 38 9 -36, 38 9 0 0

1114 Ec ology P rojec ts 10 3, 468 -37 , 98 4 65, 48 4 8 5, 534 -31 , 8 0 0 53, 7 34 11 , 7 50

balancedby reserves-m ainly IN N S tofundstaff

continuationtoendJune
1123 D ay2S tay P rojec t 53, 2 0 0 -52 , 130 1 , 0 7 0 55, 234 -60 , 7 8 4 -5, 550 6, 620
1124 C u ltu res c ape -EU-fu nd ed P rojec t 51 , 960 -51 , 960 0 2 7 , 252 -29, 359 -2 , 1 0 7 2 , 1 0 7
1 131 Tou ris m P u blic ations 3, 0 0 0 -3, 0 0 0 0 0 -2 , 625 -2 , 625 2 , 625
1132 S u s tainable Tou ris m P rojec ts 1 , 930 0 1 , 930 1 , 97 0 -30 0 1 , 67 0 260
1134 GeoparkInterregP rojec t 40 , 350 -40 , 350 0 42 , 625 -44, 1 2 0 -1 , 495 1 , 495
1138 D es tination M anagement 10 , 0 0 0 -10 , 0 0 0 0 5, 0 0 0 0 5, 0 0 0 -5, 0 0 0

1139 Tou ris m Vis itorM anagemetP rojec ts (W G fu nd ed ) 2 8 , 7 30 0 2 8 , 7 30 3, 0 51 0 3, 0 51 25,679

Dogprojectnotprogressed,additionalW G funding

underEN R AW

1140 W aterfalls C ou ntry P artners hipP rojec t 94, 7 50 -40 , 0 0 0 54, 7 50 45, 67 0 -40 , 0 0 0 5, 67 0 49, 0 8 0

lim itedprogress-partnershipissues-HL Fbid

delayed,absenceofkey staff
1141 W aterfalls C ou ntry C ommu nity D evelopment 2 7 , 660 0 2 7 , 660 1 7 , 666 0 1 7 , 666 9, 994

130 5 S D F S trategic P rojec ts 267 , 411 0 267 , 411 222 , 597 0 222 , 597 44, 8 14 com m ittedproejctspendhasbeenreserved
130 9 Volu nteerC o-ord inatorprojec ts 1 , 650 0 1 , 650 98 8 0 98 8 662
1310 S oc ialInc lu s ion W ork 6, 448 -6, 448 0 2 , 32 8 -2 , 32 8 -1 1
1313 GetInto the B eac ons P rojec t 35, 7 92 -35, 7 92 0 52 , 432 -57 , 8 25 -5, 394 5, 394
1314 S mallS teps P rojec t 25, 58 0 0 25, 58 0 2 0 , 940 0 20 , 940 4, 640
1315 P lac e P lans P rojec t 13, 330 0 13, 330 9, 0 64 0 9, 0 64 4, 266
1316 A c tive A geingP rojec t(S portW ales ) 29, 2 8 0 -2 8 , 48 0 8 0 0 30 , 1 1 7 -2 7 , 8 7 2 2 , 245 -1 , 445
140 0 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -B rac ken M anagementB W lead 8 8 , 50 0 -8 8 , 50 0 0 90 , 560 -90 , 560 0 0
140 1 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -P eatland Res toration RB lead 15, 190 -15, 190 0 5, 37 9 -4, 246 1 , 132 -1 , 132
140 2 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -P aymentforEc os ys tem S ervic es P S lead 40 , 8 90 -40 , 8 90 0 15, 8 0 6 -15, 8 0 6 0 0
140 3 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -Ed u c ation P lan S W lead 1 , 660 -1 , 660 0 9, 322 -5, 97 7 3, 344 -3, 344
140 4 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -A mbas s ad ors RT lead 5, 340 -5, 340 0 4, 51 7 -4, 7 2 7 -210 210
140 5 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -Inves tingin S kills B W lead 48 , 1 1 0 -48 , 1 1 0 0 38 , 915 -38 , 915 0 0
140 6 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -Rangers B W lead 8 5, 0 0 0 -8 5, 0 0 0 0 68 , 999 -68 , 156 8 43 -8 43
140 7 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -P rogramme M onitoringand Evalu ation B W lead21 , 2 0 0 -21 , 2 0 0 0 15, 7 46 -15, 451 294 -294
140 8 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -P u blic Relations S W lead 8 , 0 0 0 -8 , 0 0 0 0 1 , 38 2 -1 , 2 8 2 1 0 0 -10 0

140 9 Ec ology P rojec ts B M P -P rojec tA d minis tration B W lead 48 , 42 0 -48 , 42 0 0 2 7 , 937 -38 , 319 -10 , 38 2 1 0 , 38 2 sm allsurplusreserved-BM L U P
440 4 Green GrowthRevenu e Element 8 , 50 0 0 8 , 50 0 1 , 0 97 0 1 , 0 97 7 , 40 3

Total for Delivery - Revenue Projects 1,278,434 -783,079 495,355 1,005,203 -704,593 300,605 194,750

P
age 131



APPROVED ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 12

Costc Account

Budget less actuals &

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Natural Resources Management
110 0 W ard ens M anagement, S taffand Ru nningC os ts 516, 7 8 0 -31 , 8 30 48 4, 950 50 9, 7 1 2 -36, 1 1 8 47 3, 594 11 , 356 s taffs avingd u e to vac anc y, rec harges to projec ts for
110 1 W ard ens 'D epot 42 , 2 1 0 0 42 , 2 1 0 36, 531 -334 36, 196 6, 0 14

110 8 FoelD egImprovements 30 , 0 0 0 0 30 , 0 0 0 1 , 67 8 0 1 , 67 8 2 8 , 322

projec timplementation awaitingapprovals . Fu nd s

c arried forward into 20 20 /21
110 9 A c c es s O ffic er 146, 48 4 -60 , 7 7 4 8 5, 7 1 0 114, 8 1 2 -40 , 258 7 4, 554 11 , 156 rec harge fors tafftime notbu d geted -s aving
1110 P u blic Rights O fW ay 8 7 , 640 -33, 463 54, 1 7 7 8 8 , 368 -37 , 1 0 6 51 , 261 2 , 916
120 0 C ou ntrys id e M anager 8 9, 2 1 0 0 8 9, 2 1 0 93, 8 96 -2 , 50 0 91 , 396 -2 , 1 8 6
1220 Ec ology 12 7 , 943 -5, 7 50 122 , 193 129, 912 -7 , 0 0 0 122 , 912 -7 19

Total 1,040,267 -131,817 908,450 974,909 -123,316 851,591 56,859

Sustainable Development
110 5 GeoparkD evelopmentO ffic er 47 , 160 0 47 , 160 44, 259 -450 43, 8 0 9 3, 351
1120 S u s tainable Tou ris m 94, 50 0 -21 , 0 0 0 7 3, 50 0 10 1 , 633 -16, 2 7 4 8 5, 358 -11 , 8 58 A d d itionalc os tofc overprovid ed d u rings taffabs enc e
130 0 C ommu nity D evelopment 150 , 130 -20 0 149, 930 138 , 592 -3, 0 36 135, 556 14, 37 4

Total 291,790 -21,200 270,590 284,484 -19,760 264,723 5,867

Public Engagement
40 0 0 C ommerc ialM anager 53, 8 1 0 -13, 50 0 40 , 310 51 , 436 -9, 50 0 41 , 936 -1 , 626
410 3 RetailS toc kM anagement 10 , 960 -5, 150 5, 8 1 0 1 0 , 8 0 4 -2 , 50 2 8 , 30 2 -2 , 492
410 4 A bergavenny Information C entre 33, 230 -31 , 1 0 0 2 , 130 30 , 8 7 5 -29, 50 2 1 , 37 3 7 57
410 7 O nline S hop 3, 58 0 -5, 7 90 -2 , 2 1 0 3, 520 -5, 60 3 -2 , 0 8 2 -12 8

410 8 W aterfalls C arP arks 10 7 , 2 7 4 -10 1 , 350 5, 924 139, 133 -112 , 2 1 0 26, 923 -20 , 999

u nbu d geted expend itu re on C arP arktoilets H ealth

and S afety refu rbis hments . C os tofc as h c ollec tion

exc eed s es timate, inc ome exc eed s bu d getbu tnot

s u ffic iently to c overextra expend itu re.
420 0 N ationalP arkVis itorC entre 1 7 5, 7 2 0 -159, 0 59 16, 661 1 8 5, 662 -145, 0 21 40 , 640 -23, 97 9 Red u c ed vis itornu mbers d u e to poorweatherand
4210 C raigY N os C ou ntry P ark 8 1 , 8 1 0 -57 , 68 0 24, 130 8 7 , 1 8 0 -58 , 2 0 6 2 8 , 97 5 -4, 8 45

440 0 P u blic Engagement 332 , 7 90 -51 , 7 50 2 8 1 , 0 40 30 6, 48 8 -68 , 51 8 237 , 969 43, 0 7 1

Vac antpos t, Ed u c ation fee inc ome overbu d get,

u nbu d geted inc ome fors taffc harges to other

projec ts .

Total 799,174 -425,379 373,795 815,098 -431,062 384,036 -10,241

Planning and Heritage
120 5 B u ild ingC ons ervation 52 , 320 0 52 , 320 61 , 67 3 0 61 , 67 3 -9, 353
1225 A rc haeology 48 , 0 2 0 0 48 , 0 2 0 46, 2 14 0 46, 2 14 1 , 8 0 6
30 0 0 P lanningand H eritage D epartmentalmanagement 61 , 58 0 0 61 , 58 0 61 , 655 0 61 , 655 -7 5
310 0 S trategy, P olic y A nd H eritage 142 , 7 50 0 142 , 7 50 146, 50 3 0 146, 50 3 -3, 7 53
3121 M inerals 2 , 1 0 0 0 2 , 1 0 0 7 57 0 7 57 1 , 343
320 0 D evelopmentC ontrol 352 , 0 2 0 -215, 0 0 0 137 , 0 2 0 344, 267 -1 8 7 , 934 156, 333 -19, 313 d ropin planningapplic ations and fee inc ome.
320 1 Enforc ement 136, 140 0 136, 140 137 , 68 4 -2 8 0 137 , 40 4 -1 , 264
320 2 P lanningA d minis tration & S u pport 162 , 2 1 0 -10 , 0 0 0 152 , 2 1 0 152 , 8 1 7 -9, 7 19 143, 0 98 9, 1 12
320 3 Tree C ons u ltanc y 10 , 0 0 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0 5, 30 6 0 5, 30 6 4, 694

Total 967,140 -225,000 742,140 956,876 -197,933 758,943 -16,803

Planning projects

310 2 L oc alD evelopmentP lan 98 , 240 0 98 , 240 8 2 , 391 0 8 2 , 391 15, 8 49

c hanged phas ingofL D P work-red u c ed c allon

res erve willbalanc e.

Total 98,240 0 98,240 82,391 0 82,391 15,849

Capital Projects

1112 Gu npowd erW orks H L F projec t 1 8 7 , 556 -20 8 , 691 -21 , 135 142 , 539 -152 , 435 -9, 8 96 -11 , 239 projec tc ompletion d elayed d u e to legalac c es s is s u e.
1 8 0 0 W ard ens C apitalImprovementP rojec ts 95, 8 1 0 -7 0 , 510 25, 30 0 2 8 , 1 7 8 -14, 8 98 13, 2 8 0 12 , 0 2 0 awaitinginpu tofD C W W , two projec ts on hold as a
1 8 0 1 C oed yd d N ed d y M ellte S A C 2 2 , 7 33 0 22 , 7 33 11 , 37 2 0 11 , 37 2 11 , 361 s pend d elayed

P
age 132



APPROVED ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 12

Costc Account

Budget less actuals &

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

1 8 0 2 Green GrowthFu nd 69, 1 7 0 0 69, 1 7 0 54, 634 0 54, 634 14, 536 loweramou ntofs tafftime c harged than es timated -
1 8 0 3 S olarP anelins tallation projec t 8 5, 660 0 8 5, 660 7 1 , 47 7 0 7 1 , 47 7 14, 1 8 3 s olarpanelprojec tc ompleted , c os tbelow es timate.

1 8 0 4 A c c es s and u pland improvementP rojec ts 415, 0 0 8 -2 8 5, 0 0 8 130 , 0 0 0 215, 422 -130 , 67 2 8 4, 7 50 45, 250

C arn P ic a extend ed into 20 20 /21 d u e to

environmentalc ons traints and C ovid 19

C ommitments in plac e. Ffawd d ogimprovements als o

re-phas ed into new financ ialyear.
1 8 0 5 EV C hargingP oints and 20 19 EV pu rc has e 7 7 , 57 6 -7 0 , 0 0 0 7 , 57 6 7 7 , 57 6 -7 0 , 0 0 0 7 , 57 6 0 c ompleted
1 8 0 7 M iles withou tS tiles , W heelc hairprovis ion 30 , 0 0 0 0 30 , 0 0 0 21 , 336 0 21 , 336 8 , 664
1 8 1 0 W ales W ay Infras tru c tu re and interpretation 20 7 , 560 -20 6, 923 637 1 8 2 , 623 -1 8 2 , 623 0 637

1 8 11 W aterfalls C ou ntry P artners hipP rojec t-C A P ITA L 7 5, 0 0 0 0 7 5, 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 5, 0 0 0

lim itedprogress-partnershipissues-HL Fbid

delayed,developm entphasetooklongerthan
1 8 12 IT C A P ITA L -P u rc has e ofS oftware and H ard ware 96, 48 0 -96, 48 0 0 43, 0 58 -43, 0 58 0 0
1 8 14 D igitis ation ofRec ord s and eq u ipmentpu rc has e 29, 8 0 0 -20 , 0 0 0 9, 8 0 0 2 8 , 645 -20 , 0 0 0 8 , 645 1 , 155
48 0 0 N ationalP arkVis itorC entre re-pu rpos e projec t 0 0 0 4, 0 0 0 0 4, 0 0 0 -4, 0 0 0
48 0 1 GeoparkC entre projec t-C raigy nos C P 36, 7 1 0 0 36, 7 1 0 30 , 666 0 30 , 666 6, 0 44

530 4 A ppropriations to/from C apitalGrants Unapplied and C apitalRec eipts 0 -593, 67 0 -593, 67 0 0 -266, 8 62 -266, 8 62 -326, 8 0 8

late rec eiptof611kforc apitalworks in O c toberles s

than 30 % s pent

Total 1,429,063 -1,551,282 -122,219 911,526 -880,548 30,978 -153,197

OTHER

5340 Interest received 0 -4, 8 0 0 -4, 8 0 0 0 -2 8 , 939 -28,939 24, 139

interes tinc ome exc eed ed es timate, inc reas ed fu nd s

held .
5205 Filming Fees Received 0 -30 , 0 0 0 -30 , 0 0 0 90 8 -2 7 , 1 7 0 -26,262 -3, 7 38

5299

Unallocated Budgets - allowance for project staff

termination costs and inflation. 62 , 0 0 0 0 62 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 , 0 0 0

fu nd s alloc ated forprojec ts tafftermination c os ts

(£ 50 k)have been res erved as perapproved

es timate.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO/FROM EARMARKED

RESERVES

5302 Appropriations Account 0 -241 , 964 -241 , 964 0 -163, 2 7 7 -163,277 -7 8 , 68 7

TOTAL - OTHER 62,000 -276,764 -214,764 908 -219,386 -218,478 3,714

2100 GRAND TOTAL 7,462,196 -3,530,593 3,931,603 6,394,929 -2,686,950 3,707,971 223,632

FUNDING
5300 Transfers from General Reserves 0 -163, 0 90 -163, 0 90 0 60 , 7 7 2 60,772 -223, 8 62 NET UNDERSPEND
5300 Transfers from Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 #REF!
5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -942 , 0 37 -942 , 0 37 0 -942 , 0 37 -942,037 #REF!

5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -2 , 8 26, 47 6 -2 , 8 26, 47 6 0 -2 , 8 26, 7 0 6 -2,826,706 #REF!
530 0 National Park Grant (Revenue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 #REF!

Total Funding & Transfers 0 -3,931,603 -3,931,603 0 -3,707,971 -3,707,971 #REF!

NET BUDGET #REF! #REF! 0 #REF! #REF! 0 #REF!

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



D
IS

C
R

E
T

IO
N

A
R

Y
?

General Earm arked

W elsh

Governm ent

P rojec ts

Earm arked

Revenu e

Reserves

C apital

Rec eipts

W elsh

Governm ent

C apitalGrants

Unapplied

A c c ou nt Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

D 1,107,688

50000

D 167,950

Welsh Government 2016/17 revenue pressures reserve 122,640 346,350

Welsh Government 2017/18 funding 43,845 455,845

Welsh Government 2018/19 funding 431,664 138,700

Welsh Government 2019/20 funding (Nov19) 0 444,226

P L A NNING

LDP Enquiry D 148,933

210,612

C H IEF EXEC UTIVE'S O FFIC E

IT equipment renewals reserve D 14,270

L A ND S C A P E A ND NA TURE REC O VERY

National Grid Funding for conservation D 31,713

D 82,515

5,845

15,551

Tourism Publications D 23,303

Tourism Projects funding reserve D 27,202

Forgotten Landscapes works pending A465 outcome 4,000

Tourism Partnership 23,055

Sustainable Development Fund earmarked sums D 40,405

Sustainable Development Fund earmarked sums Marquee D 708

Black Mountains Land Use Partnership Project reserve D 31,063

Legacies D 134,415

TotalReserves at31stM arc h 2020 1 , 10 7 , 68 8 8 43, 590 598 , 149 167 , 950 1 , 38 5, 121 4, 102 , 498

C om position ofReserves at31 M arc h 2020 (as

perO u ttu rn 2019/20)

General Reserve

Capital receipts

Conservation Fund (filming fees)

Section 106 Receipts reserved for future expenditure on agreed
schemes

Conservation Fund (filming fees) - Llyn y Fan Fach

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water research and monitoring funding
reserve

Provision for end of project termination costs as per approved
estimate

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2019/20

2019/20 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Llyn y Fan Fach Access CAPITAL 158,400 1800 JH
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 41,230 16%

No spend in

2019/20 to date -

review of profile

may be needed. Awaiting decision from Dwr Cymru

71,860 9,529 6,612

Waun Fignen Felen - partnership

agreement CAPITAL
50,000 1800 JH

L&B; reducing land-based carbon emissions

and restoring upland habitats
yes 19,280 43% Awaiting decision from Dwr Cymru 4,350 6,966 8,286

Wales Way CAPITAL 244,174 1810 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 207,560 88%

Llangors toilets about to complete for

handover to Trust. All finance raised.

A470 works due for implementation Q4

plus a small amount in Q1 next FY.

Digiatal Wall due to be largely complete in

Q4 with a little spend in Q1 next year

0 21012 182,623

DECARBONISATION CAPITAL GREEN

GROWTH AND ELECTRIC VEHICLE

PURCHASE

Green Energy 385,616 1802 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

no 69,170 79%

strategic

approach to

Visitor centre to

be determined -

original strategy

not approved by

NPA.

vehicles 0 0 54,634

Solar panels 114,384 1803 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

yes 85,660 83%

Budget revision

in progress for re-

profiled project

and additional

energy saving

measures

all completed - remainder of funding

potentially available - or for energy

saving measures at BBNPA sites.
0 38900 71,477

BB Green Growth Fund REVENUE 75,000 4404 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

yes 8,500 13%

project

development -

T&F group to

conclude review

and report.

Project plan to

be drafted.

Budget revision

pending for EV

staff time only in current budget, to be

part applied to Volunteers' electric

vehicle lease over 4 years.

0 0 1,097

Black Mountains Partnership REVENUE 989,155
1401 -

1409
BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA

objective=By focusing on landscapes and

biodiversity, particularly through ecosystems

management, the Authority is contributing

directly to a more ‘Resilient Wales’. 2. The

National Park’s landscapes and biodiversity

will benefit from broad-scale targeted and

promoted conservation projects. Goals &

Objectives: Biodiversity will be conserved

and enhanced through effective partnership,

facilitation, practical action and the Planning

function

yes 362,310 77%

revised profile to

be issued to WG

when December

claim is

completed

Rangers underspent due to a vacancy,

also payments for ecosystem services

arising from issues with delivery by

contractor of scheduled output, some

deliverable affected by the lockdown.

Also submission made for extension of

project but funder is slow to respond to

this.

143,044 357,601 278,561

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte - Waterfalls

CAPITAL
28,000 1801 JH

Landscape and Biodiversity; SED; maintain

and improve access to the countryside
yes 22,733 50%

some highways work commissioned from

Powys CC by JL -12048 on order. Plan for

project to be combined with Waterfalls

Country Partnership project and new

funding.

0 5267 11,372

Condition RoW Database REVENUE 10,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 2,100 0%

RoW Officer to

update

App now delivered and invoice

received. Additional work to complete

project planned and budgeted for next

FY. EJ May 2019: £2,100 carried

forwards into 2019/20.

2405 5500 0

ROWIP Review REVENUE 40,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside; publish

the review of the ROWIP

yes 1,960 100%

EJ May 2019: £1,210 carried forward into

2019/20 for translation plus staff time

£1,960. No spend on software (separate

project)

7812 29018 1,960

Visitor Management Programme

officer - re-purposed to Dog Project

.REVENUE

80,000 1139 RT
Biodiversity and Landscape,Resilient

Communities, SED; improve access to the

countryside

yes 28,730 11%
19/20 budget to

be revised by

project officer

to be repurposed as dogs management

project and implemented over 18

months

11972 36125 3,051

UNESCO Fforest Fawr Geopark Centre

@ Craig-y-nos CP CAPITAL
36,710 4801 RT

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 36,710 84% Project completed 0 3290 30,666

Strategic approach to Invasive Non

Native Species Pilot REVENUE
100,000 1114 BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA

objective=By focusing on landscapes and

biodiversity, particularly through ecosystems

management, the Authority is contributing

directly to a more ‘Resilient Wales’. 2. The

National Park’s landscapes and biodiversity

will benefit from broad-scale targeted and

promoted conservation projects. Corporate

Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity will be

conserved and enhanced through effective

partnership, facilitation, practical action and

the Planning function

yes 56,675 100%
remainder of funding carried over to

retain staff in Q1, BBNPA support

approved to extend posts.
1000 30233 56,418

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AT

YEAR END 2019/20

P
age 137



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2019/20

2019/20 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AT

YEAR END 2019/20

Gunpowder Works REVENUE AND

CAPITAL
800,453 1112 RC

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 187,556 76%

negotiations

ongoing in

relation to

property issue,

virtual tour

delivery

Access issue may delay delivery of

the interp element of the project.

Funder has been consulted. Q4 claim

pending, digital tour and some works

outstanding, project officer contract

completed.

101148 516632 142,539

Atlantic Geoparks REVENUE 144,167 1134 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 40,350 106%

Project extended to Nov 2020. Project

reprofiled and high confidence in

delivery by project end. Actual includes

staffing recharge to year end

32245 47860 42,625

EV Charging Points , additional funding

for EV purchase 2019/20 REVENUE

AND CAPITAL

100,000 1805 KB, WL
Reducing land-based carbon emissions, SED;

improve access to the countryside
yes 77,576 100% 0 17424 77,576

Place Plan implementation WG

REVENUE
30,000 1315 CB

Heritage, Biodiversity and

Landscape,Resilient Communities, SED;

improve access to the countryside
yes 13,330 68%

Project work underway, unspent

element and work with communities will

continue into 20/21
0 3681 9,064

Powys Teaching Health Board - Small

Steps REVENUE
40,000 1314 CB

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 25,580 82% 0 8359 20,940

Llangasty and Caeau Ty Mawr site Mgt

REVENUE
15,000 1102 RP/JH Landscape and Biodiversity yes 7,620 61% 1048 on order 0 6985 4,660

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchairs

CAPITAL
30,000 1807 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; Develop the

Miles Without Stiles programme; maintain

and improve access to the countryside
yes 30,000 71% 0 0 21,336

Carn Pica Footpath Restoration

CAPITAL
130,000 1804 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside; reduce

land-based carbon emissions and restoring

upland habitats

yes 130,000 65% £42197 on order 0 0 84,749

RoW Improvements Wardens CAPITAL 20,000 1800 JH
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 15,300 87% 0 15125 13,280

NP Interpretation (?) and Education

Space at National Park Visitor Centre

CAPITAL

55,000 1808 SW
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
no 0 N/A

strategic

approach to

visitor centre to

be determined.

project work is subject to agreement of

overall strategy.
0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Infrastructure

(being run jointly with Coedydd Nedd y

Mellte work), Visitor Management in

Waterfall Country CAPITAL

209,900 1811 RJT
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 75,000 0%

Waterfalls capital spend amalgamated

from multiple funds. Quick wins being

organised urgently. Car park machine

ordered January.

0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Visitor

Management-REVENUE
400,000

1140,

1141
RJT yes 122,410 52%

Longer term plans including a major HLF

bid being worked on as well as community

involvement.

63,336

Heritage in Place Grant Scheme

CAPITAL
50,000 3205 TN Heritage no 0 N/A

budget to be

established

uncertainty re timing of spend but not

anticipated to be until later in 2019/20.
0 0 0

WG Additional Support for BMLUP -

Machinery and Project Management,

REVENUE, CAPITAL

75,000
1800,

1220
BW

L&B; Reducing land based carbon emissions

and restoring upland habitats
yes 5,200 102%

additional partner support available for

project management costs. Remainder

will be applied in 2020/21. Extension of

post agreed

0 59693 5,290

Nature Recovery Action Plan

Implementation - REVENUE
88,900 1114 BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA

objective=By focusing on landscapes and

biodiversity, esp ecosystems management,

the Authority contributes to a more

‘Resilient Wales’. 2. landscapes and

biodiversity will benefit from broad-scale

targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives:

Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced

through effective partnership, facilitation,

practical action and the Planning function

yes 8,873 86%

To be used for revenue element of NRAP

delivery, detailed work programme

developed by ecology team, additional

funding streams are available which need

to be utilised if possible. Additional

funding made available through ENRAW

for local nature partnership - and also Vital

Signs.

0 0 2,062

Nature Recovery Action Plan

Implementation - CAPITAL
141,990 1115 BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA

objective=By focusing on landscapes and

biodiversity, esp ecosystems management,

the Authority contributes to a more

‘Resilient Wales’. 2. landscapes and

biodiversity will benefit from broad-scale

targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives:

Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced

through effective partnership, facilitation,

practical action and the Planning function

yes 0 N/A

Existing numbers do not include

predictions from ENRAW grant if

successful; only includes funding currently

available from WG underspend and NG

reserve (BW)

0 0 0

Waun Rydd Peatland Restoration

CAPITAL
35,000 1804 RB

L&B; Reducing land based carbon emissions

and restoring upland habitats
yes 40,000 98% 0 0 39,360

IT Upgrading CAPITAL 180,000 1812 PF yes 96,480 45%
Laptop purchases

re-coding

pending

project plan set up - elements of delivery

are under way, budget runs from Q4
43,058

Llanthony Toilets CAPITAL 30,000 tba JH no 0 N/A
budget to be

established

project will take some time to establish -

objectives to be confirmed - spend must

be committed by end March 2020.

0 0 0

P
age 138



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2019/20

2019/20 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AT

YEAR END 2019/20

NPVC Natural Play Area Year 1

CAPITAL
75,000 4800 WL no 0 N/A

strategic

approach to

visitor centre to

be determined.

project will take some time to establish -

objectives to be confirmed. spend must

be committed by end March 2020.

0 0 0

Rights of Way Improvements 2019/20

Ffawddog Ridge
170,000 1804 RB yes 170,000 14%

project spend planned for Q4,

commitments in place for 85k.

Completion will be in Q3 of 2020/21. due

to requirements re nesting season on SSSI.

0 0 23,353

Meithrin Mynydd Equipment 16,000 1800 JH no 0 N/A
project to be

agreed

originally for cattle crush but alternatives

being discussed with Graziers due to

practical issues with use of mobile crush.

spend must be committed by end March

2020.

0 0 0

TOTAL 5,147,849 1,987,893 65% 375,836 1,219,200 1,299,985

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Budget Monitoring: Quarter 1 2020/21

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 24 July 2020

Report Author
Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact details elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk
Purpose of Report To inform Members of performance against budget for the 

first quarter of 2020/21

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1: Budget Monitoring Summary to 30/6/2020

Enclosure 2: S106 and Affordable Housing to 30/06/20

Enclosure 3: Project Financial Scorecard Q1 2020/21 

Enclosure 4: Covid19 Assessment of operational impact on 
current project programme

Recommendation a) That Members consider the report and 
enclosures

1.1 Introduction 

Covid19

During the first quarter of 2020/21, the Authority has undergone substantial operational 
changes arising from Covid19.  Sections of the organization have seen expenditure impacts 
and loss of income from the effects of the crisis.   In response to a request from Welsh 
Government, officers have estimated the financial and operational impact in the first two 
quarters of the current year.  The effects on project delivery are summarized in Enclosure 4 
and the potential impact on revenue income and expenditure is summarized below:-

Estimate Covid19 impact on core income and expenditure 2020/21 as reported to Welsh 
Government

Page 141

Agenda Item 7



Quarter 1 Quarter 2
 £000   £000

Loss of income   119    131
Savings    (31)     (44)
Increased costs       6      27

Net impact      94    114

In a rapidly developing scenario for visitor management, additional costs are being incurred 
to provide temporary facilities and enhanced management of visitors to comply with health 
and safety requirements.  At the same time, business income generated at visitor facilities is 
much reduced.   Welsh Government has indicated that the Authority will be able to claim for 
the net losses incurred in Quarter 1 but current indications are that additional in-year 
revenue funding from Welsh Government is unlikely which means that a withdrawal from 
the General Reserve will be needed to balance the budget.

To ensure that potential losses are identified and provided for as far as possible, an in-year 
budget revision will be undertaken and a revised estimate produced for the Authority’s 
approval in the autumn, although much uncertainty is likely to remain at that stage.

The change programme
The budget as presented includes provision for the implementation of the change 
programme, which was anticipated to take effect from 1 July but is currently on hold and 
therefore includes part-year funding for additional posts. A report on the Change 
Programme is scheduled to be brought before the NPA at its meeting on August 7th.  The 
budget will be subject to revision when the final structure and start date are confirmed.  
Until the change programme has been progressed, the budget is presented in the existing 
departmental structure as far as possible.

The Budget Monitoring Summary (Enclosure 1) indicates that 55% of the budget has been 
spent, or committed; a total of £836,000 has been committed, principally for capital and 
project work.

Quarterly figures for each department are summarised below:

Page 142



Full 
Year 

Budget 
(Net) 

2020/21

Actual to 
end Q1      

2020/21

Committed 
2020/21

Net Budget 
remaining 
2020/21

Net 
Budget 

Spent and 
Committed

Department %
£000 £000 £000 £000

Chief Executive’s Office 1,303 379 135 789 39

Chief Executive projects 47 (1) 11 37 23

Natural Resources 801 195 105 501 37

Sustainable 
Development 205                   56 4 145 29

Public Engagement 303 124 58 121 60

Natural Resources, 
Sustainable 
Development and 
Public Engagement    
revenue projects

412 210 208 (6) 102

Planning and Heritage 695 195 23 477 31
Local Development 
Plan 167 2 8 157 6

Capital projects 416 (81) 283 214 49
Capital Grant Reserves 
applied (404) 0 0 (404) 0

Other (including 
transfers to and from 
earmarked reserves)

(445) 7 0 (462) (40)

 Total 3,498 1,087 836 1,567 55

Revenue Grant and 
Levies (3,769) (922) 0 (2,577)

Transfer to General 
Reserve 269 0 0 269

Page 143



1.2  Principal Budget Variances

Chief Executives Office
Commitments for more than one year including a three-year SLA for Health and Safety advice, 
and a payment in advance for the Webcasting facility which will be accrued to future years over 
the life of the lease at the year-end have increased the apparent expenditure on Democratic 
Representation as at the end of the quarter.   Legal costs arising from current matters relating 
to property and HR may require additional budget before the year end.  IT commitments 
include Microsoft licensing for the authority. 

Pool car revenue costs have been significantly reduced by the outright purchase of electric 
vehicles for the fleet.  However, a revenue provision for their replacement needs to be made in 
the budget.  The Communications budget has been re-established but the staffing is subject to 
approval of the change programme and an under-spend is likely for this cost centre.    Rates 
have been paid for the full financial year on HQ.

Revenue Projects
Planned wardening work in the waterfalls area has been delayed due to Covid 19, as has 
completion of the Gunpowder Works project which is also impacted by an ongoing access issue.  
Ecology projects are underway and substantially committed.  There has been some impact on 
the partnership elements due to staff furloughing in third sector partners.  

Tourism projects, particularly those involving EU partners have been significantly impacted by 
Covid19 and delivery has been delayed.  SDF grant applications and payments have been 
affected by the lockdown, which has also delayed claims from community groups.  Other 
community initiatives involving activities and engagement have had to be put on hold.  Staff 
have been redeployed on other urgent workstreams such as covering vacancies and 
preparation of key policy documents.

The Black Mountains Land use partnership project has been affected by delays in approval of a 
revised delivery profile and issues with the management of the RPW programme generally.  The 
delivery of the final phase is underway including bracken management, the rangers and the 
ecosystem services elements.

Natural Resources, Sustainable Development and Public Engagement.
The warden service has been in the forefront of the Covid19 response; planned work has been 
disrupted by the need to manage  the closure of access land and Authority sites, needing to 
liaise with partner organisations as well as dealing with issues on the ground.    Commitments 
included in the budget monitoring report mainly relate to the remaining two years on liveried 
vehicle leases.

Page 144



Public Engagement income has been significantly impacted by Covid 19 as services have ceased 
at visitor sites and provision to schools is on hold.  The estimated net income losses have been 
reported to Welsh Government and are expected to continue at similar levels for the rest of the 
summer season, although staff are working to deliver services and generate income as far as 
possible.

Planning
Planning Department expenditure is in line with the budget but fee income has dropped due to 
the economic slowdown.  The planning service has continued to function remotely but demand 
has dropped.  No Affordable housing funds have been received to date this year but a summary 
of balances held is provided in Enclosure 2.

Capital Schemes
See the projects scorecard for an overview of project spend and financial progress.  Overall a 
59% of the budgeted total has been spent or committed.  Some budget have yet to be 
established as detailed in the enclosure.  The Welsh Government has requested an update on 
progress in applying grant receipts.

Other
Planned transfers include the use of Welsh Government funding (provided in advance and set 
aside in reserves) for a range of projects.  Some £447,000 of reserved revenue funding is due to 
be applied in 2020/21.  

1.3 Conclusion
The 2020/21 estimate is subject to an unusual level of uncertainty for the reasons identified in 
the report.  Continual review is likely to be needed during the year, as circumstances change 
but an initial revision will take place before the autumn.

RECOMMENDATION:

a) That Members consider the report and enclosures.

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



BreconBeaconsS um m ary R eport:-upto30/06/2020

AP P R O VED ES T IM A T E2020/21 ACT U A L S M O N T H 1 T O 3 CO M M IT M EN T S 2020/21 2019/20

Costc Account

Budget

spent

P riorYear

Budget

Budgetless

actuals&

com m itm ents N O T ES

Description Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET

&

com m itted

S pent&

com m itted U nspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

ChiefExecutive

2100 Human Resources 74,670 0 74,670 15,712 0 15,712 11,703 0 11,703 37 15 47,255

Includes commitments for H&S

SLA with Thomas Carrol for 2

years & HR SLA with

Carmarthenshire CC.

2101 Legal 65,450 0 65,450 21,483 0 21,483 15,500 0 15,500 57 22 28,467
Ongoing costs regarding previous

employee legal matter.

2102 Finance 156,410 -17,725 138,685 31,080 -50 31,030 5,456 0 5,456 26 24 102,199

2103 Office Services 72,070 -200 71,870 13,491 -8 13,483 4,702 0 4,702 25 35 53,685

2104 Pool Cars 12,120 -12,120 0 2,567 0 2,567 14,786 0 14,786 n/a n/a -17,353

Includes Commitments for future

years costs. Pool car usage has

been considerably lower than

normal in Q1.

2109 Revenue Suspense Account 0 0 0 2,587 0 2,587 0 0 0 n/a n/a -2,587

2110 Training 30,000 0 30,000 -450 0 -450 943 0 943 2 27 29,507

2200 Information Technology 248,200 -5,000 243,200 115,759 0 115,759 28,268 0 28,268 59 28 99,173
Includes commitment for

Microsoft licenses (£26k).

2201
Communications - Translation

(formerly PR)
92,860 0 92,860 12,298 0 12,298 1,431 0 1,431 15 n/a 79,131

2301
Administrative Buildings - Plas Y

Ffynnon
111,960 -1,300 110,660 45,708 0 45,708 4,255 0 4,255 45 35 60,697 HQ Rates paid in full.

3120 Park Plan Officer 46,180 0 46,180 14,124 0 14,124 0 0 0 31 9 32,056

5000 Corporate Management 166,470 0 166,470 23,730 0 23,730 30,962 0 30,962 33 23 111,778

Commitments include Wales

Audit and professional advice for

the 'change programme'.

5001 Welsh National Parks Secretariat 6,000 -6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 0

5100
Democratic Representation &

Management
281,675 -10,120 271,555 81,397 0 81,397 10,888 0 10,888 34 27 179,270

Payment in advance of the

Webcasting software/support (yr.

3 of 5). Accounting adjustment

required at year end.

5102
Democratic Services Project - NPA's

Induction
18,290 -18,290 0 0 0 0 5,850 0 5,850 n/a n/a -5,850

Commitment for the September

2020 conference.

5203 Clothing 0 -8,800 -8,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a -8,800

T otalforChiefExecutive 1,382,355 -79,555 1,302,800 379,486 -58 379,428 134,744 0 134,744 39 34 788,628

ChiefExecutivesDeptP rojects

3104 National Park Management Plan 39,000 0 39,000 -1,000 0 -1,000 0 0 0 -3 0 40,000

5002 UK National Parks - Joint initiatives 8,420 0 8,420 0 0 0 11,993 0 11,993 142 n/a -3,573

Commitment for the provision of

joint communications services on

behalf UKNP's (yrs. 2+3 left)
T otalforChiefExecutivesDept

P rojects 47,420 0 47,420 -1,000 0 -1,000 11,993 0 11,993 23 0 36,427

N aturalR esources,S ustainable

Develom entandP ublicEngagem ent

R evenueP rojects

P
age 147



AP P R O VED ES T IM A T E2020/21 ACT U A L S M O N T H 1 T O 3 CO M M IT M EN T S 2020/21 2019/20

Costc Account

Budget

spent

P riorYear

Budget

Budgetless

actuals&

com m itm ents N O T ES

Description Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET

&

com m itted

S pent&

com m itted U nspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1102 Wardens Works and Projects 41,550 -57,190 -15,640 7,448 -4,650 2,798 715 0 715 -22 -99 -19,153

1107

Waterfalls Country Wardening,

Volunteers and site management

costs 35,420 -35,420 0 335 0 335 0 0 0 n/a n/a -335

No spend yet - Waterfalls are

closed - COVID-19.

1112 Gunpowder Works HLF project 0 0 0 1,235 7,322 8,557 28,706 0 28,706 n/a 697 -37,263

1114 Ecology Projects 71,889 0 71,889 15,701 0 15,701 26,075 0 26,075 58 9 30,113

1115

Nature Recovery Action Plan

Implementation 26,200 0 26,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 26,200

1123 Day2Stay Project 11,200 -11,200 0 3,035 33,811 36,846 16,273 0 16,273 n/a n/a -53,119

Outstanding year end debtor -

Visit Wales (European funding

£36k).

1124 Culturescape - EU-funded Project 75,970 -75,970 0 11,730 -5,012 6,718 5,320 0 5,320 n/a n/a -12,038

Payments in advance carried over

from 19/20. First claim has now

been submitted Vacant one day a

week admin role.

1131 Tourism Publications 3,000 -3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 0

1132 Sustainable Tourism Projects 0 0 0 192 0 192 959 0 959 n/a 3 -1,151

1134 Geopark Interreg Project 15,700 -15,700 0 1,303 76,276 77,579 5,845 0 5,845 n/a n/a -83,424

Outstanding year end debtor - EU

Interreg Atlantic Isles funding &

WG match funding (total £76k).

1138 Destination Management 5,000 -5,000 0 0 0 0 9,998 0 9,998 n/a n/a -9,998

1139

Tourism Visitor Managemet Projects

(WG funded) 18,600 0 18,600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 18,600
Vacancy - Dog project officer.

1140

Waterfalls Country Partnership

Project 114,840 0 114,840 9,450 9,300 18,750 4,000 0 4,000 20 n/a 92,090

Outstanding year end debtor -

Welsh Government ENRAW

Waterfalls Area - Claim 3.

1141

Waterfalls Country Community

Development 38,390 0 38,390 10,182 0 10,182 431 0 431 28 n/a 27,777

1305 SDF Strategic Projects 124,000 0 124,000 -15,875 0 -15,875 0 0 0 -13 3 139,875

Three outstanding year end

creditors - claims pending.

1309 Volunteer Co-ordinator projects 1,650 0 1,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,650

1310 Social Inclusion Work 2,830 -2,830 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 0

1313 Get Into the Beacons Project 0 0 0 0 14,966 14,966 0 0 0 n/a n/a -14,966

Outstanding year end debtor -

Arwain funding.

1314 Small Steps Project 6,060 0 6,060 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 6,060

1315 Place Plans Project 12,990 0 12,990 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 12,990 Pay recharge required.

1400

Ecology Projects BMP - Bracken

Management BW lead 80,960 -80,960 0 0 0 0 82,960 0 82,960 n/a n/a -82,960

1401

Ecology Projects BMP - Peatland

Restoration RB lead 4,647 -4,647 0 0 0 0 8,800 0 8,800 n/a n/a -8,800

1402

Ecology Projects BMP - Payment for

Ecosystem Services PS lead 23,583 -23,583 0 7,903 0 7,903 3,951 0 3,951 n/a n/a -11,854

1405

Ecology Projects BMP - Investing in

Skills BW lead 8,200 -8,200 0 3,202 0 3,202 0 0 0 n/a n/a -3,202

1406

Ecology Projects BMP - Rangers BW

lead 39,996 -39,996 0 10,122 0 10,122 0 0 0 n/a n/a -10,122

1407

Ecology Projects BMP - Programme

Monitoring and Evaluation BW lead 17,739 -17,739 0 4,391 0 4,391 3,721 0 3,721 n/a n/a -8,112

SMS Re-evaluation and Full Re-

profile Confirmed in June. Last

claim will be September 2020.

P
age 148



AP P R O VED ES T IM A T E2020/21 ACT U A L S M O N T H 1 T O 3 CO M M IT M EN T S 2020/21 2019/20

Costc Account

Budget

spent

P riorYear

Budget

Budgetless

actuals&

com m itm ents N O T ES

Description Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET

&

com m itted

S pent&

com m itted U nspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1408

Ecology Projects BMP - Public

Relations SW lead 3,146 -3,146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 0

1409

Ecology Projects BMP - Project

Administration BW lead 43,756 -33,915 9,841 5,216 0 5,216 0 0 0 53 n/a 4,625

4404 Green Growth Revenue Element 3,520 0 3,520 2,425 0 2,425 10,799 0 10,799 376 0 -9,704 Costs for Kangoo van.

T otalforDelivery -R evenueP rojects 830,836 -418,496 412,340 77,995 132,013 210,008 208,553 0 208,553 102 144 -6,221

Countryside -N aturalR esources

1100

Wardens Management, Staff and

Running Costs 464,710 -23,840 440,870 125,954 0 125,954 89,920 0 89,920 49 14 224,996

Includes commitment for

Warden's liveried vehicles for the

next 2 years.

1101 Wardens' Depot 42,220 0 42,220 20,715 0 20,715 10,246 0 10,246 73 36 11,259

Rent paid up to the end of June

plus rates paid for the full year.

1109 Access Officer 120,250 -34,630 85,620 17,078 -17,246 -168 1,988 0 1,988 2 -4 83,800

1110 Public Rights Of Way 86,920 -31,503 55,417 20,684 -4,520 16,164 223 0 223 30 23 39,030

1200 Countryside Manager 58,270 0 58,270 15,116 0 15,116 2,047 0 2,047 29 45 41,107

1220 Ecology 121,520 -2,890 118,630 29,200 -11,903 17,297 313 0 313 15 15 101,020

T otal-N aturalR esources 893,890 -92,863 801,027 228,747 -33,669 195,078 104,737 0 104,737 37 21 501,212

S ustainableDevelopm ent

1000

Provision for additional post (Change

Programme) 42,590 0 42,590 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 42,590

subject to confirmation of change

programme

1105 Geopark Development Officer 46,840 0 46,840 9,096 0 9,096 0 0 0 19 14 37,744

1120 Sustainable Tourism 57,740 -16,870 40,870 21,322 0 21,322 3,434 0 3,434 61 19 16,114

1300 Community Development 99,200 -24,200 75,000 25,355 0 25,355 270 0 270 34 16 49,375

T otalS ustainableDevelopm ent 246,370 -41,070 205,300 55,773 0 55,773 3,704 0 3,704 29 17 145,823

P ublicEngagem ent

4000

Commercial Manager plus provision

additional posts (Change Programme) 118,100 -10,000 108,100 9,856 0 9,856 0 0 0 9 18 98,244

Includes budget for New posts

included in the 'change

programme'.

4103 Retail Stock Management 10,430 -3,700 6,730 2,446 0 2,446 0 0 0 36 14 4,284

4104 Abergavenny Information Centre 32,720 -31,300 1,420 4,843 0 4,843 0 0 0 341 255 -3,423 Centre shut - COVID-19

4107 Online Shop 4,580 -7,090 -2,510 388 -796 -408 0 0 0 16 42 -2,102

4108 Waterfalls Car Parks 100,950 -111,180 -10,230 13,925 -9 13,916 18,754 0 18,754 -319 328 -42,900 Carparks closed - COVID-19

4200 National Park Visitor Centre 179,920 -182,640 -2,720 23,225 -25 23,200 25,701 0 25,701 -1798 -55 -51,621 Centre shut - COVID-19

4210 Craig Y Nos Country Park 86,490 -57,840 28,650 19,424 -1,176 18,248 3,170 0 3,170 75 31 7,232 Centre shut - COVID-19

4400 Public Engagement 202,400 -28,750 173,650 52,603 -609 51,994 10,666 0 10,666 36 15 110,990

No education income coming in -

COVID-19.

P ublicEngagem ent 735,590 -432,500 303,090 126,710 -2,615 124,095 58,291 0 58,291 60 15 120,704

P lanningandHeritage

1205 Building Conservation 56,530 0 56,530 8,792 0 8,792 7,882 0 7,882 29 13 39,856

1225 Archaeology 47,980 0 47,980 10,434 0 10,434 4,477 0 4,477 31 18 33,069

P
age 149



AP P R O VED ES T IM A T E2020/21 ACT U A L S M O N T H 1 T O 3 CO M M IT M EN T S 2020/21 2019/20

Costc Account

Budget

spent

P riorYear

Budget

Budgetless

actuals&

com m itm ents N O T ES

Description Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET

&

com m itted

S pent&

com m itted U nspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

3000

Planning and Heritage Departmental

management 61,500 0 61,500 15,110 0 15,110 0 0 0 25 17 46,390

3100 Strategy, Policy And Heritage 145,090 0 145,090 32,074 0 32,074 0 0 0 22 16 113,016

3121 Minerals 2,100 0 2,100 0 0 0 2,000 0 2,000 95 157 100 PO set up for the full year.

3200 Development Control 302,030 -215,000 87,030 90,638 -28,950 61,688 4,678 0 4,678 76 43 20,664

Planning fees & Pre app advice

income down on budgeted

target. Probably partly linked to

COVID-19.

3201 Enforcement 143,040 0 143,040 30,205 -48 30,157 0 0 0 21 15 112,883

3202 Planning Administration & Support 151,990 -10,000 141,990 35,788 -67 35,721 3,768 0 3,768 28 21 102,501

3203 Tree Consultancy 10,000 0 10,000 1,201 0 1,201 0 0 0 12 24 8,799

T otalforP lanningandHeritage 920,260 -225,000 695,260 224,242 -29,065 195,177 22,805 0 22,805 31 22 477,278

P lanningR evenueprojects

3102 Local Development Plan 167,090 0 167,090 1,910 0 1,910 7,968 0 7,968 6 22 157,212

T otalforP lanningR evenueprojects 167,090 0 167,090 1,910 0 1,910 7,968 0 7,968 6 -12 157,212

O therreceiptsandpaym ents

5304

Appropriations to/from Capital

Grants Unapplied and Capital

Receipts 0 -404,249 -404,249 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a -404,249

use of Welsh Government grants

reserve for ongoing capital

projects (transferred at year end)

T otalforO therreceiptsand

paym ents 0 -404,249 -404,249 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #N /A -404,249

CapitalP rojects

1800

Wardens Capital Improvement

Projects 109,580 -65,180 44,400 0 -80,797 -80,797 2,145 0 2,145 -177 -176 123,052

1801 Coedydd Nedd y Mellte SAC 0 0 0 4,000 0 4,000 0 0 0 n/a 0 -4,000

1803 Solar Panel installation project 0 0 0 500 0 500 0 0 0 n/a n/a -500

1804

Access and upland improvement

Projects 200,068 -7,621 192,447 0 -6,268 -6,268 198,870 0 198,870 100 0 -155

1807

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchair

provision 7,897 0 7,897 0 0 0 7,897 0 7,897 100 0 0

1810

Wales Way Infrastructure and

interpretation 39,140 -39,140 0 -708 -5,169 -5,877 49,804 0 49,804 n/a 331 -43,927

1811

Waterfalls Country Partnership

Project - CAPITAL 26,005 0 26,005 4,060 0 4,060 1,722 0 1,722 22 n/a 20,223

1812

IT CAPITAL - Purchase of Software and

Hardware 83,500 0 83,500 3,542 0 3,542 18,670 0 18,670 27 n/a 61,288

1813

Landscape and Nature Recovery

CAPITAL 66,990 -7,000 59,990 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 59,990

4801

Geopark Centre project - Craig y nos

CP 0 0 0 100 0 100 3,884 0 3,884 n/a 69 -3,984

T otalforCapitalP rojects 533,180 -118,941 414,239 11,494 -92,234 -80,740 282,992 0 282,992 49 3 211,987

see project scorecard for further

information

P
age 150



AP P R O VED ES T IM A T E2020/21 ACT U A L S M O N T H 1 T O 3 CO M M IT M EN T S 2020/21 2019/20

Costc Account

Budget

spent

P riorYear

Budget

Budgetless

actuals&

com m itm ents N O T ES

Description Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET Expenditure Incom e N ET

&

com m itted

S pent&

com m itted U nspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £
O T HER n/a

5340 Interestreceived 0 -5,000 -5,000 0 -139 -139 0 0 0 3 1 -4,861

5205 Incom egeneration-greenenergy 1,000 -18,000 -17,000 0 7,217 7,217 122 0 122 -43 5 -24,339

5299 U nallocatedBudgets 24,000 0 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 24,000

CO N T R IBU T IO N S T O /FR O M

EA R M A R KED R ES ER VES

CapitalS pendFinancedfrom R evenue 9,990 -9,990 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 0

5302 AppropriationsAccountInc 0 -446,786 -446,786 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -446,786
T O T A L -O T HER 34,990 -479,776 -444,786 0 7,078 7,078 122 0 122 -40 n/a -451,986

2100 GR A N D T O T A L 5,791,981 -2,292,450 3,499,531 1,105,357 -18,550 1,086,807 835,909 0 835,909 55 34 1,576,815

FU N DIN G

5300 T ransferstoGeneralR eserves 268,982 0 268,982 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 268,982 transferdueatyearend

5300

L evy From ConstituentL A'S & N P

Grant(W G) 0 -942,037 -942,037 0 -216,200 -216,200 0 0 0 23 -725,837 incom ereceivedquarterly
5300 L evy From ConstituentL A'S & N P 0 -2,826,476 -2,826,476 0 -706,677 -706,677 0 0 0 25 -2,119,799 incom ereceivedquarterly

T otalFunding& T ransfers 268,982 -3,768,513 -3,499,531 0 -922,877 -922,877 0 0 0 26 -2,576,654

N ET BU DGET #R EF! #R EF! 0 #R EF! #R EF! 163,930 #R EF! #R EF! 835,909 n/a -999,839

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer
DELIVERY AREAS

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2020/21 (Q1)

2020/21 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Llyn y Fan Fach Access CAPITAL 158,400 1800 JH
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 1,260 0%

staff time to be

recharged

Awaiting decision from Dwr Cymru

71,860 9,529 6,612

Waun Fignen Felen - partnership

agreement CAPITAL
50,000 1800 JH

L&B; reducing land-based carbon emissions

and restoring upland habitats
yes 1,500 0%

staff time to be

recharged
Awaiting decision from Dwr Cymru 4,350 6,966 8,286

Wales Way CAPITAL 244,174 1810 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 39,140 -2% 0 21012 182,623

DECARBONISATION CAPITAL GREEN GROWTH AND ELECTRIC VEHICLE PURCHASE

Green Energy 385,616 1802 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

no 0 #DIV/0!
reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 54,634

Solar panels 114,384 1803 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

n/a 0 #DIV/0!
reporting to WG

projects review

all completed - remainder of funding
potentially available - or for energy
saving measures at BBNPA sites.

0 38900 71,477

BB Green Growth Fund REVENUE 75,000 4404 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions,

yes 3,520 69%
reporting to WG

projects review

part funding applied to volunteers'
electric vehicle

0 0 1,097

Black Mountains Partnership

REVENUE
989,155

1401 -

1409
BW

DeliveringBiodiversity and Landscape;

WFGA objective=By focusing on landscapes

and biodiversity, particularly through

ecosystems management, the Authority is

contributing directly to a more ‘Resilient

Wales’. 2. The National Park’s landscapes

and biodiversity will benefit from broad-

scale targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity

will be conserved and enhanced through

effective partnership, facilitation, practical

action and the Planning function

yes 45,103 68%

Submission made for extension of
project but funder is slow to confirm its
informal approval and has imposed a
second review process

143,044 357,601 278,561

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte - Waterfalls

CAPITAL
28,000 1801 JH

Landscape and Biodiversity; SED; maintain

and improve access to the countryside
yes 0 #DIV/0!

transfer of

budget to 20/21

pending

Powys CC is carrying out planned

improvements.
0 5267 11,372

Condition RoW Database REVENUE 10,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 2,100 0%

reporting to WG

projects review

Final work on App not yet delivered by
supplier.

2405 5500 0

Visitor Management Programme

officer - re-purposed to Dog Project

.REVENUE

80,000 1139 RT
Biodiversity and Landscape,Resilient

Communities, SED; improve access to the

countryside
yes 1,903 0%

reporting to WG

projects review
spend planned for Q2 onwards 11972 36125 3,051

Strategic approach to Invasive Non

Native Species Pilot REVENUE
100,000 1114 BW

Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA

objective=By focusing on landscapes and

biodiversity, particularly through

ecosystems management, the Authority is

contributing directly to a more ‘Resilient

Wales’. 2. The National Park’s landscapes

and biodiversity will benefit from broad-

scale targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives:

Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced

through effective partnership, facilitation,

practical action and the Planning function

yes 13,647 100%

WG funding fully

applied, further

funding being

sought

remainder of funding carried over to
retain staff in Q1, posts extended to
deliver NRAP/further invasive species
projects

1000 30233 56,418

Gunpowder Works REVENUE AND

CAPITAL
800,453 1112 RC

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 0 #DIV/0!

transfer of

budget to 20/21

pending

Project completion date extended to
March 2021 due to impact of Covid19

101148 516632 142,539

2023/2024 planned

spend

2022/2023 planned

spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

QUARTER 1 2020/21 2020/2021 planned

spend

2021/2022 planned

spend

P
age 153



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer
DELIVERY AREAS

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2020/21 (Q1)

2020/21 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2023/2024 planned

spend

2022/2023 planned

spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

QUARTER 1 2020/21 2020/2021 planned

spend

2021/2022 planned

spend

Atlantic Geoparks REVENUE 144,167 1134 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 15,700 8%

Project extended to Nov 2020. Project
reprofiled - (international aspects)
impacted by Covid 19

32245 47860 42,625

Place Plan implementation WG

REVENUE
30,000 1315 CB

Heritage, Biodiversity and

Landscape,Resilient Communities, SED;

improve access to the countryside
yes 12,990 0%

reporting to WG

projects review

Project work underway, unspent
element and work with communities
will continue into 20/21

0 3681 9,064

Powys Teaching Health Board - Small

Steps REVENUE
40,000 1314 CB

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access

to the countryside
yes 6,060 0%

reporting to WG

projects review
on hold pending Covid 19 impact 0 8359 20,940

Llangasty and Caeau Ty Mawr site Mgt

REVENUE
15,000 1102 RP/JH Landscape and Biodiversity no 0 #DIV/0!

reporting to WG

projects review
0 6985 4,660

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchairs

CAPITAL
30,000 1807 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; Develop the

Miles Without Stiles programme; maintain

and improve access to the countryside
no 7,621 0%

reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 0

Carn Pica Footpath Restoration

CAPITAL
130,000 1804 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside; reduce

land-based carbon emissions and restoring

upland habitats

yes 45,800 0%
reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 0

NP Interpretation and Education

Space at National Park Visitor Centre

CAPITAL

55,000 1808 SW
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
no 0 N/A

reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Infrastructure

(being run jointly with Coedydd Nedd

y Mellte work), Visitor Management in

Waterfall Country CAPITAL

209,900 1811 RJT
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and

improve access to the countryside
yes 26,005 16%

reporting to WG

projects review

Waterfalls capital spend amalgamated

from multiple funds. Quick wins being

organised urgently. Car park machine due

to be operational Q2, Impacted by Covid

19.

0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Visitor

Management-REVENUE
400,000

1140,

1141
RJT yes 24,200 81%

reporting to WG

projects review

Longer term plans including a major HLF

bid being worked on as well as community

involvement. Impacted by Covid 19

63,336

Heritage in Place Grant Scheme

CAPITAL
50,000 3205 TN Heritage no 0 N/A

reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 0

WG Additional Support for BMLUP -

Machinery and Project Management,

REVENUE, CAPITAL

75,000
1800,

1220
BW

L&B; Reducing land based carbon emissions

and restoring upland habitats
yes 5,200 102%

reporting to WG

projects review

additional partner support available for

project management costs. Remainder

will be applied in 2020/21. Extension of

post agreed

0 59693 5,290

Nature Recovery Action Plan

Implementation - REVENUE
88,900 1114 BW

DeliveringBiodiversity and Landscape;

WFGA objective=By focusing on landscapes

and biodiversity, esp ecosystems

management, the Authority contributes to a

more ‘Resilient Wales’. 2. landscapes and

biodiversity will benefit from broad-scale

targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives:

Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced

through effective partnership, facilitation,

practical action and the Planning function

yes 8,873 86%
reporting to WG

projects review

To be used for revenue element of NRAP

delivery, detailed work programme

developed by ecology team, additional

funding streams are available which need

to be utilised if possible. Additional

funding made available through ENRAW

for local nature partnership - and also Vital

Signs.

0 0 7,627

Nature Recovery Action Plan

Implementation - CAPITAL
141,990 1115 BW

DeliveringBiodiversity and Landscape;

WFGA objective=By focusing on landscapes

and biodiversity, esp ecosystems

management, the Authority contributes to a

more ‘Resilient Wales’. 2. landscapes and

biodiversity will benefit from broad-scale

targeted and promoted conservation

projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives:

Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced

through effective partnership, facilitation,

practical action and the Planning function

yes 17,000 N/A
reporting to WG

projects review

Existing numbers do not include

predictions from ENRAW grant if

successful; only includes funding currently

available from WG underspend and NG

reserve (BW)

0 0 0

IT Upgrading CAPITAL 180,000 1812 PF yes 0 #DIV/0!
reporting to WG

projects review

some spend delayed due to IT support

demand from move to online working by

staff

43,058

Llanthony Toilets CAPITAL 30,000 tba JH no 0 N/A
reporting to WG

projects review
0 0 0

NPVC Natural Play Area Year 1

CAPITAL
75,000 4800 WL no 0 N/A

reporting to WG

projects review

anticipated year2 funding not confirmed,

revised scheme in development.
0 0 0

Rights of Way Improvements 2019/20

Ffawddog Ridge
170,000 1804 RB yes 0 #DIV/0!

reporting to WG

projects review

Completion will be in Q3 of 2020/21.

due to requirements re nesting season on

SSSI.
0 0 0

P
age 154



2017/18

Actual

2018/19

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Project Title
Total Project

Funds £
CODE

Lead

Officer
DELIVERY AREAS

BUDGET IN

APPROVED

ESTIMATE

PROFILED

BUDGET

2020/21 (Q1)

2020/21 SPEND

AS % PROFILE

(variances over

over +/-20%

highlighted)

OUTSTANDING

BUDGET

MANAGEMENT

ACTIONS

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL VARIANCES full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2023/2024 planned

spend

2022/2023 planned

spend

PROJECTS: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

QUARTER 1 2020/21 2020/2021 planned

spend

2021/2022 planned

spend

Meithrin Mynydd Equipment 16,000 1800 JH no 0 N/A
reporting to WG

projects review

originally for cattle crush but alternatives

to be agreed by Graziers due to practical

issues with use of mobile crush.
0 0 0

TOTAL 4,916,139 277,622 368,024 1,154,343 1,013,270

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



S 106

L edger

Code

FU N DS HEL D

31/3/20

R ECEIP T S IN

YEA R DES CR IP T IO N

T O T A L

A P P L IED IN

YEA R P A ID T O

FU N DS HEL D

30/6/20

£ £ £

S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks

Footpath improvement path 15 plus interpretation

£10,000 payable to BBNPA Wardens/Interpretation - to be

fully spent by 6/11/2020 ZAA 9,735.00 0.00 0.00 9,735.00

Planning condition monitoring fee £12,000 payable to

BBNPA Enforcement - to be fully spent by 6/11/2020

ZAA 9,474.27 0.00 0.00 9,474.27

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee £11,750 payable to

BBNPA Ecologist - to be fully spent by 6/11/2020

ZAA 10,898.10 0.00 0.00 10,898.10

T O T A L S 106(O T HER ) 30,107.37 0.00 0.00 30,107.37

2020/21 A FFO R DA BL EHO U S IN G

S 106A ffordableHousing

L edger

Code

FU N DS HEL D

31/3/20

R ECEIP T S IN

YEA R DES CR IP T IO N

T O T A L

A P P L IED IN

YEA R P A ID T O

FU N DS HEL D

30/6/20

£ £ £ £

13/10295/FUL 7/10/15 Persimmon Homes ZAB 175,000.60 0.00 0.00 175,000.60

Affordable Housing 14/11593/CON Plots 1-5 Castle Road, ZAE 89,262.00 0.00 0.00 89,262.00

Affordable Housing 14/11036/FUL The Studio, Upper

House Farm,Crickhowell ZAF 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00

Affordable Housing 16/13266/FUL ZAG 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd Barn, O/C ZAI 97,440.00 0.00 0.00 97,440.00

Affordable Housing 18/15843/FUL Pentwyncoch Ganol ZAJ 83,172.00 0.00 0.00 83,172.00

18/16678/FUL Studio at Castle Cottage ZAK 64,844.00 0.00 0.00 64,844.00

17/14713/FUL 1 Dwelling at St John's Church LIBANUS ZAL 22,190.00 0.00 0.00 22,190.00

T O T A L 561,908.60 0.00 0.00 561,908.60

P aym entsandreceiptsinrelationtoS 106andA ffordableHousingplanningconditions:financialsum m ary Q 1 2020/21

2020/21 -S 106O ther

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P rojectT itle FU N DER
P roject

L ead

budget

cost

centre

T O T A L

BU DGET

£

P rojectDelivery Effects
initialcostim pact

identified
P otentialim pactonP artnersandcontractors P ost-CovidR ecovery investm ent

L lyny FanFachA ccessCA P IT A L

Welsh Government

2016 (68,400) , Dwr

Cymru (30,000 pa to

2020

JH 1800 158,400 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

This project relies on Welsh Water (WW) officers

to play their part in the project. To date they have

not responded, and this restricts what JH can

achieve. I need JA to communicate with WW if we

are to make progress. I have allocated funding for

the s38 conditions and planning permission

submission. The project is to increase access for

walkers through the filter beds as well as deal

with the car parking situation.

M ainCom ponentslistedbelow JH £ 2520 32000 1260

W aunFignenFelen-partnershipagreem ent

CA P IT A L
Dwr Cymru JH 1800 50,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Some spend on timber, and there will be a draw

down of funding as Warden labour will be used to

gather seed and spread it on the bog, build dams

etc. There will also be another Rigare water

monitoring survey.

M ainCom ponentslistedbelow JH £ 1500 14902 3000

W alesW ay CA P IT A L

Visit Wales, Powys

CC, Welsh Govt,

capital receipt
R T 1810 240,900 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Delay in delivery of printed signage and installations as businesses

closed. Capture of digital footage for the touch wall to be installed at

the National Park Visitor Centre. Spend reprofiled to Q2 but

depends on extension of lockdown.

Cash flow to contractors

element of recovery of Welsh Tourism after CV-

19, potential vital element of economy in context

of reduced international travel.

R T £ 30,000 22,170 0 0

DECA R BO N IS A T IO N CA P IT A L GR EEN GR O W T H

A N D EL ECT R IC VEHICL EP U R CHA S E

Welsh Govt 2017,

Welsh Gov 2019/20
W L 1802/1803 500,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Planned spend completed, Electric Vehicles for Authority Fleet and

Solar Energy installations at all Centres completed - further

developments on hold at National Park Visitor Centre.

none identified as use of funding is under review.

option for application of remaining funds to

provide grants for green energy generation by

communities - supporting contractors and

creating income/savings at community level,

using expertise and partnerships developed by

successful SDF grant scheme

W L £ 25,000 0 0 0

BB GreenGrow thFund R EVEN U E Welsh Govt 2017 W L 4404 75,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 subject to spend on capital no current impact
potential to support development option above to

operate the scheme.

W L £ 0 25,000 0 0

BlackM ountainsL andU seP artnership SMS - EU BW
1401 -

1409
989,155 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Delay in bracken control work and completion of peatland

management work. Delay to payment for ecosystem services study,

Education outreach work not possible, temporary Ranger post

cannot be recruited. Stipend programme supporting engagement

with partners and the farming community suspended. Project

administration and development of a successor partnership model -

funding being provided by BBNPA and other partners. Issues with

approval of extension of the project by the funder.

Impact on project staff - job risk and uncertainty.

Contractors due to carry out consultancy work

and bracken cutting - much of the project

expenditure would have benefitted the local

farming community and local contractors, as well

as providing training opportunities and

employment. Expenditure on hold approx

£100,000. Failure to grant project extension

could impact by £200,000 on BBNPA finances due

to existing commitments.

Development of a successor partnership model,

collaborative work between the National Park,

community, graziers, landowners and businesses

in the context of a successor to the current agri-

environment regime in the context of nature

recovery and habitat restoration. This requires

longer-term investment.

BW £ 74,423 48,996 0 0

Gunpow derW orksR EVEN U EA N D CA P IT A L
HLF, Park Society,

Beacons Trust
R C 1112 800,453 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

completion of the project delayed by CV19 and access issues, main

funder is HLF

contractor supplying digital tour impacted,

educational visits not possible during lockdown.

R C £ 0 0 0 0

N ationalP arkVisitorCentreadditional

interpretationonsite andEducation/m eeting

spaceatCentreCA P IT A L

Welsh Govt 2018 S W 1808 55,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 Project stalled

Centre closed due to CV-19 - businesses who are

partners on the site - small crafts businesses,

catering provider are seriously impacted by loss

of income/business

further development and revitalisation of Centre

to support visitor engagement, reconnection with

nature and education/volunteering - requires

development of a delivery plan for the site and

surrounding area.

S W £ 0 0 0 0

N ationalP arkVisitorCentreadditionaloutdoor

play facilities

Welsh Govt 2018,

Welsh Govt 2019
R JT 1808 75,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Project stalled - linked to project above, also application for phase 2

of project to WG on hold due to revised grant criteria from 2020.
as abov.

R JT £

W aterfallsCountry Infrastructure (being run

jointly with Coedydd Nedd y Mellte work), Visitor

M anagem entinW aterfallCountry CA P IT A L

Welsh Govt 2018,

Welsh Govt 2019
R JT 1811 209,900 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 We are reassessing the work programme but there will be significant

changes necessary. Subject to timing of lockdown.

impact on partners and contractors of delayed

spend.

Waterfalls area will be the subject of further bids

in support of visitor management and the local

community. HLF funding sought.

R JT £ 0 25,000 16,500 16,500

2020/2021 planned spend

P
age 159



P rojectT itle FU N DER
P roject

L ead

budget

cost

centre

T O T A L

BU DGET

£

P rojectDelivery Effects
initialcostim pact

identified
P otentialim pactonP artnersandcontractors P ost-CovidR ecovery investm ent

2020/2021 planned spend

CoedyddN eddaM ellte-W aterfallsCA P IT A L Welsh Govt 2017 JH 1801 28,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 Focus on visitor management, works on hold

Two traffic orders for the area, funding also

needed for clearing fallen trees in the

Gunpowder works, safety fencing and signage,

civil eng advice for the gabion problem.

JH £ 0 0 0 run concurrently with above

W aterfallsCountry VisitorM anagem ent-

R EVEN U E

Welsh Govt 2019,

ENRAW
R JT 1140,1141 400,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

R JT £ 44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000

officer time, partnership development and community engagement

to support the above. Much of the work cannot be delvered during

lockdown. Main role of team has been in supporting the lockdown.

work with development of business opportunities

and community initiatives has been delayed by

the lockdown.

will be the subject of further funding bids to

support the communities in the waterfalls area in

partnership with local stakeholders. Visitor

management is a long-term priority in the area.

HeritageinP laceGrantS chem eCA P IT A L Welsh Govt 2018 T N 3205 50,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

T N £ 0 0 0 25,000 Delivery planned towards end of 2020/21

brecon townscape enhancements and investment

in businesses in the town centre, supporting an

element of post-CV19 economic recovery. Could

be expanded.

N atureR ecovery A ctionP lanIm plem entation-

R EVEN U E

Welsh Govt 2019,

existing reserves
BW 1114 66,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

BW 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

N atureR ecovery A ctionP lanIm plem entation-

CA P IT A L

WG 2018, Reserves,

WG 2019/20
BW 1813 50,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

BW £ 25,000 0 0 0

S trategicapproachtoInvasiveN onN ative

S pecies-andextension
Welsh Govt 2017 BW 1114 100,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Volunteer engagement and invasive species control work possibly

delayed beyon the crucial summer season, previous progress

underminded, applications for funding to extend and expand the

project delayed. Invasive species week in May cancelled, guided

walks cancelled. Staff furloughed at partner organisations.

BBNPA currently funding the project team from

reserves, volunteers and community groups

impacted.

Extension of invasive species work to support re-

engagement of communities and volunteers and

expansion of nature recovery through control of

invasive species. Example Tawe and Usk

catchment vegatation clearance and invasive

species controls.

BW £ 14,000

R ightsofW ay Im provem ents/uplandhabitat

restoration 2019/20 Ffaw ddogR idge
Welsh Govt 19/20 R B 1804 170,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Contracts in place. Remaining work delayed by Lock-down and bad

winter weather now scheduled for later in August due to nesting

seasons. Material in place and contracts let.

business impact on contractor if work cannot

proceed. If funding was withdrawn as not

applied by 31 March, the authority would need to

honour contracts and cover the project costs.

Ongoing investment in upland paths and peatland

restoration. (CO2 storage)

R B £ 0 49,000 97,650 0

M ilesw ithoutS tiles,W heelchairsCA P IT A L Welsh Govt 2018 R B 1807 30,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4
Materials purchased, project can be completed within 3 months of

lock-down finishing.

Investment in acessible access to the countryside

as part of a wider programme of well-being

recovery post CV-19 and support of local

contractors and suppliers.

R B £ 8,665 0 0 0

CarnP icaFootpathR estorationCA P IT A L Welsh Govt 2018 R B 1804 130,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Planned spend takes into account the nesting season and other

habitat protection requirements, phasing will be impacted if

lockdown extends into the Autumn. Work scheduled for August-

October Contracts already let for airlifts and stone. Airlift bags will

deteriorate over the summer.

10000
Loss of income for local contractors - path repairs

and stone-laying.
Additional cost to re-bag stone £10,000

R B £ 0 15,000 29,620 0

M eithrinM ynyddEquipm ent Welsh Govt 19/20 JH 1800 16,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

JH £ 0 0 0 0
project delayed- further decision required by Graziers on

requirements - meetings suspended due to CC19
Graziers in western NP area

L lanthony T oiletsR efurbishm ent Welsh Govt 19/20 JH 1800 30,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

JH £ 0 0 0 0
Project delayed - additional costs identified to deliver required

standard of facility

Loss of opportunity to a contractor/facilities for

tourism in Llanthony valley

Improved facilities for visitorsand re-engagement

with the national park in the Llanthony area

IT U pgradingCA P IT A L Welsh Govt 19/20 P F 1812 180,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

P F 0 83,500 #REF! 0

Additional IT investment required to support virtual organisation,

online meetings, more server capacity and early roll-out of Office

365. Additional costs of £28,000 estimated. Some planned

developments delayed due to lockdown and home-working.

28000

DestinationW ebsitere-designandim provem ent Welsh Govt 19/20 P F 4400 25,000 Q 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

P F 25,000 0 0
some delay due to requirement to trial recommended walking

routes. Delay in going to contract

effective use of website to promote tourism

businesses and aid recovery post-CV19

Community engagement and partnership development and

education strands of the project have been delayed due to CV19.

Third Sector partners seriously affected by loss of income and

furloughed posts. Local Nature Partnership establishment will be

delayed. Survey and

modelling work by contractors and consultants such as BTO delayed

Loss of funding streams for third sector and

community partners, loss of income for

contractors.

Nature Recovery in partnership with third sector,

engaged communities and volunteers as part of

the wider post-CV19 recovery effort. Further

small bid £30k in 'Greening the Estate' submitted,

including tree-planting and volunteer engagement

- this could be expanded, includes meadow

creation, community orchards, biodiversity

improvments.P
age 160



P rojectT itle FU N DER
P roject

L ead

budget

cost

centre

T O T A L

BU DGET

£

P rojectDelivery Effects
initialcostim pact

identified
P otentialim pactonP artnersandcontractors P ost-CovidR ecovery investm ent

2020/2021 planned spend

4,220,408 258,588 325,166 #R EF! 98,000 38,000

P
age 161



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit update Q1 2020/21

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 24th July 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact Details Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To update the Committee on progress on the internal audit 
programme for the year and the revised Internal Audit Plan

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21

Recommendation(s) a)  That the contents of the report and the Audit 
Plan are considered by the committee.

1.1 Introduction or Background
This is year 3 of a three-year internal audit service level agreement with TIAA to provide 
internal audit services.  The Audit Plan was produced after discussions with officers by Helen 
Cargill, the Audit Lead for TIAA and reviewed by the Corporate Governance Team; the Chair 
and Deputy Chair of the Committee were consulted by email.

1.2 Audits planned for 2020/21.

The full Plan document is enclosed.  Under the Plan (see extract below) the following audits are 
scheduled for August and November/December 2020.   Block 1 is timed to start slightly later 
than usual in recognition of the current pressures on staff time.  Block 2 will include a follow-up 
review of action points raised in previous audits to ensure that the organization has responded 
to issues identified.

Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

Page 163

Agenda Item 8



Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

Block 1

(Qtr 2) 

Key Financial 
Controls 
(Budgetary 
Control, Income 
and Debtors, Cash 
and Bank and 
Treasury 
Management)

Assurance Sustainable 
economic 

development

3 Risk

Ability to maintain financial sustainability

Rationale

Expected budget cuts

Scope

Budgetary Control - The review considers the budget 
preparation process, the monitoring arrangements, 
and reporting to the board. The scope of the review 
does not include consideration of the assumptions 
used in preparing the budgets; depreciation policies; 
apportionment of central costs; or financial 
information included in tenders prepared by the 
organisation.

Income and Debtors – The review will consider the 
arrangements for recording income and timely 
collection of balances owing.

Cash and Bank and Treasury Management – The 
review will consider banking arrangements, bank 
reconciliations, cash flow forecasting and 
compliance with the Authority’s treasury 
management policy

Block 1

(Qtr 2)

Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Absence 
Management

Appraisal Organisation 
and 

Governance

3 Risk

Staff absence and impact on ability to deliver

Rationale

Staff wellbeing and mental health issues are a cross 
sector issue

Scope

The review will appraise the approach to staff 
wellbeing including the strategy and initiatives in 
place to support staff including in respect of staff 
mental health.   Consideration will also be given to 
the monitoring and reporting of staff absences and 
the actions identified within the strategy to address 
underlying causes.   The review will not assess the 
effectiveness of the actions implemented. 

Page 164



Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

Block 2

(Qtr 3)

Governance -
Performance 
Management

Assurance Organisation 
and 

Governance 
– Obj. 1.

3 Risk

Strategic objectives are not achieved

Rationale

To ensure effective processes are in place to monitor 
the delivery of the strategic / corporate objectives 
following the restructure

Scope

The review considers the arrangements for providing 
assurance to the Authority and senior management 
through the use of Key Performance Indicators and 
the systems that are used to track and manage the 
attainment of these targets following the restructure 
undertaken in 2019/20. The scope of the review 
does not include consideration of the accuracy or 
completeness of all reports presented to the 
committees/groups or the appropriateness of all 
decisions taken.

Block 2

(Qtr 3)

ICT Strategy Appraisal Organisation 
and 

governance

4 Risk

Lack of appropriate prioritisation of spend on IT and 
failure to support strategic and operational plans.

Rationale

Additional funding provided by Welsh Government 
in March 2020 and need to ensure spending aligns to 
strategic priorities.

Scope

The review will consider how the ICT strategy 
supports the achievement of the Authority’s 
strategic plan including asset management and 
replacement strategy, IT capital budget, financial 
projections, horizon scanning and supports 
operational delivery.

The review will also consider the implementation 
following the outbreak of Covid-19 of Microsoft 
Office 365 and Microsoft Teams and the controls in 
place in regard to system security and access control 
and management of the risks associated with 
remote working.

1-4 Follow-up Follow up - 1 Follow-up of implementation of agreed priorities 
one and two actions from audit reports, ensuring the 
Organisation is implementing recommendations, and 
providing reports to the Audit and Risk Assurance 
Committee.

1-4 Contingency N/A - 2 Contingency allowance to be used as required.

Page 165



Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

1 Annual Planning Management - 1 Assessing the Organisation’s annual audit needs – 
requirement of Internal Audit Standards.

4 Annual Report Management - 1 Reporting on the overall conclusions and opinion 
based on the year’s audits and other information 
and providing input to the Annual Governance 
Statement.

1-4 Client Portal N/A - - The client portal provides a one stop shop of internal 
audit reports, progress and recommendation tracker 
as well as briefings, fraud alerts, fraud updates and 
committee briefings.

1-4 Management, 
Planning & Audit 
and Risk 
Assurance 
Committee 
Reporting/Support

Management - 3 This time includes: meeting client management, 
overseeing the audit plan, reporting and supporting 
the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee, liaising 
with External Audit and Client briefings (including 
fraud alerts, fraud digests and committee briefings).

Total days 21

1.4 Risk
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will recommend 
actions which will help to manage and reduce risks.  Internal audit is one of the tools which is 
used by Members and management to gain assurance that internal controls are operating 
effectively.

1.5 Conclusion
Members and senior management should understand the internal controls operated by the 
Authority and take action where significant risks or weaknesses are identified.  Action in this 
regard will need to be prioritised in the context of the Authority’s limited resources in the light 
of appetite for risk.

RECOMMENDATION:

a) That the contents of the report and the Audit Plan are considered by the 
committee.

Page 166



Internal Audit

FINAL

June 2020

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  

Audit Strategy and Annual Internal Audit Plan

2020/21

P
age 167



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 1

Overview

Introduction

The Audit Plan for 2020/21 has been informed by a risk assessment carried out across all our 
clients (with members and senior management) and by an updated audit risk assessment to 
ensure that planned coverage for the year is focussed on the key audit risks, and that the 
coverage will enable a robust annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion to be provided.

Key Emerging Themes

This year will be challenging year for Brecon Beacons National Park Authority in terms of 
government and ministerial changes, changes in governance following restructure, regulatory 
arrangements, funding pressures and ensuring compliance with the remit letter.  We have 
identified a number of key areas which require consideration when planning internal audit 
coverage.

Adequacy of the planned audit coverage

The reviews identified in the audit plan for 2020/21 support the Head of Internal Audit’s annual 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control as required by TIAA’s charter. The reviews have been 
identified from your assurance framework, risk registers and key emerging themes.

                                         

2020/21 Audit planning process

 Remit Letter compliance: The Authority must ensure that the expectations of the Welsh 
Government as documented in the Remit Letter are delivered in accordance with the 
Strategic Plan and budgeted funding arrangements. 

 Brexit - There is continuing uncertainty in relation to legislation which need to be created 
following the UK’s departure from the European Union.

 Fraud and cyber security: As ever-present risks, all organisations must ensure that they 
have robust controls that operate effectively and continually which are underpinned by 
organisational awareness and appropriate behaviours. 

 Health and Wellbeing - Studies have showed that work pressures are contributing to 
increasing level of absences related to mental health which remains the most common 
cause of long-term absence in the public sector.

P
age 168



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 2

Internal Audit Plan

Audit Strategy Methodology

We adopt a proprietary risk-based approach to determining your audit needs each year which 
includes reviewing your risk register and risk management framework, the regulatory 
framework, external audit recommendations and previous internal audit work for the 
organisation, together with key corporate documentation such as your business and corporate 
plan, standing orders, and financial regulations. For 2020/21 we have conducted an analysis of 
the key risks facing the sector and client base more broadly to inform our annual planning. The 
Audit Strategy is based predominantly on our understanding of the inherent risks facing Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and those within the Welsh public sector and has been 
developed with senior management. Our approach is based on the guidance stipulated in the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Risk Prioritisation

Each year an updated risk assessment is carried out to ensure the Audit Strategy remains fully 
aligned with the key risks facing Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. A GUARD (Global 
Universe Assurance Risk Determiner) assessment of key risks was completed by TIAA, to identify 
those that are most relevant to the organisation and where internal audit assurance would be 
best focussed. This was designed to ensure that the Audit Strategy has the appropriate focus on 
strategic, probity and public relations risks that are facing the organisation, and the 
requirements of any funders, in the case of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority its remit 
letter from the Welsh Government. As part of this we also undertake an annual survey of Chairs 
of Audit and lead contacts to understand key risks.

The assessment was provided to the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and a further 
exercise was carried out where members of CGT each independently produced their own 
version of GUARD and met to review differences and discuss thinking before coming to a 
collective position.  The resulting GUARD assessment has been included at Annex A

Internal Audit Strategy Plan

Following the risk prioritisation review, the Audit Strategy has been updated (Annex B) and the 
Annual Plan (Annex C) sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the planned times and the 
scopes for each of these reviews. 

The Annual Plan will be subject to ongoing review and could change as the risks change for the 
organisation and will be formally reviewed with senior management and the Audit and Risk 
Assurance Committee mid-way through the financial year or should a significant issue arise.

The overall agreed time for the delivery of the Annual Plan includes: research, preparation and 
issue of terms of reference, site work, production and review of working papers and reports. 
The Annual Plan has been prepared on the assumption that the expected controls will be in 
place. The total number of days required to deliver the Audit Plan is as agreed in the contract 
between TIAA and Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. This number of days is fixed and it 
is TIAA’s responsibility to deliver the Audit Plan for this number of days. Where Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority agrees additional work the required number of days and the aggregate 
day rate will be agreed in advance with the Finance Manager and Chief Executive and will be 
clearly set out in the terms of reference for the additional review(s).

Audit Remit/Charter

The Audit Remit/Charter (Annex D) formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority and defines the scope of internal audit activities.

Reporting

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review carried out. Each report 
will be prepared in accordance with the arrangements contained in the Terms of Reference 
agreed with TIAA and which accord with the requirements of TIAA’s audit charter and the PSIAS. 

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Audit and Risk Assurance 
Committee meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date against the agreed annual 
plan.

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in accordance with the 
requirements set out in TIAA’s audit charter and the PSIAS. The Annual Report will include a 
summary opinion of the effectiveness of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s governance, 
risk management and operational control processes based on the work completed during the 
year.

Other Briefings: During the year Client Briefing Notes, Benchmarking and lessons learned 
digests will be provided. These are designed to keep the organisation abreast of in-year 
developments which may impact on the governance, risk and control assurance framework.

P
age 169



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 3

Providing Assurance

For each assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in 
mitigating the key control risks will be provided. The assurance assessment process is set out in 
Annex E.

Liaison with the External Auditor 

We will liaise with Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s External Auditor. Any matters in 
the areas included in the Annual Plan that are identified by the external auditor in their audit 
management letters will be included in the scope of the appropriate review.

Performance

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the performance of internal audit 
in delivering the Annual Plan:

Area Performance Measure Target

Completion of planned audits. 100%
Achievement of the plan

Audits completed in time allocation. 100%

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit 
meeting.

95%

Reports Issued
Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt of 
responses.

95%

Professional Standards Compliance with TIAA’s audit charter and the PSIAS. 100%

Conflict of Interest

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will manage them in line 
with TIAA’s audit charter and the PSIAS, Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s requirements 
and TIAA’s internal policies.

Limitations and Responsibility

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the internal controls to be 
providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior approval of Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority and additional time will be required to carry out such testing. Brecon Beacons National 
Park Authority is responsible for taking appropriate action to establish whether any loss or 
impropriety has arisen as a result of the control weaknesses.

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement 
or loss. The limitations on assurance include the possibility of one or more of the following 
situations, control activities being circumvented by the collusion of two or more persons, human 
error, or the overriding of controls by management. Additionally, no assurance can be provided 
that the internal controls will continue to operate effectively in future periods or that the 
controls will be adequate to mitigate all significant risks that may arise in future. 

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work 
performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses 
that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances 
of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit procedures have been designed 
so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems 
of internal control may not be proof against collusive fraud.

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to 
accounting records and transactions and to ensure the authenticity of these documents.

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the attention of the 
auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. The 
audit reports are prepared solely for management's use and are not prepared for any other 
purpose.

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee to determine that the number 
of audit days to be provided and the planned audit coverage are sufficient to meet the 
Committee’s requirements and the areas selected for review are appropriate to provide 
assurance against the key risks within the organisation.

Release of Report

The table below sets out the history of this plan.

Date plan issued: 17th February 2020

Date revised plan issued: 26th March 2020

Date final plan issued: 29th June 2020

P
age 170



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 4

Annex A: GUARD Risk Analysis 

P
age 171



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 5

Annex B: Rolling Strategic Plan

Review Area Type 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Governance

Key governance areas will be reviewed on a rotational basis each year such as strategic planning, 
strategic control, regulatory compliance, performance management, board assurance framework, 
partnership working, management of conflicts, health and safety, subsidiary governance and third 
party assurances.
20/21 – Governance – Strategic Planning 
21/22 – Governance – Performance Management
22/23 – Governance – Strategic Control

Assurance   

Risk

A robust risk management framework is critical to all organisations to ensure risks are effectively 
management and emerging risks identified our cyclical annual reviews will cover embedding risk, risk 
identification, risk mitigation and risk workshops. 
20/21 – Risk Mitigation – the financial sustainability risk will be addressed through key financial 
controls
21/22 – Risk Mitigation
22/23 – Risk Mitigation

Appraisal   

Financial systems - Cost Control and Income Maximisation

Cost control, income maximisation and robust financial systems are essential to financial well-being of 
any organisation. Our reviews of key financial systems are designed to ensure compliance with PSIAS 
and help protect against potential frauds. We will carry out a high level review of key financial systems 
each year supported by a rolling programme of financial system reviews such as payments health 
check, income, payroll, budgetary control/management reporting, cost improvement planning and 
nominal ledger.
20/21 – Key Financial Controls (Budgetary Control, Income and Debtors, Cash and Bank and Treasury 
Management)
21/22 – Key Financial Controls (Payroll and Expenses and Fixed Assets)
22/23 – Key Financial Controls (General Ledger, Creditors and Procurement)

Assurance   

ICT 

We will use our GUARD risk assessment to continue to review ICT risks and controls in place within the 
organisation. The rolling programme of reviews will include data protection, ICT governance, ICT 
management and business support, application reviews, network security, data quality and cyber 
security.
20/21 – ICT – ICT Strategy 
21/22 – ICT – GDPR
22/23 – ICT – Cyber Security

Assurance   

P
age 172



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 6

Review Area Type 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Follow Up

We will carry out a continuous follow up of internal audit recommendations utilising TIAA’s client 
portal and recommendation tracker. Updates will be provided to each Committee.

Follow Up   

Organisation Review Area

Staff Attendance and Wellbeing Strategy Assurance  - -

Planning Assurance -  -

Buildings Management and Maintenance Assurance -  -

Project Management Assurance - - 

Health and Safety Assurance - - 

Management and Planning

Contingency - 

Briefings -   

Planning -   

Annual Report -   

Management -   

Total Days 21 21 21

P
age 173



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 7

Annex C: Annual Plan – 2020/21

Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

Block 1

(Qtr 2) 

Key Financial Controls (Budgetary 
Control, Income and Debtors, Cash 
and Bank and Treasury 
Management)

Assurance Sustainable 
economic 

development

3 Risk

Ability to maintain financial sustainability

Rationale

Expected budget cuts

Scope

Budgetary Control - The review considers the budget preparation process, the monitoring arrangements, 
and reporting to the board. The scope of the review does not include consideration of the assumptions 
used in preparing the budgets; depreciation policies; apportionment of central costs; or financial 
information included in tenders prepared by the organisation.

Income and Debtors – The review will consider the arrangements for recording income and timely 
collection of balances owing.

Cash and Bank and Treasury Management – The review will consider banking arrangements, bank 
reconciliations, cash flow forecasting and compliance with the Authority’s treasury management policy

Block 1

(Qtr 2)

Wellbeing Strategy and Absence 
Management

Appraisal Organisation 
and 

Governance

3 Risk

Staff absence and impact on ability to deliver

Rationale

Staff wellbeing and mental health issues are a cross sector issue

Scope

The review will appraise the approach to staff wellbeing including the strategy and initiatives in place to 
support staff including in respect of staff mental health.   Consideration will also be given to the monitoring 
and reporting of staff absences and the actions identified within the strategy to address underlying causes.   
The review will not assess the effectiveness of the actions implemented. 

P
age 174



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 8

Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

Block 2

(Qtr 3)

Governance -Performance 
Management

Assurance Organisation 
and 

Governance – 
Obj. 1.

3 Risk

Strategic objectives are not achieved

Rationale

To ensure effective processes are in place to monitor the delivery of the strategic / corporate objectives 
following the restructure

Scope

The review considers the arrangements for providing assurance to the Authority and senior management 
through the use of Key Performance Indicators and the systems that are used to track and manage the 
attainment of these targets following the restructure undertaken in 2019/20. The scope of the review does 
not include consideration of the accuracy or completeness of all reports presented to the 
committees/groups or the appropriateness of all decisions taken.

Block 2

(Qtr 3)

ICT Strategy Appraisal Organisation 
and 

governance

4 Risk

Lack of appropriate prioritisation of spend on IT and failure to support strategic and operational plans.

Rationale

Additional funding provided by Welsh Government in March 2020 and need to ensure spending aligns to 
strategic priorities.

Scope

The review will consider how the ICT strategy supports the achievement of the Authority’s strategic plan 
including asset management and replacement strategy, IT capital budget, financial projections, horizon 
scanning and supports operational delivery.

The review will also consider the implementation following the outbreak of Covid-19 of Microsoft Office 
365 and Microsoft Teams and the controls in place in regard to system security and access control and 
management of the risks associated with remote working.

1-4 Follow-up Follow up - 1 Follow-up of implementation of agreed priorities one and two actions from audit reports, ensuring the 
Organisation is implementing recommendations, and providing reports to the Audit and Risk Assurance 
Committee.

1-4 Contingency N/A - 2 Contingency allowance to be used as required.

1 Annual Planning Managem
ent

- 1 Assessing the Organisation’s annual audit needs – requirement of Internal Audit Standards.

4 Annual Report Managem
ent

- 1 Reporting on the overall conclusions and opinion based on the year’s audits and other information and 
providing input to the Annual Governance Statement.

P
age 175



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 9

Quarter Review Type
BAF/Risk 

Ref.
Days Risk, Rationale and  Scope

1-4 Client Portal N/A - - The client portal provides a one stop shop of internal audit reports, progress and recommendation tracker 
as well as briefings, fraud alerts, fraud updates and committee briefings.

1-4 Management, Planning & Audit and 
Risk Assurance Committee 
Reporting/Support

Managem
ent

- 3 This time includes: meeting client management, overseeing the audit plan, reporting and supporting the 
Audit and Risk Assurance Committee, liaising with External Audit and Client briefings (including fraud 
alerts, fraud digests and committee briefings).

Total days 21

P
age 176



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 10

Role

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to provide, in an 
economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. TIAA is responsible for giving assurance to Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority’s “Governing Body” (being the body with overall responsibility 
for the organisation) on the adequacy and effectiveness of Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Scope

All Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s activities fall within the remit of TIAA. TIAA may 
consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure propriety, economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to confirm that Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s 
management has taken the necessary steps to achieve these objectives and manage the 
associated risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to question the appropriateness of policy 
decisions. However, TIAA is required to examine the arrangements by which such decisions are 
made, monitored and reviewed.

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, Audit and Risk Assurance 
Committee or the nominated officer (being the post responsible for the day to day liaison with 
the TIAA), provided such reviews do not compromise the audit service’s objectivity or 
independence, or the achievement of the approved audit plan.

Access

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel and premises of Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and is authorised to obtain such information and explanations 
as they consider necessary to form their opinion. The collection of data for this purpose will be 
carried out in a manner prescribed by TIAA’s professional standards, Information Security and 
Information Governance policies.

Standards and Approach

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance with the requirements 
of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Annex D: Audit Remit 

Independence

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the development, 
implementation or operation of systems. However, it may provide independent and objective 
advice on risk management, control, governance processes and related matters, subject to 
resource constraints. For day to day administrative purposes only, TIAA reports to a nominated 
officer within Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and the reporting arrangements must take 
account of the nature of audit work undertaken. TIAA has a right of direct access to the chair of 
the board, the chair of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee and the responsible accounting 
officer (being the post charged with financial responsibility).

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional judgement, responsibility for 
implementing audit recommendations rests with Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s 
management.

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for potential conflict of interest. 
In this role we will act in an advisory capacity and the nature and scope of the work will be agreed 
in advance and strictly adhered to. 

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious weaknesses, significant fraud, 
major accounting and other breakdowns subject to the requirements of the Proceeds of Crime 
Act 2002.

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including fraud, corruption or any 
impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can consider the adequacy of the relevant controls, 
evaluate the implication of the fraud on the risk management, control and governance processes 
and consider making recommendations as appropriate. The role of TIAA is not to investigate the 
irregularity unless commissioned to do so.

P
age 177



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 11

Corporate Assurance Risks

We consider four corporate assurance risks; directed; compliance; operational and 
reputational, and tailor the type of audit accordingly. For all types of audit we also taken 
into account value for money considerations and any linkages to the organisational 
Assurance Framework. The outcomes of our work on these corporate assurance risks 
informs both the individual assignment assurance assessment and also the annual assurance 
opinion statement. Detailed explanations of these assurance assessments are set out in full 
in each audit report.

Assurance Assessment Gradings

We use four levels of assurance assessment: substantial; reasonable, limited and no. 
Detailed explanations of these assurance assessments are set out in full in each audit report.

Benchmarking

Where a similar review is carried out at a number of our clients we will subsequent to the 
completion of the review at each of the clients we will where relevant provide a 
benchmarking and lessons learned digest. This digest will include Operational Effectiveness 
Matters for Brecon Beacons National Park Authority to consider.

Annex E: Providing Assurance

Types of Audit Review

The Annual Plan includes a range of types of audit review. The different types of review focus 
on one or more of the corporate assurance risks. This approach enables more in-depth work 
to be carried out in the individual assignments than would be possible if all four assurance 
risks were considered in every review. The suite of audit reviews and how they individually 
and collectively enable us to inform our overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the governance, risk and control arrangements is set out in the assurance mapping 
diagram.

P
age 178



Wales Audit Annual Plan 2020

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 24 July 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager/S151 Officer

Contact Details
Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report Covering report for Wales Audit Annual Plan 2020 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 Annual Audit Plan 2020

Recommendation(s) a) That the Committee considers the Annual Audit 
Plan.

1.1 Introduction or Background
The Audit Plan is enclosed.  Wales Audit staff have been invited to attend the meeting to 
present the plan to Members.

RECOMMENDATION:

a)  That the Committee considers the Annual Audit Plan.

Page 179

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



2020 Audit Plan – Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority
Audit year: 2019-20

Date issued: 1 April 2020

Document reference: [the Publishing team assigns this]

Page 181



This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of the Wales Audit Office or, where applicable, 
the auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General, in relation to any member, director, officer or other 
employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is 
drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The section 
45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, including 
consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales, the 
Wales Audit Office and, where applicable, the auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General are relevant 
third parties. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales 
Audit Office at infoofficer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will not 
lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh

Page 182

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents

Page 3 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

2020 Audit Plan

Our duties 4

Impact of COVID-19 4

Audit of financial statements 5

Performance audit 9

Fee, audit team and timetable 10

Page 183



2020 Audit Plan

Page 4 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

Our duties
1 We complete work each year to meet the following duties.

Audit of financial statements
2 Each year we audit the Authority’s financial statements to make sure that public 

money is being properly accounted for.

Value for money
3 The Authority has to put in place arrangements to get value for money for the 

resources it uses, and we have to be satisfied that it has done this.

Continuous improvement
4 The Authority also has to put in place arrangements to make continuous 

improvements and we also check if it has done this.

Sustainable development principle
5 Public bodies need to make sure that when making decisions they consider the 

impact they could have on people living in Wales now and in the future. We have 
to assess the extent to which they are doing this.

Impact of COVID-19
6 The COVID-19 national emergency has had an unprecedented impact on the UK 

and will significantly impact on local authorities’ preparation of the 2019-20 
accounts and our audit work, both financial audit and performance audit. 

7 Due to the UK Government’s restrictions on movement and anticipated sickness 
absence levels, we understand that many local authorities will not be able to 
prepare accounts in line with the timetable set out in the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2014. As well as the delivery of the Auditor General’s 
statutory responsibilities, our priority is to ensure the health, safety and well-
being of WAO staff, their families and those of our partners elsewhere in the 
public service at this incredibly challenging time.

8 In response to the government advice and subsequent restrictions, we have 
ceased on all on site work at audited bodies and our own offices. WAO staff are 
working from home and we will continue to make whatever progress we can 
whilst working and engaging with you remotely.

Page 184



Page 5 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority 

9 Consequently, this audit plan does not include any details in relation to 
completion of our audit work.  We will discuss a timetable with the authority once 
the current national emergency situation is over and the authority is in a position 
to prepare its accounts. 

10 We commit to ensuring that our audit work will not have a detrimental impact on 
you at a time when public bodies are stretched and focused on more important 
matters.  

Audit of financial statements
11 It is my responsibility to issue a certificate and report on the financial statements 

which includes an opinion on their ‘truth and fairness’:

 we plan to give an opinion on the Authority’s financial statements in 
accordance with a timetable to be agreed. 

 assess whether the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement and 
Narrative Report were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 
guidance. We also review whether they were are consistent with the 
financial statements prepared by the Authority and with our knowledge of 
the Authority.

12 In addition to our responsibilities for auditing the Council’s financial statements, 
we also have responsibility for:

 responding to questions and objections about the accounts from local 
electors (additional fees will be charged for this work, if necessary);

13 There have been no limitations imposed on me in planning the scope of this audit. 

14 Further information about our work is provided in our Statement of 
Responsibilities, which is available on our website (www.audit.wales).

Financial Statement Audit Risks
15 The following table sets out the significant risks I have identified for the audit of 

the Authority.

Page 185

https://www.audit.wales/


DRAFT

Page 6 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

Exhibit 1: financial statement audit risks

This table summarises the key financial statement audit risks identified at the planning 
stage of the audit.

Audit risk Proposed audit response

Significant risks

The risk of management override of 
controls is present in all entities. Due to 
the unpredictable way in which such 
override could occur, it is viewed as a 
significant risk [ISA 240.31-33].

My audit team will:
 test the appropriateness of 

journal entries and other 
adjustments made in preparing 
the financial statements;

 review accounting estimates for 
biases;

 evaluate the rationale for any 
significant transactions outside 
the normal course of business.

McCloud judgement
In 2015 the Government introduced 
reforms to public sector pensions, 
meaning most public sector workers 
were moved into new pension schemes 
in 2015. 
In December 2018, the Court of Appeal 
ruled that the ‘transitional protection’ 
offered to some members of the judges’ 
and firefighters’ schemes, as part of the 
reforms, amounted to unlawful 
discrimination. On 15 July 2019 the 
Government announced that they 
accept that the judgment applies to all 
of the main public service pension 
schemes.
The impact of the judgement is likely to 
have a significant impact on pension 
liabilities disclosed by the Authority.

My audit team will review the 
provision made in relation to the 
McCloud judgement and monitor 
progress on the development of 
proposals for a remedy to be applied 
in the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme.

Page 186



Page 7 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority 

Audit risk Proposed audit response

Significant risks

Impact of COVID-19 – general risks
The COVID-19 national emergency is 
likely to have a significant impact on the 
Authority and its accounts production 
process. Potential risks include:
 Subsequent events. The Authority is 

at present, unlikely to prepare its 
accounts in accordance with the 
timetable laid down by the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014.  
The shifting reporting deadlines 
increases the period (and therefore 
the related risks) for events 
occurring between the date of the 
financial statements and the date of 
the auditor’s report. The 
consequences of the virus post 31 
March 2020 will generally be non-
adjusting post balance sheet events 
but some form of disclosure may be 
needed.

 Use of estimates. The uncertainties 
and delays caused by the UK wide 
lockdown may result in actual data 
being unavailable and greater use of 
estimates in preparing he accounts

 Changing financial reporting 
framework. CIPFA/LASAAC have 
indicated that there may be 
significant changes to the 2019-20 
Code of Accounting Practice 
requirements. Changes will be 
reported in a Code Update. These 
are likely to result in a simplified 
statement of accounts. There is a 
risk that these significant new 
reporting developments may lead to 
errors in the accounting statements.

My audit team will undertake the 
following steps to ensure the risks 
arising from COVID-19 are 
adequately addressed:
 We will extend the period of 

review of subsequent events in 
order to identify any material 
subsequent events related to 
COVID-19, and whether these 
have been appropriately 
addressed or disclosed in the 
financial statements in 
accordance with the financial 
reporting framework. 

 We will consider if there are 
areas that may require 
management to provide further 
evidence due to the fast-
changing nature of this issue.

 We will ensure that appropriate 
changes been made to recognise 
any enhanced uncertainty in the 
calculation of accounting 
estimates (including impairment 
calculations). We will also 
consider whether assumptions 
are appropriate in the 
circumstances and

 We will adopt a greater focus on 
the following areas:
o The financial statement 

closing process (in particular 
journal entries and other 
adjustments made).

o The auditor’s evaluation of 
the overall presentation of 
the financial statements, 
including consideration of 

Page 187



DRAFT

Page 8 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

whether adequate 
disclosures have been made.

Page 188



Page 9 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority 

Specific risks linked to COVID-19 that may be dependent on 
changes to the reporting framework

Asset valuations
The crisis in global and local property 
markets means that the risk that PPE 
and investment property values are 
materially fairly stated is significantly 
increased. 
A recent RICS valuation alert identified 
concerns around material uncertainties. 
In some cases valuers’ reports may 
contain a statement to the effect that 
there is significant estimation 
uncertainty contained within this year’s 
valuations. 
In relation to a rolling valuation 
programme, with the current crisis, it is 
possible that those assets not revalued 
in the current year will not continue to 
be materially fairly stated at 31 March 
2020 because of movements either in 
local property markets or global 
construction indices. 
Where rolling programmes are put in 
place, the onus is on authorities to 
ensure that those assets not formally 
revalued in the year, remain materially 
fairly stated.

Subject to changes to the reporting 
framework set out in any Code 
Update, my audit work will consider 
the basis of asset valuations and any 
limitations imposed by disclaimers 
included in valuers’ reports.
We will examine carried forward 
valuiations for assets valued in prior 
years and consider the impact of 
movements in property markets and 
indices.

IAS19 pension liabilities
In many cases, actuaries use 31 
December / 29 February investment 
values for the purpose of calculating 31 
March net pension liabilities. 
The crisis in the financial markets will 
have had a significant impact upon Fund 
assets at the balance sheet date. There 
is a risk that pension liabilities may be 
materially understated. 

Subject to changes to the reporting 
framework set out in any Code 
Update, my audit work will consider:
 The basis for the valuation of 

pension fund assets and liabilities
 Actuarial assumptions that 

underpin the IAS19 valuations

Page 189



Page 10 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority Page 190



DRAFT

Page 11 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

Other areas of audit attention

The introduction of IFRS 16 Leases has 
been deferred until 2021-22 due to 
COVID-19. There is considerable work 
required to identify leases and the 
COVID-19 national emergency may pose 
implementation risks.

My team will undertake some early 
work to review preparedness for the 
introduction of IFRS 16 Leases. 

Performance audit
16 In addition to our Audit of Financial Statements we also carry out a programme of 

performance audit work to discharge the Auditor General’s duties set out on page 
4 in relation to value for money, continuous improvement and sustainable 
development. For 2020-21 this work is set out below.

Exhibit 2: Performance Audit Programme 2020-21

This table summarises the performance audit programme for 2020-21

Performance audit programme Brief description

Improvement audit and assessment 
work including improvement planning 
and reporting audit

Audit of discharge of duty to publish an 
improvement plan, and to publish an 
assessment of performance.

Our work programme for the 
Authority is to be agreed. Due to 
Covid-19 we have temporarily 
suspended all on-site performance 
audit work.

TBC

Fee, audit team and timetable
17 My fees and planned timescales for completion of the audit are based on the 

following assumptions:

 the financial statements are provided in accordance with a timescale to be 
agreed following the end of the COVID-19 national emergency, to the 

Page 191



Page 12 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority 

quality expected and have been subject to a robust quality assurance 
review;

 information provided to support the financial statements is in accordance 
with the agreed audit deliverables document;

 appropriate accommodation and facilities are provided to enable my audit 
team to deliver the audit in an efficient manner;

 all appropriate officials will be available during the audit;

 you have all the necessary controls and checks in place to enable the 
Responsible Financial Officer to provide all the assurances that I require in 
the Letter of Representation addressed to me;

 Internal Audit’s planned programme of work is complete and management 
has responded to issues that may have affected the financial statements; 
and

 set out the extent to which you intend to rely on Internal Audit’s work and 
where reliance is to be placed on the work of other auditors, specialists, 
etc.

18 If I do receive questions or objections, I will discuss potential audit fees at the 
time. 

Fee
19 Your estimated fee for 2020 is set out in Exhibit 4. There have been some small 

changes to my fees rates for 2019 however my audit teams will continue to drive 
efficiency in their audits to ensure any resulting increases will not be passed to 
you. The audit fee will be reviewed once we have taken into account any changes 
to the Code of Accounting Practice. 

Exhibit 3: audit fee

This table sets out the proposed audit fee for 2020, by area of audit work, alongside the 
actual audit fee for last year.

Audit area Proposed fee (£)1 Actual fee last year (£)

Audit of accounts2 27,195 27,195

1 Notes: The fees shown in this document are exclusive of VAT, which is not charged to 
you

2 Payable November 2019 to October 2020.

Page 192



DRAFT

Page 13 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority

Performance audit work3 17,108 17,084

Total fee 44,303 44,279

20 Planning will be ongoing, and changes to my programme of audit work and 
therefore my fee, may be required if any key new risks emerge or if there are 
significant changes to the financial reporting framework. I shall make no changes 
without first discussing them with the Authority

21 Further information on my fee scales and fee setting can be found on our website.

3 Payable April 2020 to March 2021

Page 193

http://www.audit.wales/about-us/fee-scales-and-fee-setting


Page 14 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority 

Audit team
22 The main members of my team, together with their contact details, are 

summarised in Exhibit 4.

Exhibit 4: my audit team

This table lists the members of the local audit team and their contact details.

Name Role Contact 
number

E-mail address

Anthony 
Veale

Engagement 
Director

02920 320585 Anthony.Veale@au
dit.wales  

Huw Rees Engagement Lead 
– Performance 
Audit

02920 320599 Huw.rees@audit.wa
les  

Deryck 
Evans

Audit Manager – 
Financial Audit

02920 320559 Deryck.Evans@audit
.wales  

Nick Selwyn Audit manager - 
Performance 
Audit 

02920 320612 Nick.Selwyn@audit.
wales 

Victoria 
Roberts

Senior Auditor - 
Financial Audit

02920 320668 Victoria.Roberts@a
udit.wales  

Timetable
23 We will continue to undertake such remote work as is possible during the COVID-

19 national emergency. However, as set out above, we will not be in a position to 
agree a timetable with you until the COVID-19 national emergency has passed. 

24 Therefore, we will report on a timetable for our audit work in due course.

25 I can confirm that my team members are all independent of the Authority and 
your officers. In addition, I am not aware of any potential conflicts of interest that 
I need to bring to your attention.

Page 194

mailto:Anthony.Veale@audit.wales
mailto:Anthony.Veale@audit.wales
mailto:Huw.rees@audit.wales
mailto:Huw.rees@audit.wales
mailto:Deryck.Evans@audit.wales
mailto:Deryck.Evans@audit.wales
mailto:Nick.Selwyn@audit.wales
mailto:Nick.Selwyn@audit.wales
mailto:Victoria.Roberts@audit.wales
mailto:Victoria.Roberts@audit.wales


Page 15 of 16 - 2020 Audit Plan – Authority Page 195



Audit Wales

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500

Fax: 029 2032 0600

Textphone: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

We welcome correspondence and telephone 
calls in Welsh and English. Rydym yn croesawu 
gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a 
Saesneg.

Page 196

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


 

Project Brief – Resilient and 
Sustainable Services in Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority 
Audit year: 2020-2021 

Date issued: July 2020 

Document reference: 1893A2020-21 

 

Page 197

Agenda Item 10



 

Page 2 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

This document has been prepared for the internal use of Brecon Beacons National 

Park Authority as part of work performed/to be performed in accordance with 

statutory functions. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of Audit Wales or, where 

applicable, the appointed auditor in relation to any member, director, officer or other 

employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be 

relevant, attention is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the 

Freedom of Information Act 2000. The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the 

handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, including consultation with 

relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales, 

Audit Wales and, where applicable, the appointed auditor are relevant third parties. 

Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to Audit 

Wales at infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. 

Corresponding in Welsh will not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a 

galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at 

oedi. 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in 

Welsh.  

Page 198



Contents 

Page 3 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Project plan 

Background to the review 4 

Purpose of the review 5 

Focus of the review 5 

Legislative basis for the review 7 

Method 8 

Main review questions 9 

Output 9 

Timetable 10 

Fieldwork schedule 11 

Document requests 11 

Audit Wales contacts 12 

 

Page 199



Project plan 

Page 4 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Background to the review 
1 Our 2020-21 work will focus on resilient and sustainable working, specifically 

financial and workforce resilience within a corporate setting and will consider 

issues that were identified during our 2019-20 work. This project brief sets out why 

we are undertaking the review in Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and 

outlines its focus, methodology, outputs and timing. 

2 Since 2018 the three Authorities have been working to priorities set out in the 

Welsh Government’s ‘Valued and Resilient’ paper1. The paper places an emphasis 

on improved collaboration with other partnerships and ensuring the Park 

Authorities build on their existing resilient environments and support their local 

community’s resilience. To support this, the Welsh Government also specifies that 

Park Authorities should adopt resilient ways of working. 

3 To deliver the Welsh Government’s ambitions not only requires enhanced 

collaboration and engagement, but also sets out ambitious expectations ‘to work 

collaboratively to adopt an innovative and resourceful mindset, including increasing 

revenue streams from those already existing in the area and increasing their 

commercial acumen’. 

4 These increased expectations come at a time when the Welsh Government itself is 

revising its policy objectives, with an expectation that National Park Authorities will 

have a wider role. This includes the National Landscape partnership arrangements, 

delivering the expectations of the new socio-economic duty2 as well as continuing 

to deliver the ambitions of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. An enhanced 

role in a time of financial uncertainty raises the possibility that services could 

become overstretched, increasingly unsustainable and leave National Park 

Authorities at risk of not delivering their statutory responsibilities. On top of this is 

the added uncertainties facing public bodies as they emerge into the post Covid-19 

environment.  

5 Our previous work has already highlighted the challenges of maintaining service 

resilience, but this has been brought into sharper focus as it becomes increasingly 

clear that organisations must prepare themselves for a future of potentially great 

uncertainty. 

  

 

1 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/areas-outstanding-natural-
beauty-national-parks-2018-report%20.pdf 
2 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-11/a-more-equal-wales-
commencing-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf 

Page 200



 

Page 5 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Purpose of the review 
6 Our 2018-19 and 2019-20 Well-being of Future Generations audit work found good 

examples of collaboration and engagement and also identified areas where the 

Authority needs to strengthen its work. It was clear that the National Park Authority 

values its relationships with other national and local partners.  

7 However, it was also clear that all three National Park Authorities are facing 

significant financial and capacity challenge. Consequently, for 2020-21 we are 

proposing to undertake a review at each National Park Authority to support 

improvement, help inform the Auditor General’s conclusions in relation to his duties 

and to provide assurance on how well the Authority is addressing the financial and 

capacity challenges all public bodies face. The review will enable us to provide a 

commentary on how resilient and sustainable the Authority is. The review will also 

consider the impact of Covid-19 and the risks from the recovery planning phase all 

public bodies will be going through when public services start to come out of this 

crisis. 

8 The work will provide assurance to the Authority on the risks it faces but also the 

Welsh Government on the challenges facing the sector. This review will therefore 

provide assurance by reviewing the Authority’s financial and workforce capacity to 

establish a baseline to monitor future resilience. 

Focus of the review 
9 The review will seek to answer the question: Is the National Park Authority 

effectively managing its resources to secure its long-term organisational 

resilience? Given the unprecedented circumstances in which the Authority currently 

finds itself, we will provide assurance on its ability to respond to the crisis in the 

short-to-medium term, in the context of organisational resilience.  

Financial resilience and sustainability 

10 Determining financial resilience is not an exact science and is risk-based looking 

at several indicators alongside each other. CIPFA have produced a Financial 

Resilience Index tool3 in England as an aid for Chief Financial Officers in local 

authorities. They have established indicators around sustainability of reserves, 

expenditure and interest payable, debt levels, fee levels against service 

expenditure and council tax requirements, to give an overall picture of financial 

resilience levels. The relevant elements and principles used in the tool will 

support our lines of enquiry for this review. 

11 Sound financial strategies are essential when considering resilience. 

Organisations need sound written strategies but also need to embed strategies at 

 
3 https://www.cipfa.org/services/financial-resilience-index 

Page 201



 

Page 6 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

all levels of an organisation to inform the decision-making process. Findings from 

the 2019-20 Audit Wales review of financial sustainability in local government 

highlights that despite the significant financial pressures faced by councils many 

councils’ accounts are still showing significant underspends, along with growing 

useable reserves. Published reviews from this financial sustainability review also 

highlight that whilst councils have established medium-term financial plans, some 

councils are not operating in line with their strategies. 

A sustainable and resilient workforce  

12 At the heart of a resilient organisation is a resilient workforce, building on effective 

teams that are made up of highly motivated staff who are capable of adapting to 

changing circumstances. Characteristics of a resilient workforce include 

passionate, energetic staff with high levels of morale and low staff turnover. Access 

to effective training opportunities, career progression and fair pay can also help 

create a more resilient workforce. 

13 Creating an effective workforce and the right organisational culture is also only 

possible with strong leadership, accountability and an effective governance 

structure. A resilient public body is also one that embraces open dialogue and uses 

its scrutiny function to focus on challenging officers to help achieve the 

organisation’s desired outcome4.  

14 Increasing pressures through broadening of remits and the perceived impact of 

austerity mean many staff’s workloads are generally increasing with fewer 

resources available. Our work in 2019-20 found that in some areas, staff are 

beginning to show signs of stress as a result of this increased workload and this is 

not always apparent when looking at statistics or conducting evaluation exercises. 

Our work will seek to explore this further through engagement with staff. 

Recovery planning 

15 Recovering from the global pandemic crisis will take time once any response 

phase has concluded. Previous pandemics have brought about significant change 

across society and it is likely that National Park Authorities, as with all public 

bodies will find themselves in a changed operating environment, with financial 

issues to address, a change in citizen and visitor behaviour and changed 

expectations from the workforce around new ways of working. Authorities may be 

working with additional risks and alignment of strategies may need to be re-

established. 

 

 
4 Wales Audit Office, Good Scrutiny? Good Question! (Appendix 2 – Outcomes and 
characteristics for effective local government overview and scrutiny), May 2014.  

Page 202



 

Page 7 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Organisational recovery 

16 The consequences are likely to last for several years for most organisations, but 

there will also be opportunities to reflect on current approaches and to learn from 

innovative practice, necessitated by the crisis. Therefore, National Park Authorities 

will need a clear recovery plan which looks at their response to the crisis, the 

impact the crisis has had on finances and staff and clear arrangements put in place 

to move towards sustainable recovery and rebuilding a stronger, more resilient 

organisation that can stand up against future economic shocks.  

Community recovery 

17 Public bodies in the United Kingdom are familiar with disaster recovery planning 

and have experience of supporting communities to rebuild from natural disasters 

and acts of terrorism. It is important to learn the lessons from organisations familiar 

with dealing with this type of disaster recovery. Research from Europe and the 

United States shows that an important element of recovery planning is to ensure 

there is adequate consideration of public bodies’ communities to promote a 

functioning and healthy economy and infrastructure.  

18 For example, our review of United Kingdom civil contingencies guidance and the 

United States Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) toolkit5 finds some 

common features on how public bodies should respond to disaster recovery. 

Support should: 

 be sufficiently resourced and realistic; 

 have strong community support and fill a post-disaster need; 

 create leverage for other projects and funding, including private investment; 

 be sustainable to ensure the community is resilient for future generations; 

 directly assist the recovery within the planned recovery time; 

 have crosscutting benefits that have a positive economic impact and bring 

new opportunities; 

 be highly visible to the community to help build community capacity and 

raise citizen morale; 

 link with other projects to maximise the impact; and 

 enhance the quality of life in the community and have a community-wide 

impact. 

19 Part of our review will consider how the Authority is preparing itself for any 

recovery phase. 

 
5 Long-Term Community Recovery Planning Process, A Self-Help Guide, December 
2005. 

Page 203



 

Page 8 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Legislative basis for the review 
20 This project is being undertaken to help discharge the Auditor General’s duties 

under sections 17 and 41 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and section 15 of 

the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015. 

Method 
21 In undertaking this project, we will also draw on the findings of our other ongoing 

and recent work. Our methodology has been designed to minimise the burden on 

the Authority and consider practical restraints brought about as a result of Covid-19 

restrictions.  

M1 A review of cumulative audit and inspection knowledge and experience 

(CAIKE) – obtained from financial audit colleagues involved in the financial 

sustainability work and our recent performance audit work at the Authority. 

M2 An assessment of financial data and narrative around the key indicators of 

financial resilience. We will complete this assessment drawing on 

information held in the statement of accounts specifically looking at: 

a. Performance against budget  

b. Delivery of savings plans  

c. Use of reserves  

d. Use of grants 

e. Borrowing 

M3 Review of national performance data that NPAs provide to the Welsh 

Government and the Authority’s locally collated performance indicators. 

M4 Review governance systems, including the Corporate Governance Code, 

committee reports and minutes. 

M5 Overview of key areas of spend – what is prioritised and how financial plans 

have been considered. 

M6 Document reviews (full list on page 12). 

M7 A short staff ‘pulse’ survey to identify the current challenges facing the 

Authority and how they are being addressed. 

M8 A focus group to explore survey findings. 

M9 A ‘pulse’ survey of Authority Members to assess their views on the National 

Park’s resilience and sustainability. 

M10 An interview with the Authority Chair in order to obtain his views on the 

National Park’s response to the current crisis and future resilience, using 

video conferencing where necessary. 

M11 Interviews with Authority Members to obtain their views, gain insight into 

their role and perspectives and capture further nuances around the issues 

examined in M9, using video conferencing where necessary. 

Page 204



 

Page 9 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

M12 National interviews with the Welsh Government.  

M13 An online focus group with key senior staff to test our initial findings. 

M14 Review of Covid-19 ‘SenseMaker’ analysis for findings relevant to this study. 

M15 Consideration of Covid-19 recovery plans. 

M16 Interviews with the senior team, using video conferencing if necessary. 

22 We will not:  

 focus on issues covered in previous Audit Wales reviews on partnership 

working and involvement. 

 engage with the organisation’s partners as in previous years. 

 place an unnecessary burden on staff or partners, where we can obtain 

evidence through other means. Any engagement will primarily be to test 

evidence obtained through a desktop review. 

 duplicate requests for information that we retrieve from ‘SenseMaker’ work. 

Main review questions 

Exhibit 1: main review questions 

The table below sets out the main questions we will seek to answer in undertaking this 

review. 

Level 1 

Is the NPA resilient and sustainable in the medium term? 

Level 2 

 Does the NPA have robust and effective financial management systems? 

 Does the NPA have suitable governance and scrutiny arrangements to ensure 
effective decision making on financial and workforce matters? 

 Is the NPA workforce resilient to respond to periods of significant change both 
now and in the future? 

 Does the NPA manage its assets economically, efficiently and effectively to 
ensure they remain sustainable in the longer term? 

 Does the NPA have effective business continuity plans in place that support 
corporate resilience and help sustain services? 

Page 205



 

Page 10 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Output 
23 The findings from this review will be set out in a report that will also include 

proposals for improvement and comparison and commentary on other National 

Park Authorities in Wales. 

Timetable 

Exhibit 2: timetable 

The table below sets out a proposed timetable for the review at the Authority. 

Proposed timetable 

Draft project brief to be agreed with 
NPAs and final issued 

July 2020 

Desktop and remote fieldwork, 
including surveys 

July – October 2020 

Online focus group and/or visit to 
Authority offices for staff interviews with 
key staff, (dependent on our fieldwork 
policy) 

November 2020 – January 2021 

Report issued March 2021 

 

  

Page 206



 

Page 11 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Fieldwork schedule 

Audit approach 

24 Like everyone, Audit Wales has been closely monitoring the fast-moving situation 

regarding the spread of the Covid-19 virus. Whilst we have to ensure we deliver 

our statutory responsibilities, the Auditor General’s priority has been to ensure the 

health, safety and wellbeing of Audit Wales staff, their families and those of our 

partners elsewhere in the public service at this incredibly challenging time. 

25 Consequently, we will seek to ensure wherever possible that our audit work does 

not have a detrimental impact on the National Park Authority and its staff at a time 

when public services are stretched and focused on more important matters. We will 

continue to be as supportive and flexible as possible in the delivery of our work. 

We will engage with the National Park Authority to agree how we will deliver our 

interviews and fieldwork. Whilst we are conscious that our audit must not detract 

from the important work of public bodies at this critical time, we also believe it can 

add value and insight to support organisations to become more resilient. 

26 Towards the end of our fieldwork, we intend to run two online focus groups with 

key senior staff and members. The purpose of this would be to minimise the 

burden on the Authority through extensive interviews and to conduct the work in a 

more informal setting. This would be interactive, with an emphasis on sharing 

information both ways. We will gather staff and Member knowledge and intend to 

open up discussion on our initial findings. This will have the look and feel of a ‘live’ 

audit, to ensure the emphasis is put on adding value to staff who are contributing. It 

may contain front line staff and/or senior officers/members.  

Document requests 
27 Prior to on-site interviews and observations, we will undertake a review of the 

documents identified below. However, we would be grateful if you could supply us 

with any additional documents which you feel may be relevant to our work in this 

area. The list is not exhaustive and requests for additional documents may be 

made during the course of the review. Where documents in the list below are 

publicly available on the Authority’s website, we would be grateful if you could 

please direct us to where we can find them. 

28 We will also review the findings and evidence relating to the Authority from our 

previous local government study undertaken during 2019-20. 

  

Page 207



 

Page 12 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Exhibit 3: the table below sets out the documents we would like to request initially 

as part of this review (where possible, we will obtain this information internally or 

through publicly available sources) 

Document Title 

 Corporate plans 

 Code of Corporate Governance 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Risk registers 

 Committee minutes and reports (Audit Committee, Member support Committee, 
Personnel Committee, scrutiny committee) 

 Financial strategies/plans/framework 

 Statement of Accounts 

 Budget books  

 Fixed asset register 

 Business Continuity plans 

 Sickness absence and occupational health policies 

 PPE and safe working practice guidance 

 Relevant working papers 

 Website review of financial information, details of budget consultation and public 
information on Covid-19 

Audit Wales contacts 

Exhibit 4: Audit Wales contacts 

The table below sets out the Audit Wales team that will be working on this review at 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. 

Name Contact details 

Performance Audit Director Huw Rees 

Performance Audit Manager Nick Selwyn 

Page 208



 

Page 13 of 14 - Project Brief – Resilient and Sustainable Services in Brecon Beacons National Park 

Authority 

Name Contact details 

Performance Audit team Euros Lake 

Matthew Brushett 

Philippa Dixon 

Steve Frank 

Page 209



 

 

 Audit Wales 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

We welcome correspondence and 
telephone calls in Welsh and English. 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a 
galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. 

Page 210



Integrated Assurance Framework

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 24 July 2020

Report Author P Funnell

Job title Systems and Performance Manager

Contact Details Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To update members on progress delivering the Corporate 
Plan 2019/20 as at the end of the last quarter

Single Integrated 
Assessment

Not applicable

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 – Integrated Assurance Framework Q4 
2019/20

Enclosure 2 – Detailed Performance report Q4 
2019/20

Public Interest Test Not applicable 

Recommendation(s) a) That Members review the report and raise any 
matters of concern or interest with officers

1.1 Introduction or Background

The delivery of this update has been delayed by the cancellation of the last committee and 
consequently this committee would ordinarily be receiving the report for quarter 1 2020/21.  It 
has not been possible to bring that report due to the delays in agreeing the Corporate Plan for 
2020/21 imposed by the impacts on capacity and resources of the Coronavirus pandemic and 
the changes in working arrangements it has entailed.  Nevertheless, the Integrated Assurance 

Page 211

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Framework (IAF) report enclosed includes some additional comments on activity 01 April to 30 
June where possible and appropriate.

In order to address a lack of clarity identified at the January meeting about the relationship 
between budgetary reports and performance reports two columns have been added to the IAF 
for financial comments and a finance red/amber/green status.  These reflect the lead officers’ 
(budget holders) views about the financial circumstances of the objectives and actions set out in 
the document.

The detailed performance report as previously delivered is also included for any additional 
information that it might contain since at a previous meeting some Members of the committee 
indicated that they found this format clear and helpful.

These are the last reports that will originate from the performance management system that 
the Authority has been using since 2012 and there is now an opportunity for Members and 
officers to scope their requirements for performance reporting in future.  To assist with this 
the Systems and Performance Manager has had discussions with officers at Powys County 
Council on the systems in use there and will be seeking input on the requirements definition 
process via surveys and discussions early in quarter 2.

The draft annual report for 2019/20 will be brought to the next committee.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

a) That Members review the report and raise any matters of concern or 
interest with officers

Page 212



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter Implications for next quarter

Overall 

RAG status

Finance 

Comment

Finance 

RAG Main Risks Current and planned controls for the risks

Summary 

Risk RAG Recent assurance activity

Heritage

Built heritage

Undertake a programme of 

Conservation Area development 

and review.

The Conservation Area review for Crickhowell and 

Llangattock has been finalised and preperation is in train for 

presentation to NPA.  The development of a new 

Conservation Area for the Brecon and Mons Canal is at 

project plan stage but work is halted due ot Covid-19 

restrictions in movement.

Brecon and Monmouthshire Canal CA project 

will be risk assessed to determine feasibility of 

implementing this qurater.  

GREEN GREEN

Risk associated with meeting the action - capacity of 

the Heritage team to deliver a programme of CA 

appraisal given current work loads and priorities 

around statutory processing of Listed Building 

Applications. Failure to meet the action could 

potentailly result in the loss of built heritage assets 

through failure to be protected by CA status.  

Similarly where out of date appraisals exist the basis of 

our policy (and decisions made in accordance with it) 

could fail if challenged at appeal.  In addition to the 

identified risks the coronacrisis has had implications 

on field based work and there are associated  and 

resultantrisks of delay to implementation of new and 

revised CA 

Prioritisiation of work load of Built 

Heritage Officers by line managers.  

Rationalisation of planning related work. 

Further joint working with CC to share 

best practice and utilise their inhouse 

expertise to manage community based 

projects.  Further development of remote 

working technology to engage with 

individuals 

AMBER

Review of Crickhowell 

and Llangattock 

consultation draft by NPA 

and current consultation 

on proposals with 

stautory bodies of control 

(eg CADW and WG)

Volunteering

Develop a programme increasing 

opportunities for volunteering 

within Heritage sector

Due to the coronacrisis and embargo on site based activity for 

volunteers no progress has been made in relation to this 

action.

As restrictions in movement begin to be lifted 

officers will undertake further feasibility 

assessment for both utilising existing 

volunteers and expanding the programme. 

GREEN GREEN Capacity of heritage officers to take on the 

management of volunteers given work load within 

statutory planning function whilst also managing 

restrictions in movement brought about by the 

coronavirus.

Prioritisiation of work load of  Heritage 

Officers by line managers.  Rationalisation 

of planning related work. Further joint 

working with Archaeological Trusts to 

share best practice and utilise their inhouse 

expertise to manage community based 

projects.  Risk assessment of process in 

relation to coronavirus.

AMBER Risk assessment of 

officers work in the field 

could be related to 

vouluteer time and 

activity.

Place plans
Place Plan development  for 

Brecon supported
Brecon Plan was presented to  NPA for consultation on the 

11th of February, consultation phase significantly extended due 

to  corona virus restrictions in movmenent.  

Officers will continue to support individual 

communities in the development of Place 

Plans.  Further work needs to be undertaken 

to understand how the Authority wants to 

progress Place Plans and how that can be 

resourced.

GREEN GREEN

Temporary project support by NPA officer (WG 

funded) is driving the process. Ongoing officer support 

essential to finalise plan.  WG funding for role until September 2020

AMBER

Brecon Town Plan has 

been assessed by external 

stakeholders.  Range of 

parnters aiding in the 

delivery of the site.

Actions/Status Risks and Controls

Conserve and 

enhnace the 

cultural heritage 

of the Park's 

communities 

including the use 

of the Welsh 

Langauage; Built 

Heritage and the 

Historic 

Environment.

Tracy 

Nettleton

Details Finance

P
age 213



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20
Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter Implications for next quarter

Overall 

RAG status

Finance 

Comment

Finance 

RAG Main Risks

Current and planned 

controls for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Landscape and 

Biodiversity

Develop plans Finalise the NRAP

Update June 30 2020:  ERAMMP meeting 

completed with Wales' DLs February 2020.  

Habitat network mapping contract tendering 

underway; Reading University future landscape 

modelling commisioned.  Mynydd Du Phase 1 

contract tendering underway; Fire Risk 

Modelling project underway with JNCC and 

NRW.

Habitat network mapping and State of Nature report 

work underway (Corporate objectives); also awaiting 

outputs from Reading University's landscape 

modelling.  Presentation from VWT due on their 

habitat suitability and permeability modelling (species-

based); meeting scheduled for ERAMMP and 

designated landscapes' data needs December.  

Update January 13th 2020:  Vital Signs outputs will be 

presented to LNP for signing off and moving towards 

grant applications, which if successful will lead to 

three new posts, one of which to be hosted here.  

ERAMMP meeting postponed until February 2020.  Is 

real possibility for a real and strong survey and 

monitoring programme but the Authority overall 

needs to make space and time for this.  Update June 

30 2020:  Contracts and projects will be underway 

for habitat network mapping and future landscape 

modelling.  Mynydd Du Phase 1 might  be completed, 

Fire Risk Modelling project will be concluding.  Vital 

Signs full project proposal might be in development. 

GREEN GREEN

Staff time, data, 

methodologies.  Update 

January 13th 2020:  

organisational restructure 

adds significant new risk by 

reducing staff capacity and 

increasing uncertainty over 

future working relationship 

with warden service and 

future ecological capacity, 

expertise and relationship 

management.  Update June 30 

2020:  C-19 lockdown has 

delayed work, extended the 

time to get work started and 

will continue to delay work 

given backlogs and partnership 

staff on furlough.

Regular team planning by 

Ecology team.  Update 

January 13th 2020:  but 

regular team planning is not 

sufficient; organisation overall 

needs to be readjusted to 

increase NRAP delivery.  

Update June 30 2020:  

flexible timetable.

AMBER

Agree priorities
Prioritise the NRAP actions, 

including the five key actions.

Update June 30 2020: Third position statement 

approved by NPA (Peatland, River and 

Wetland Restoration) and all three now 

translated and available for posting on NPA 

web site.  INNS project extended until March 

31 2020; supporting NRW to develop its 

Concept Note for a LIFE NATURE application 

for South Wales Rivers including River Usk.

LNP governance will be resolved.  BBNPA has a 

useful NRAP budget, which will be offered as 

leverage towards larger funding; "Vital Signs project 

development" also underway (ENRAW project 

development grant), with review meetings scheduled; 

final outputs due February 2020.  Update January 

13th 2020:  the two new position statements, which 

demand leadership, need to be adopted and pushed 

forwards now by CGT and SLG.  Further 

opportunities for more capital funding will continue 

to make life difficult given staffing constraints.
GREEN GREEN

Seeking agreement, which is a 

low risk.  Higher risk is 

securing sufficient will to act.  

Update January 13th 2020:  

organisational restructure 

adds significant new risk by 

reducing staff capacity and 

increasing uncertainty over 

future working relationship 

with warden service and 

future ecological capacity, 

expertise and relationship 

management.  Update June 30 

2020:  C-19 lockdown has 

delayed work, extended the 

time to get work started and 

will continue to delay work 

given backlogs and partnership 

staff on furlough.

Will be achieved by agreeing 

priorities from the actions 

agreed already, and by 

agreeing governance.  Is a 

role for Members to work 

with partner organisations' 

boards and trustees, and 

Directors to work with 

partners' equivalents, to 

secure high level 

collaboration.  Update June 

30 2020:  flexible timetable.
AMBER

Engagement and 

communications

NRAP communications plan 

suitable for LNP use

Update June 30 2020:  Communications plan 

finalised, materials purchased and plan is now 

being used.  Supported Wales Biodiversity 

Week during start of June 2020.

Internal meeting scheduled for NY to finalise the plan 

once LNP governance is finalised and priorities 

agreed. AMBER GREEN

Main risk staff and partner 

capacity. Partners have 

furloughed staff and NPA 

capacity is focused on CV-19.

Governance structure 

agreement, and priorities 

agreed, and clear internal 

lines of communication.

AMBER

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Develop and 

deliver a Nature 

Recovery Action 

Plan - ‘A Future 

with Nature at 

its Heart’ to 

restore wildlife 

and habitats and 

build a network 

of resilient and 

better connected 

ecosystems 

within the 

National Park

Paul 

Sinnadurai

Details Finance

P
age 214



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter

Implications for next 

quarter

Overall RAG 

status

Finance 

Comment

Finance 

RAG Main Risks

Current and planned 

controls for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Public 

transport 

promotion

Information provision on non-car 

transport options to enable wider 

access

Website only - no dedicated resources other 

than website management.  Links to Welsh 

Govt over Trawscymru development. Info for 

passengers planned n bus shelters on A470 

under Wales Way project.  Discussions with 

NT about Pen y Fan access.

Website only.  Pursue 

influence on WG 

Trawscymru re 

Abergavenny-Swansea 

service.  A470 bus 

shelter info provision 

RED

only officer 

time 

available
GREEN

Public guidance on using 

public transport from WG re: 

CV-19 advises against the use 

of public transport unless 

absolutely necessary. Limited 

resources within team and Manage expectations

RED

Await guidlines from WG. 

It will be a huge challenge 

to get people out of cars 

back onto public 

transport in a CV-19 

recovery.

Schools 

inclusion 

activity

Fairplay project (transport funds for 

schools to have an educational visit 

to the National Park)
Visits were delivered 1 week prior to 

lockdown.

Lockdown has 

cancelled/postponed all 

visits in remainder of 

school year. Strong 

interest from schools 

and bookings made 

AMBER GREEN

No-date for the resumption 

of school visits from WG.

Public Engagment Manager is 

working closely with WG 

partners and professions 

about future access/lifting of 

restrictions.

AMBER
On-going management. 

Working closely with WG 

and sector guidance.

Active aging 

and small steps

Social inclusion action research  

projects for older people and mental 

health. 

Active Ageing project completed Dec 2019                                                     

Small Steps project ongoing to Sept 2020 - 

offcier support continues remotely providing 

online resources and virtual activities.  

Ongoign feedback to monitor activity and well 

being of participants. 

Covid lockdown has 

postponed direct 

contact with participants  

- officer led activity will 

be reduced capacity  -  

resuming activity with 

GREEN GREEN

Possible minor delay in final  

project outputs although the 

project objective for final 6 

months included creating  

independance which has 

happened  prematurely with 

Continue to work remotely  

with the participants   and 

provide online resources. 

Individual participants have in 

fact increased their activity 

during lockdown. Explore 

GREEN

On-going project officer 

support and management. 

SDF Projects

Grant Fund to develop and test ways of 

achieving a more sustainable way of living 

in a countryside of great natural beauty 

and diversity in which the local 

characteristics of culture, wildlife, 

landscape, land use and community are 

conserved and enhanced. 

29 projects were awarded SDF funding for 

projects in 2019/20 - £222,596 grant spend 

with an external funding ratio of  3.69 :1 

Grant reduced to 

£100,000 (50%) in 20.21.  

Financial burden as a 

result of covid and 

lockdown may increase  

requests for 

continuation funding 

from SDF and /or a 

reduced number of 

applications due to the 

lockdown measures. 

Conversely there could 

be an increase in grant 

applications as  groups 

and charities face funding 

crisis. Officers are 

maintaining and 

signposting groups to 

Covid specific funds. 

Reduction in capacity 

with officers covering 

the SD Managers role in 

addition to own work. 

GREEN GREEN
Officer time utilised on group/ 

charity suport and community 

development rather rather 

then developing SDF 

applications. Officer time 

pressured with addtional 

work load.  Projects failing to 

obtain  match funding to start 

& spend to profile inc. in year.  

Projects failing to spend grant 

in timeframe due to external 

factors

Officers mitigating risk by 

seeking alternative accessible 

grants to signpost groups to 

and  supporting with 

fundraising.  Each grant 

award letter  advises that 

match funding must be in 

place within 3 months or 

project will be subject to SDF 

panel review. SDF  officers 

work closely with projects to 

monitor delivery and  liaise 

with CEO and Finance 

Manager to utilise financial 

year carry where 

appropriate. 

GREEN

On-going management by 

officers

Waterfalls 

Country

Integrated project delivering in 19/20 and 

developing partnership and external 

funding eoi and bid

Community engagement process continuing 

including initiating Waterfall Futures project.  

See SED for full report.  Second of quarterly 

community newsletters issued successfully.  

Trust with local residents developing.

Ensure communities are 

protected from CV19 in 

partnership with Police, 

Powys, NRW, NPT etc.  

Once CV19 restrictions 

allow start work on 

Waterfall Futures Phase 

2 but continue 

community information 

process to reassure 

residents on CV19 and 

beyond

GREEN

spend 

proving 

effective - 

more long 

trem 

plannign 

required
GREEN

Key partner involvement.  

Community dis-enagement. 

Community feels 

overwhelmed by illegal visitors 

during lockdown.

Officers are engaging direct 

with each partner and the 

community.  CXV19 

partnerhsip established at NP 

and local level to manage 

risks and enforce law. GREEN

Get Into the 

Beacons 

project

Training project for NEET young people 

with Princes Trust. 

Project completed January 2020

Delivery until 13.12.19 

then evaluation & 

report.

GREEN GREEN

Project completed Jan 2020 Project completed Jan 2020

GREEN
project completed Jan 

2020

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Collaborate to 

identify key 

challenges and 

progress 

innovative 

solutions for 

sustainable living 

in the National 

Park

Ceri 

Bevan/Richard 

Tyler

Enable a diverse 

cross section of 

society to gain 

health and 

wellbeing 

benefits from the 

National Park

Ceri Bevan/ 

Sunita 

Welch/Richard 

Tyler

Resilient Communities - Objective 2

Resilient Communities - Objective 1

Details

P
age 215



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter

Implications for next 

quarter

Overall RAG 

status

Finance 

Comment

Finance 

RAG Main Risks

Current and planned controls 

for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Organisational and 

governance review

Reviewing internal structures and 

the governance structure to ensure 

they are fit for purpose

The Governance & Member Development 

Working Group have overseen the action plan 

to implement changes and review effectiveness.  

Further changes to governance continue to be 

made in order to progress key workstreams.  

New process agreed for self-nomination of 

chairs and deputy chairs at the AGM.  Virtual 

platforms procured and implemented for virtual 

meetings, and worked with Welsh Government 

on the legislation to allow this to happen for 

NPAs

Implementing agreed 

changes

GREEN

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN

Email updates, staff briefings, 

role of SMF, review of 

reporting requirements

GREEN

Ongoing and recent 

communication activity

Policy Forum

Encouraging all members to 

contribute to the business of the 

Policy Forum

Agendas have necessarily been driven by the 

LDP and NPMP timetables but the 

establishment of a member/officer Policy 

Working Group has relieved the main forum of 

some of the detailed analysis.  A programme of 

external speakers will be a key part of 

encouraging more members to contribute 

during meetings, although attendance has been 

high throughout the year.

Pending governance 

review recommendations

GREEN

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN

Forward planning of timetable 

and agenda

GREEN

Attendance at Policy 

Forum and quality of 

debate and discussion

Gathering evidence

Building the evidence base to 

support policy development and 

decision making

Evidence base on Teams in regular use by 

policy officers and some managers.  Some SoPR 

new data added and updated in draft report, 

other data awaited and will be added before 

publication if possible.

More robust approach 

to project to be 

implented ASAP.

AMBER

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN

New project approach, 

escalating unfulfilled requests

AMBER Regular oversight at Policy 

Forum and Policy Working 

Group

Communications 

plan

Produce and commence delivery of 

a clear engagement strategy and 

supporting communication plan(s) 

which links delivery and advocacy, 

setting out our stall

Communications Plan produced in draft but 

delayed due to vacant post and requires further 

work. Climate Change and Woodlands Position 

statements adopted

Strategy to be finalised 

and agreed

RED

No budget 

identified

AMBER Recruit to appropriate post 

as part of change programme 

implementation

RED

Draft Communications 

Plan

Advocacy work
Using success to gain political 

support and resources
Stakeholder engagement undertaken as per 

CEO Announcements but requires a more 

structured approach.

Draft budget 

announcement and 

additional funding 

potential has implications 

for the implementation 

of the change 

programme.

AMBER

WG 

Additional 

pressures 

funding 

recieved in 

year

GREEN

See objective 3, below

AMBER

Development of position 

statement approach

Organisation and 

Develop clear 

future priorities

Establish clear strategic priorities 

against which to develop & design 

new projects

On hold due to Covid-19 pandemic impact on 

Authority working arrangements

Revisiting and completing 

work of first two 

quarters in light of final 

decision on structure 

and revised change 

programme

RED

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN All Senior Managers and 

Managers briefed about new 

process & requirement for it 

to be followed

AMBER

Revision of draft project 

development process 

documents in line with 

new work programmes & 

focus areas

Align project 

reporting with new 

work programmes 

& focus areas

Integrate new work programmes & 

focus areas as key criteria into 

project output & outcomes 

reporting

Project review team (SLG + other officers) met 

twice to review proposals, score them, align 

them with 3WP and 9FA, and establish 

potential funding sources.  Since then largely on 

hold due to Covid-19 pandemic impact on 

Authority working arrangements, however, 

existing documents have been shared for group 

review in Teams, with particular focus on 

changes in potential funding sources, when 

other priorities allow.

New model to be 

developed based on this 

framework and lessons 

learned at PSB.  Funding 

secured for replacement 

of current Corporate 

Performance 

Management system.

AMBER

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN

Review of project reporting 

to involve lead project 

officers to obtain buy in & 

support

AMBER

Confirmation of NPMP 

review process to align 

with work programmes

Develop revised 

project evaluation 

process

Align future project evaluation 

process with new priorities & 

feedback learning into ongoing 

project development

Project review team made constrsutvie 

criticism and suggestions for improvemnts to 

the evaluation process when proposing and 

scoring projects in Q4.  Since then work has 

been on hold due to Covid-19 pandemic 

impact on Authority working arrangements

Review of process and 

live testing of it with a 

new round of proposals 

to be carried out early in 

Q4 aligned to WG 

communications re: 

budget

AMBER

Sufficient 

budget

GREEN
Development of revised 

evaluation process to involve 

lead project officers & other 

relevant colleagues to obtain 

buy in & support

AMBER

Review of current project 

outcomes against emerging 

new priorities as part of 

change programme, with 

identification of priority 

projects as a result (shared 

with Members at Policy 

Forum)

Visitor sites 

development plan
Flagship site proposal

Clearer plan needs to be 

articulated in relation to 

the various funding 

strands which have been 

secured (e.g. green 

growth fund, play area 

funding, etc.)

RED

WG funding 

in place

GREEN

CEO will need to lead 

discussion with Members on 

decisions going forward.

RED

Member decision at Dec. 

NPA indicative of weak 

assurance on this matter

Telling our story
Public Engagement Strategy on hold 

until new priorities confirmed
RED

No budget 

identified

AMBER

See objective 2.  Policy 

officers group working on 

communication plan for LDP 

and NPMP.

RED

Visitor sites 

strategic plan
Overall plan awaiting as above RED

No budget 

identified

AMBER RED

Organisation and Governance - Objective 2

The Authority is 

recognised for 

the quality of its 

decision-making 

and governance

Julian Atkins

Actions/Status

Organisation and Governance - Objective 1

Details Finance

Sunita Welch

To improve the 

way we 

communicate 

our work

Julian Atkins

Organisation and Governance - Objective 4

To define a 

programme for 

developing the 

Authority’s 

public facing 

property assets 

to help the 

Authority tell the 

National Park 

stories in 

inspirational 

ways

Paul Funnell 

(for Delivery 

Director)

To improve the 

way we select, 

design, 

implement and 

evaluate projects

P
age 216



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter Implications for next quarter

Overall RAG 

status

Finance 

Comment Finance RAG Main Risks

Current and planned controls 

for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Tourism 

business 

engagement

Several projects & workstreams 

including Day to Stay, Geopark 

marketing, Ambassadors - most 

100% externally funded

2019-20 Q4: D2S: Moving forwards well.  Key 

partners workign well together.  CV19 issues 

about to cause serious problems.   AGP:  

Partnership beginning to work efficiently now.  

Major projects in hand.  Hosted transnational 

meeting in March. ACS key focus is to deliver 

communications role for partnership - plan 

completed and first stage implementation in 

hand. Mountains & Moorlands Ambassador 

project successfully  concluded.

2020-Q1:  D2S: CV19 halted much 

work but should return to 

priorities in Q2;  AGP: work on 

handbook, charter and App;  ACS: 

continued work on partnership 

communications role but cluster 

consultation initiated;  Abrs: 

courses and contact via webinars 

and video conferencing, plans for 

summer & autumn being laid. 

GREEN

external 

funding being 

claimed on 

time and 

projects on 

budget with 

minor 

variations 

acceptable to 

funders

GREEN

CV19 disruption.  Core staff 

time.  Promotion not reaching 

target group

Good partnership working. 

Use of webinars instead of 

face to face training.  Good 

communications between 

partners. 

Green

Project claims including 

reports and indicators 

approved

Brecon 

Beacons 

Sustainable 

Destination 

Partnership

Maintain and develop Partnership 

working especially with business 

sector through regular Board and 

Delivery Group meetings as well as 

Task and Finish groups.

DDG meeting held - lawst one defferred due 

to CV19.  Website operational and being 

managed successfully in a partnership format.  

Social media agreement at final stage but 

operating well.

DDG meetings held to plan 

reaction to CV19 crisis.  Board 

deferred.  Website largely 

complete and partnership 

agreements in place.  Organise 

Board & Delivery group meetings 

to further develop CV19 response

GREEN

No budget 

required 

beyond staff 

time

GREEN

Destination website - on-

going capacity of staff.  

Partnerhsip structures are 

dependent on staff time (from 

partners and NPA) being 

available. Risk of partner 

commitment declining.

Team working internally  and 

with partners..

GREEN

On going monitoring of 

website and social media 

performance.

Visitor 

experience

Enhance Visitor Experience through 

high quality interpretation and 

information.   Projects 100% 

externally funded.  Support local 

walking festivals and centre-based 

opportunities

Waterfall Country  Still largely in Phase 1 - 

short term actions to relieve pressures on local 

communities and build trust.  Regular 

community newsletter published (quartlerly or 

more frequently), car parking restrictions at an 

advanced stage on development - implemntn 

April, discussions on Lower Pontneddfechan 

with NPT CBC progresing, etc.  The 

foundations of P{hase 2 are being put in place 

with developing partnerhsip working on 

community engagement, communications and 

transport.                      Wales Way all 

proposals moving forwards towards 

implemtnation in Q1 2020-21 but CV19 likely 

to halt operations on the ground. Festivals 

supported where appropriate

Waterfalls Programme disrupted 

by CV19 crisis.  Transport, 

communications and Waterfalls 

Futures reports received.  Deep 

partnership workign over 

response to illegal visitors.  

Implementation of TRO and 

yellow lines.                      Wales 

Way:  mostly halted by CV19 

crisis.
GREEN

Waterfalls - 

no shortage of 

budget but 

Phase 1 

actions have 

taken more 

time than 

anticpated.  

Need for the 

developmentn

of a full Phase 

2 & 3 

implentation 

plan.  Under 

development.  

Wales Way.  

All claims 

submitted on 

time.  

AMBER

Lack of community 

engagement.  Poor partner 

engagement/delivery.  Poor 

planning

High engagment in partners 

and community.  Good 

project management 

structures

green

Welsh Audit Office report 

on Waterfalls project.  

Claims for Wales way.

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Richard 

Tyler/ Sunita 

Welch

Work with key 

partner 

organisations to 

promote and 

support 

sustainable 

income 

generating 

opportunities in 

the National 

Park while 

preserving the 

special natural 

and cultural 

qualities of the 

NP

Details

Sustainable Economic Development

Finance

P
age 217



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Performance Report

Corporate Plan 2019/20 Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

1 Heritage

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Measure Description Owner Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment

1.1.5 Education Programme Sunita Welch Sunita Welch 260.00 400.00

Amber

Unfortunately global pandemic 
Covid-19 caused numerous 
cancellations this month. 14 
schools (620 learners) had to be 
cancelled as a result of 
nationwide school closures and 
lockdown. Number of participants 
would otherwise have been 880 -
comfortably in line with normal 
expectations for March.

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

1.1.1 Ambassadors - language 
and culture

1.1.1 Further develop the Ambassador programme 
to promote Welsh Language and culture

Matt Scanlon In Progress On Track 80

Green

Nothing to report, I only offer the 
Welsh Culture Ambassador once 
a year, so one will be due in 
October/November 2020.

1.1.2 Ambassadors - Industrial 
heritage

1.1.2 Further develop the Ambassador programme 
to promote industrial heritage

Matt Scanlon In Progress Behind 10
Amber

Nothing to report

1.1.3 Sustainable Development 
Fund

1.1.3 Support national park and community projects 
promoting heritage

Matt Scanlon In Progress Behind 50

Amber

The current position regarding the 
Sustainable Development Fund 
for 2019/20 is as follows:-77% 
paid out6% Spent but not 
claimed2% Unallocated15% 
delayedtotal 267, 411The Fund is 
being reduced by £100,000 in 
2020/21, leaving £71,681 
currently available to be 
allocated. The priorities for the 
Fund are under review.

1.1.4 Volunteering 1.1.4 Develop a programme increasing 
opportunities for volunteering within Heritage sector

Matt Scanlon In Progress Behind 20
Amber

No change, other than of course 
the suspension of volunteering 
associated with Covid.

1.1.6 Built heritage 1.1.6 Develop a programme increasing 
conservation areas within the NP and ensure all 
current conservation area appraisals are up to date.

Matt Scanlon On Time 90

Green

CA review - there has been some 
progress but delayed due to 
current circumstances (COVID) 
and looking to next NPA for CA 
reports - they were due to go in 
March

1.1.7 Built heritage & Wardens' 
programme

1.1.7 Joint project between heritage and wardens to 
maintain and enhance cultural and built heritage 
within NP ownership

Matt Scanlon In Progress On Time 50 • Work has commenced on a 
draft action Plan for The Iron Age 
hillfort at Garn Goch. A Method 

Page 1 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 219



Green

Statement for a programme of 
volunteer vegetation 
management at the site has been 
developed. Will commence when 
circumstances/ volunteer work 
diaries allow.• The draft action 
plan for Pen Y Crug still stands, • 
Maen Mawr reporting has been 
completed, • The Metal Detecting 
Guidance has gone to committee 
I think (may also have been put 
on hold). • Method Statement for 
a program of conservation works 
at the Fan Brycheiniog Bronze 
Age Barrow is in place. Work will 
commence when circumstances / 
warden diaries/ airlifts allow�

1.1.8 Place Plans 1.1.8 Develop a programme to provide grant 
funding for place based heritage projects

Matt Scanlon In Progress Behind 50
Amber

Brecon Town Plan is out for 
consultation

Page 2 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 220



Performance Report

Corporate Plan 2019/20 Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

2 Landscape and Biodiversity

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

2.1.1 Nature Recovery - develop 
plans

2.1.1 Work with Local Nature Partnership members 
to develop nature recovery delivery plans

Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Time 95

Green

All plans being implemented were 
on schedule prior to C-19 
lockdown; now being 
rescheduled. A clear plan now 
articulated for the NRAP budget.

2.1.2 Nature Recovery - agree 
priorities

2.1.2 Agree the priority ecosystems and constituent 
habitats/sites for NRAP delivery

Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Time 55

Green

Prioritisation has been finalised 
and timetable set out; curtailed by 
C-19 lockdown and therefore 
being re-profiled.

2.1.3 Nature Recovery -
engagement and communications

2.1.3 Develop a public engagement and 
communications plan to raise awareness about 
nature recovery, garner support and sound the 'call 
for action'

Sunita Welch In Progress On Track 60

Green

Communications plan now back 
on track and publicity materials 
commissioned and available; 
materials and plan in active use 
(C-19 restrictions affecting this, 
however).

2.1.4 Vital signs project 2.1.4 Work with partners to finalise the project 
application surveillance and monitoring programme 
for the Brecon Beacons National Park

Paul Sinnadurai Complete On Time 95

Green

All project background reports 
produced pending final comments 
from LNP partners; delayed by C-
19 lockdown. Preparing and 
submitting the full VS grant 
application will be programmed 
for 2020-21.

2.1.5 State of Nature Report 2.1.5 Agree the priorities and evidence 
requirements for the State of Nature Report and 
ecological network maps

Paul Sinnadurai In Progress Behind 25

Amber

Delivery timetable tied to SoPR 
timetable; Ecological Network 
mapping contract to be let during 
2020-21 FY; State of Nature 
evidence currently being 
compiled in support of SoPR and 
indicators.

2.1.6 Asset management register 2.1.6 Complete asset register and condition 
assessment across Authority-owned land

Paul Sinnadurai Complete On Time 100
Green

Paper submitted to CGT for 
March 12th 2020 in advance of 
submission to NPA.

2.1.7 Asset management plan 2.1.7 Produce updated Asset Management Plan Paul Sinnadurai Complete On Time 100
Green

Paper submitted to CGT for 
March 12th 2020 in advance of 
submission to NPA.

Page 3 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 221



Performance Report

3 Resilient Communities Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

3.1 Health and Wellbeing

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

3.1.1 Social Inclusion Plan 
monitoring

3.1.1 Social Inclusion and Child Poverty position 
statement, policy and delivery of actions including 
those in the Inspironment and Small Steps projects

Ceri Bevan Complete On Track 100
Green

Final version completed. Covid 
statement added.

3.1.2 Health and Wellbeing 
actions

3.1.2 Health and Well-being policy and delivery of 
actions including those in the Active Aging and 
Small Steps projects

Ceri Bevan On Time 100
Green

Active Aging project completed. 
Small Steps on track project to 
Sept 2020

3.1.3 Public Transport Promotion 3.1.3 Information provision on non-car transport 
options to enable wider access

Ceri Bevan

3.1.4 Schools inclusion activity 3.1.4 Deliver the education programme, including 
Fairplay transport subsidy for high Free School 
Meals % schools

Lora Davies In Progress 60

Green

350 learners visited this FY from 
schools with 20% or higher free 
school meals. 60 Learners visited 
before lockdown in March. Visits 
by 259 learners cancelled for 
covid-19 pandemic -hopefully to 
be re-booked later in the year.

3.1.6 Upland Path repairs 3.1.6 Deliver the year's upland path project work in 
BMs and Central Beacons; continue to develop the 
Upland Volunteer teams.

Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Time 95

Green

A range of path improvements 
and peatland restoration projects 
in BMs and Central Beacons; 
final completion delayed by 
weather and now C-19 lockdown; 
rescheduled for autumn 2020.

3.1.7 Destination Website 3.1.7 Destination Website launched and evaluated 
throughout the year.

Sunita Welch In Progress 100
Green

Brief and budget underway for 
phase 2 in 2020/1 FY

3.1.8 Public Engagement Actions 3.1.8 Education and Interpretation - communities 
worked with and stories told - including: Gunpowder 
works, Black Mountains LUP, Wales way. NPA and 
Destination website.

Sunita Welch

Page 4 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 222



Performance Report

3 Resilient Communities Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

3.2 Sustainable Living

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Measure Description Owner Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment

BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a 
result of SDF, including in kind 
contributions

Julian Atkins Ceri Bevan 369.00 200.00
Green

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

3.2.2 Visitor Management 
Waterfalls Country

3.2.2 Develop partnership interventions and 
messages to respond effectively to visitor pressure. 
Collaboratively explore mechanisms for ownership 
and direct community benefit from footfall. 
Identifying potential for and develop landscape 
scale funding app

Clare Parsons Behind 100

Green

Practical and communication 
work developing well. Community 
meeting in Dec worked well. 
Newsletter distributed. 
Communications plan agreed 
with partners. PNF car parking 
concept delayed by partnership 
issues - new plan developed but 
impacted by CV19 issues.

3.2.4 Deliver Get Into the Brecon 
Beacons skills project with 
Princes Trust

3.2.4 Skills programme for NEET young people with 
Princes Trust Cymru

Ceri Bevan Complete On Time 100

Green

Project completed, report and 
claim to Arwain - awaiting final 
grant payment delayed due to 
Powys Staff redeployment.

3.2.5 Seek funding for further 
skills projects

3.2.5 To meet identified need and deliver NPA's 
evidenced ability to fill this gap

Ceri Bevan In Progress Behind 25

Amber

Projects submitted for WG 
unfunded pressures - WG 
withdrew this area of funding due 
to Covid-19.

3.2.6 Explore innovative housing 
solutions

3.2.6 For lower earners not eligible for social 
housing -to retain people in communities

Ceri Bevan Not Started Behind
Red

This area of work has not been 
initiated

Deliver Place Plans WG funded 
project

Ceri Bevan In Progress On Time 100
Green

Brecon Place Plan - consultation 
open Place plans on going 
project until Sept 2020

Page 5 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 223



Performance Report

Corporate Plan 2019/20 Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

4 Sustainable Economic Development

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Measure Description Owner Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment

BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a 
result of SDF, including in kind 
contributions

Julian Atkins Ceri Bevan 369.00 200.00
Green

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

4.1.01 Sustainable economic 
policy

4.1.01 Produce a policy to support a sustainable 
economy as part of NPMP and LDP processes and 
LDP and linked to actions and baseline evaluation

Clare Parsons In Progress Behind 40
Amber

delayed by CP departure and 
CV19 crisis

4.1.02 Brecon BID 4.1.02 Support development of Brecon BID 
Business Improvement Plan whilst ensuring 
businesses respect environmental constraints

Ceri Bevan Complete On Time 100
Green

Ballot voted against Brecon 
Business Improvement District 
BID process ended.

4.1.03 Deliver Place Plans WG 
funded project

Ceri Bevan In Progress On Time 100
Green

Brecon Place Plan - consultation 
open Place plans on going 
project until Sept 2020

4.1.05 Sustainable local food 
economy

4.1.05 Work with farmers and producers to enhance 
the quality and quantity of local food availability 
through the ABC project if approved.

Richard Tyler In Progress Late 50

Red

Project approval completed, 
internally and externally but 
recruitment halted by CV19 crisis. 
Work proceeding slowly in 
absence of officer

4.1.06 Sustainable Destination 
Partnership

4.1.06 Maintain and develop Partnership working 
especially with business sector through regular 
Board and Delivery Group meetings as well as Task 
and Finish groups.

Richard Tyler In Progress Behind 100

Amber

CV19 crisis has interrupted 
meeting cycle but partners 
working well together outside the 
formal structures. Will re-institute 
in 2020-21

4.1.07 FforestFawr UNESCO 
Global Geopark

4.1.07 Maintain and develop Geopark programme 
using it to realise benefits from the different offer in 
the west building on its natural and cultural heritage

Richard Tyler In Progress On Time 100
Green

Interreg project now delivering. 
Revalidation delayed by CV19 
crisis

4.1.08 Visit Wales Partnership 
work

4.1.08 Bring local benefit from Visit Wales 
programmes: The Year of Discovery and Wales 
Way

Richard Tyler In Progress On Time 100

Green

major body of work completed 
although elements that were to 
happen May 2020 have been hit 
by CV19 crisis. LLangors Toilets 
completed.

4.1.09 National Park marketing 
work

4.1.09 Develop marketing partnership working: 
Work with public and private sector partners to 
deliver website, social media, print and PR to 
benefit the destination

Richard Tyler In Progress On Track 100

Green

Social media agreement 
complete. Joint approach to 
marketing proceeding well.

4.1.10 Tourism Business 
Engagement Actions

4.1.10 Develop business engagement through 
Ambassador and Business Training programme 
and one off events

Richard Tyler In Progress On Time 100
Green

most training completed ahead of 
CV19 close down. One day 
cancelled.

Page 6 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 224



4.1.11 Visitor Experience 4.1.11 Enhance Visitor Experience through high 
quality interpretation and information. Support local 
walking festivals and centre-based opportunities

Sunita Welch In Progress On Track 80

Green

Delays largely overcome until 
CV19 hit. Tasks due to be 
implemented Apr-June 2020 now 
delayed. Llangors Loos complete.

4.1.12 Tourism Projects 4.1.12 Deliver externally funded projects once 
approved: Atlantic Geoparks Interreg, Craig Y Nos 
Geopark Hub and Wales Way capital project

Richard Tyler In Progress On Track 100

Green

All proceeding well with the 
exception of Culturescapes which 
has had a complicated pathway. 
Here branding work completed 
but interviews were delayed by 
that work. Team work has 
overcome this and project is now 
largely back on track apart from 
issues over gathering businesses 
together under CV19 rules.

Page 7 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 225



Performance Report

5 Organisation and Governance Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

5.1 Decision making and governance

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Business Planning - governance 5.1.7 Streamline business and governance 
arrangements by reviewing agendas and reports

Julia Gruffydd On Track

Green

Better management of decision 
making and working with chairs to 
plan agendas and limit items and 
number of supporting 
documentation. 

Business Planning - structure 5.1.8 Bring forward proposals for further structural 
changes, revised financial model and associated 
work plans

Julian Atkins In Progress Behind 65

Amber

End of consultation period on 
second change programme 
proposals coincided with C19 
lock down, change programme 
suspended.

Gathering Evidence 5.1.3 Building the evidence base to support policy 
development and decision making

Paul Funnell In Progress Behind 95

Amber

Draft SoPR brought to Policy 
Forum. Evidence base 
established in Teams/SharePoint 
during remote working enforced 
by lock down.

Key Work Areas 5.1.2 Empowering and embedding the Key Work 
Area Groups

Julia Gruffydd In Progress On Track

Green

Policy Working Group has 
effectively replaced the Key Work 
Area Groups is operating and 
complementing work of the Policy 
Forum. Good engagement from 
some members

Member Development 5.1.6 Making best use of Members’ skills Julia Gruffydd Complete On Track 100

Green

Engagement with the member 
development programme in the 
last quarter was affected by the 
pending reduction in the number 
of members and also COVID-19 
which caused several sessions to 
be cancelled. Year end 
attendance was down overall due 
to some sessions being repeat or 
refreshers.

Organisational and Governance 
Review

5.1.4 Reviewing internal structures and the 
governance structure to ensure they are fit for 
purpose

Julia Gruffydd In Progress On Track 100

Green

Governance Action Plan will 
continue into 2021/22 with 
structures being kept under 
review with the reduction of size 
of the Authority. New members 
appointed will be helped to 
contribute where they can in the 
committee structure.

Policy Forum 5.1.1 Encouraging all members to contribute to the 
business of the Policy Forum

Julia Gruffydd In Progress On Track 100 Policy Forum has operated well 
with good attendance but 
agendas need to be ambitious to 

Page 8 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 226



Green

meet the needs of the LDP and 
NPMP timetables. The Policy 
Working Group will help to 
address the detail before it gets 
to the Forum. This will continue to 
be kept under review in 2020/21.

Page 9 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 227



Performance Report

5 Organisation and Governance Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

5.2 Understanding and awareness

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Advocacy work 5.2.2 Using success to gain political support and 
resources

Julian Atkins Behind 40
Amber

Additional position statements 
produced on woodlands and 
evidence.

Communications Plan 5.2.1 Produce and commence delivery of a clear 
engagement strategy and supporting 
communication plan(s) which links delivery and 
advocacy, setting out our stall

Sunita Welch Behind 40

Red

Work not progressed after 
departure of Comms Officer. No 
capacity and team under 
pressure from CV-19 pandemic.

Page 10 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 228



Performance Report

5 Organisation and Governance Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

5.3 Project management

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Project approvals and 
prioritisation 

5.3.1 Design a process for approving projects Julian Atkins Complete On Time 100

Amber

Projects proposed, evaluated, 
scored, ranked and grouped. 
Evaluation process critiqued with 
suggestions for improvement.

Project outcome evaluation 5.3.2 Establish a methodology for evaluating the 
success of projects

Julian Atkins In Progress Behind 60

Amber

Not possible to make further 
progress after departure of 
Delivery Director with existing 
resources given prioritisation of 
new project proposals and 
securing funds.

Page 11 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 229



Performance Report

5 Organisation and Governance Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

5.4 Asset management

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Outcome Updater Current Period 31 March 2020

Overall Status Progress 
Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Development Plan for our Visitor 
sites

5.4.3 Produce a site specific plan for the National 
Park Visitor Centre

Sunita Welch Overdue 50
Red

All centres safely shut for covid-
19 Pandemic

Telling our Story 5.4.1 Install a new interactive interpretation screen 
at the National Park Visitor Centre

Sunita Welch In Progress 50
Amber

Project progressing with content 
development underway.

Visitor sites strategic plan 5.4.2 Produce a strategic plan for the Authority’s 
principal visitor facing assets.

Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 50

Green

Asset register and gazetteer, and 
asset mgmt plan completed; latter 
with recommendations to 
Authority on retention/disposal of 
assets.

Page 12 of 12Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (43).mhtml

P
age 230



Full Risk Register

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 24 July 2020

Report Author P Funnell

Job title Systems and Performance Manager

Contact Details Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To present the full risk register to the committee in order 
that it might provide assurance on risk management matters 
to the Authority

Single Integrated 
Assessment

Not applicable

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 – full register as at June 2020

Public Interest Test Not applicable

Recommendation(s) a) that Members review the register and raise any 
matters of concern or interest with officers

1.1 Overview

The Authority’s risk registers are maintained by its various management teams with oversight 
from the Corporate Governance Team.  

An update on the higher scoring risks is a standing item on the agenda for Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee and the committee receives the full register on an annual basis.

On this occasion the register contains an additional section on the risks extant due to the 
Coronavirus pandemic.  The risks in this section were agreed, scored and documented by the 

Page 231

Agenda Item 12

mailto:Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Authority’s Coronavirus Emergency Management Team which has been meeting online on a 
weekly basis since lock down.

There is a read across on some risks between the risk register and the Integrated Assurance 
Framework also presented in this agenda, but this is not the case for all risks since some do not 
relate directly to the delivery of the Corporate Plan.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

a) that Members review the register and raise any matters of concern or 
interest with officers

Page 232



All Risks on Register

BBNPA Risk Register Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Coronavirus risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

access to the Park Risk to the Authority’s reputation and public 
standing posed by C19 lock-down restrictions on 
access to the Park and constraints on the 
Authority’s communication of their rationale

Possible Moderate

Amber

Work of: 
comms team on 
public 
messages, 
delivery team 
on the ground, 
leadership team 
on liaison with 
WG

capacity risks to delivery The risk to the delivery of outcomes due to partner, 
officer and volunteer capacity impairment from C19 
impacts on resources

Very Likely Severe
Dark 
Red

lockdown alternate working 
arrangements 

Risk to the Authority’s services and functions posed 
by C19 lock-down alternate working arrangements 
(capacity of staff, health and well-being of staff, 
efficiency of processes and systems use)

Likely Severe

Red

New risk agreed at CGT to be 
discussed at CEMPT and ASC

Discussion at 
CEMPT, 
guidance to 
managers, FAQ 
for staff, IT 
support, HR 
support, staff 
survey, 
managers 
tasked with 
team 
organisation 
overhaul, 
change 
programme 
suspended and 
under review, 
corporate plan 
overhauled

public health risks at Authority 
managed sites

Risk to the public’s health and wellbeing of C19 
infection arising from an easing of access 
restrictions

Likely Moderate

Amber

Comms through 
website and 
social media, 
recovery plans 
for open 
country side 
with RAG 
phasing, HQ re-
opening 
planning, 
signage at key 
sites and entry 
points, car park 
monitoring and 
reporting app in 
development. 
Work with 
partners at 
authority 
managed sites.

risk to officers and members Risk to the health and well-being of the Authority’s 
staff, members and volunteers, and knock-on effect 
on service delivery, of C19 infection on return to 
working from our premises

Unlikely Severe

Amber

Planning 
underway for 
phased 
reopening of 
Authority 
premises in-line 
with WG 
guidance, 
survey issued 
to all managers 
to capture 
requirements of 
the working 
arrangements 
for their teams

Page 1 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 233



All Risks on Register

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Corporate Governance risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

02 - Members' compliance with 
code of conduct

Reputation and financial impacts Possible Severe

Amber

Reviewed at CGT 18 Jun, 
likelihood reduced due to change 
in circumstances and mitigating 
actions

Code of 
conduct training 
for new member

03.3 Failure in Information 
Governance arrangements

Information governance Lack of compliance 
monitoring across all business/service areas

Possible Severe

Amber

Member 
training to be 
scheduled. All 
planning staff 
advised to 
refresh DPA 
awareness 
training via 
ELMS as a 
consequence of 
recent event.

04 BCP & DRP risk to Authority services through inadequate 
business continuity and disaster recovery 
arrangements

Unlikely Severe

Amber

Work of BCP 
group taken up 
by CEMPT 
and 'return to 
work' planning 
team. Cloud 
migration will 
mitigate further 
over time.

13 - Lack of continuity of 
membership of the National Park 
Authority

Risk to delivery of organisational objectives through 
requirement to induct and train new members in 
decision-making and allow them to become familiar 
with organisational history and culture

Likely Moderate

Amber

Need to plan for 
member 
reduction and 
development of 
leadership 
skills. To be set 
out in member 
development 
programme 
20/21.

Member 
induction and 
development 
programme

18 - Financial constraint Constraint on Authority’s ability to deliver objectives 
and services due to restricted financial settlement 
and income

Possible Severe

Amber

Change 
programme 
includes 
financial 
scenario 
planning to 
accommodate 
potential 
reduction from 
WG. Directors 
have had 
meetings with 
senior govt 
officials who 
indicated 
uncertainty 
around budget 
but we expect 
confirmation by 
end November. 
Members have 
been briefed on 
the most recent 
circumstances.

Change 
programme 
includes 
financial 
scenario 
planning of non
staff and staff 
costs also 
controls this 
risk through 
contingency 
planning.

19 - Corporate capacity Constraint on Authority’s ability to deliver services, 
meet obligations and realise opportunities due to 
senior officer capacity 

Very Likely Very Severe

Dark 
Red

Transformation 
programme 
underway

Exploring 
external 
support options

21 - Welsh Language Act risk to the Authority's financial and reputational 
standing through non-compliance with Welsh 
Language Act and standards

Unlikely Moderate

Green

New WLO 
appointed

Page 2 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 234



22 - Inadequate general Reserves risk to delivery of services and viability of the 
Authority through being unable to meet exceptional 
unforeseen mandatory expenditure re: planning, 
health and safety, redundancy, etc. due to reserves 
being at a level deemed inadequate by the Section 
151 officer

Possible Very Severe

Red

Range of 
scenarios have 
been forecast 
for the change 
programme 
planning and 
the decision 
being taken by 
NPA which 
should lead to a 
balanced 
budget.

23 - Governance arrangements Risk that the Authority's governance arrangements 
are not adequate to meet its statutory, regulatory 
and operational requirements

Likely Moderate

Amber

Newly 
established 
Policy working 
group provides 
additional 
capacity

24 - Authority accomodation post 
PYF

That the Authority's changing accommodation 
arrangements are disruptive to its service delivery

Possible Severe

Amber

Impact adjusted 
as over

25 - Asset management 
arrangements

Reputational and financial risks associated with 
property and land assets

Possible Severe

Amber

Staff discussion 
scheduled and 
action plan to 
be developed 
by PS following 
that discussion.

26 - Legal issues The risk that legal proceedings bring negative 
financial and reputational impacts

Possible Moderate

Amber

C&A engaged 
to deal with 
some 
encroachment 
issues.

Page 3 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 235



All Risks on Register

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Health and Safety risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

06 - Compliance failure/litigation: 
external

The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure 
in health and safety compliance in the Park as a 
whole resulting in the potential for litigation

Possible Very Severe

Red

Risk 
assessment 
training now 
complete for 
>60 staff, a few 
remaining

09 - Compliance failure/litigation: 
our estate

The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure 
in health and safety compliance within the 
Authority's land or buildings resulting in the 
potential for litigation 

Possible Very Severe

Red

Risk 
assessment 
training near 
completion, 
directors' 
training 
complete. DPP 
6 month check 
completed at 
PYF. Asset 
review report 
received and 
being actioned.

Page 4 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 236



All Risks on Register

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Information and IT risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

03.1ii Hardcopy RM Lack of hardcopy key document management Possible Moderate

Amber

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data 

Unlikely Moderate

Green

PAC/PAR/PLAN
, ROW and 
committee 
records to be 
reviewed, 
scanned and 
captured once 
budget 
identified. 
Assets review 
underway.

Page 5 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 237



All Risks on Register

BBNPA Risk Register Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Risk Register Delivery

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

03.1ii Record Management Lack of hardcopy key document management Likely Moderate

Amber

PAC/PAR/PLAN
, ROW and 
committee 
records to be 
reviewed, 
scanned and 
captured once 
budget 
identified. 
Assets review 
underway.

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data

Unlikely Moderate
Green

06 - Paths and RoW 
erode/deteriorate - lack of 
funding/mgtm plans, env impacts

also environmental impacts Likely Moderate

Amber

Reviewed by PS June 30 2020: 
Arson and illegal off-road vehicle 
use spiked during C-19 lockdown; 
adds to the pressures. NR Team 
is discussing the potential 
implications of new countryside 
access proposals by the WG's 
Access Reform Advisory Group 
(significant increased 
maintenance costs implications), 
which reports to WG during 
autumn 2020.

New ROWIP to 
policy forum in 
Nov

17 - Buildings condition and 
maintenance

Lack of strategic continuity planning for BBNPA 
buildings

Possible Moderate

Amber

Asset review 
report received.

short term contracts and role 
continuity

Business continuity and reputation risk arising from 
increasing reliance on fixed term project-focussed 
contracts

Very Likely Severe

Dark 
Red

Page 6 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 238



All Risks on Register

BBNPA Risk Register Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Risk Register PLA

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2020

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency

01 - Risk from Members 
overturning planning 
recommendations

Likely Severe
Red

03.1ii Hardcopy RM Lack of hardcopy key document management Unlikely Minor

Green

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data

Possible Moderate

Amber

05 - Degradation of cultural and 
historical heritage, including 
buildings at risk, through lack of 
resources

Likely Minor

Amber

Staff resources 
in place, 
funding on offer 
WG

07 - DC Service Performance Risk to the Park's special qualities and Authority's 
reputation through poor DC service performance 

Likely Severe
Red

07.1 - Enforcement Service 
Performance

Risk to the park's environment through poor 
enforcement service performance

Possible Moderate
Amber

08 - Personal safety of staff Unlikely Moderate

Green

De-escalation, 
personal safety 
and conflict 
management 
training revisited

09 - Internal applications Risk to finance, reputation and staff relations from 
necessity for internal applications since new legal 
advice

Likely Moderate

Amber

10 - timetable, soundness and 
adoption of LDP

risks to the timetable for delivery, tests of 
soundness and ultimate adoption of LDP2

Likely Severe

Red

Continuing to 
maintain the 
alignment of the 
programme 
with the NPMP 
timeline.

Page 7 of 7Performance Report

16/07/20mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (44)....

Page 239



This page is intentionally left blank



 COMPLIMENTS LIST           Date:  14 July 2020 

NO DATE COMMENTS 
13 08/07/2020 Thanking Sarah Halladay for the prompt response on Listed Building Form  

12 08/07/2020 Member of the public thanking the Rights of Way for the improvement on Offas Dyke Path in Pandy and stating that 
Wardens were so pleasant and obliging during these testing times. 

11 07/07/2020 Member of the public thanking Dani French for the speed and quality of her response  

10 29/06/2020 Email thanking Lisa Williams and all the Planning department for the work and guidance that has gone into providing clear 
response to many questions.  

9 28/06/2020 Email received thanking Richard Ball and requesting his expertise in peat restoration in helping to delivering elements of 
National Action Programme and being the go-to person in Wales. 

8 17/06/2020 Feedback from the Black Mountain Area - A good few people spoke to Nicky Davies and Louise Moon and mentioned that they 
agreed with the way the NP had dealt with the situation and felt the step-by-step approach to restoring access was the right 
way forward. They also liked that staff were out supporting visitors as things reopened and monitoring the situation.  

7 09/06/2020 Email received thanking Alan Bowring  sent on behalf of the directors and membership of swoapg to thank him and tell him 
how much their all enjoyed Alan’s trial session and full presentation to the group, of the “eCribarth” webinar on the 22nd and 
28 th May. His illustrated talk made it all come alive for us. Thank you very much for an enlightening and stimulating 
presentation. We are fortunate to have you donate your time during this extra ordinary time of lock down.  
 
Going forward we think that presentations of this nature will be welcomed by swoapg after the lock down period.  
 

6 08/06/2020 Email received from Member of the public would like to thank Warden Sam Ridge for appreciation of his work  

5 03/06/2020 Email from School Support Youth Worker thanking Alan Bowring for his presentation  

4 28/05/2020 Email from Brecknock Scouts thanking Alan Bowring for presentation and talk done via Life-size on Cribarth  

3 26/05/2020 Email from member of public thanking Wardens for clearing the tree on the line between Penderyn and Hirwaun  

2 14/05/2020 Email from Cllr thanking Wardens for dealing with the issue so promptly and efficiently in relation to the Bridge  

1 08/04/2020 Email received from member of the public thanking Joshu Burrows for the support and speediness of his reply, especially 
during these extraordinary times  

 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments  

 

P
age 241

A
genda Item

 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LOG 

NO:
FOIA  DPA SAR EIR Information request Date Received

Date Resp        

(20 wd)
STATUS Ack in 5

Resp in 

20
Result?

1 X X Information on Former Mid Wales Hospital 08/04/2019 09/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

internal review requested 09/05/2019 07/06/2019 CLOSED n/a

2 X Seeking finforamtion on enforcement action taken 

by planning authority in rlation to properties 

offered for short-term lets via platforms such as 

Airbnb

25/04/2019 09/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

3 X Information request on amount spent and brief 

summary of project/purpose consultants the 

authority used between Jan 2016 to Jan 2019

03/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES n/a

4 X FOI information relating to Ecologist 06/05/2019 23/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

5 X X FOI infnformation regarding the Feasibility study for 

which the Black Mountains College was awarded 

£82,500 

26/06/2019 17/07/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

6 X X X Information and SAR relating to Enforcement case 

was received in planning on the 17th May, but was 

missed. It was sent to MZ on the 21st June and MZ 

contacted requester and apologised for the delay. 

17/05/2019 07/08/2019 CLOSED YES NO Provided 

information 

7 X X documentation on discussions taken place 

referringto Pontneathfechan Community Centre

29/07/2019 27/08/2019 CLOSED YES YES Provided 

information 

8 X X Information on enforcement case 

ENF/19/02023/MCUP3

06/08/2019 03/09/2019 CLOSED YES YES EXEMPT

9 X Request for information on emails exchanges 

between the Principal Planning Officer and Member 

during the period from when the Highway objection 

would have been received on the 2nd of April up 

until the application was determined on the 9th of 

April.

05/09/2019 01/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Provided 

information 

10 X request of information on 3 years tax years on 

running legal function/departement

20/09/2019 10/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

11 X request for information held by the authority on 

Trail Hunting

07/10/2019 29/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information not 

held

12 X Request information on IT Service Management 28/10/2019 30/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided 

P
age 243



13 X Request for Pre application information 01/11/2019 25/11/2019 CLOSED YES YES EXEMPT

14 x request for Freedom of information on Complaints

made by visitors to  the park

13/11/2019 10/12/2019 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided 

15 x x X Freedom of Information Act 2000 application for all 

notes, reports, emails and meeting minutes in 

electronic form relating to ENF/16/01668/LB and 

LBC application 19/17057/LBC. 

11/12/2019 10/01/2020 CLOSED YES YES EXEMPT

16 x x legal advice issued to local authorities by Natural 

England in regards to its position on nitrogen and 

phosphorous pollution in or near Natura 2000 sites 

in England.

24/12/2019 15/01/2020 CLOSED YES YES Information not 

held

17 x x Request for all correspondence between planning 

officers

09/03/2020 30/03/2020 CLOSED YES YES Partial 

internal review requested 13/04/2020 CLOSED YES YES

18 x information about the Brecon Beacons National 

Park Authority Backup Policy for the Brecon 

Beacons National Park Authority's Office 365 

deployment.

19/03/2020 20/03/2020 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

19 x x information requested on planning application 23/03/2020 07/04/2020 CLOSED YES YES Information 

Provided

P
age 244



LOG 

NO:
FOIA  DPA SAR EIR Date Received Information request

Date Ack         

(5 wd)

Date Resp         

(20 wd)
Ack in 5 Resp in 20 STATUS

1 x 02/04/2020 Information request on how many hectares of 

woodland created annually  for the past 5 years within 

the boundaries of the National Park on land owned by 

the National Park Authority?

08/04/2020 08/04/2020 YES YES CLOSED

2 x 22/04/2020 Information request on IT Software 22/04/2020 15/05/2020 YES YES CLOSED

3 x 27/04/2020 Information on Security 27/04/2020 04/05/2020 YES YES CLOSED

4 x 12/05/2020 Information relating to BBNPA funding budget 12/05/2020 15/05/2020 YES YES CLOSED

5 x 26/05/2020 Information request - Outcome of Atlantic Culturescape 

Website Tender

27/05/2020 YES OPEN

6 x 29/05/2020 Information request for amount of farmland the 

authority has under Stewardship Scheme

29/05/2020 03/06/2020 YES YES CLOSED

7 x x 10/06/2020 Information on complaints received relating to uncut 

verges 

16/06/2020 02/07/2020 YES YES CLOSED

8 x x 23/06/2020 Information request on planning applications received 

and have approved for intensive poultry units (chicken 

farms).

24/06/2020 YES OPEN

9 x 24/06/2020 a spreadsheet listing all public washrooms, including 

any accessibility features they may have, as well as 

other information, like type (e.g., pit toilet)

24/06/2020 YES OPEN

10
x

30/06/2020 Freedom of Information request: costs associated with 

littering and antisocial behaviour 

01/07/2020 YES OPEN

01/4/2020 - 14/07/2020

Audit & Scrutiny Committee
SUMMARY OF INFORMATION REQUESTS

P
age 245



P
age 246



Log 

No:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Complaint Summary Date Received

Date Resp 

(20 wd)
Status Ack in 5 Resp in 20 Upheld? Planning Delivery Corporate 

1 1 Mid Wales Hospital 11/04/2019 02/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

1 2 02/05/2019 07/06/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

2 1 National Park Failing - Planning Application 

18/16603/FUL

16/04/2019 17/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Partial X

3 1 Adoption of SPG  - Former Mid-Wales Hospital 02/05/2019 03/06/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

3 2 request a stage 2 04/06/2019 17/07/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

4 1 Planning Permission Failures - 18/16068/FUL2 03/05/2019 06/06/2019 CLOSED NO YES Not Upheld X

5 1 Complaint about an officer making 

unprofessional comments

14/05/2019 - CLOSED YES n/a withdrawn X

6 1 Complaint received in relation to Mountain 

Centre Caters renewal.

14/05/2019 31/05/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

7 1 Complaint in relation to publishing personal 

information on authorty's website

31/05/2019 07/06/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

8 1 Complaint received in relation to not responding 

to emails

10/06/2019 18/06/2019 CLOSED YES YES Upheld X

9 1 Complaint ref Former mid Wales Hospital 

adopted SPG

26/06/2019 15/08/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

10 1 Complaint on the way the SAR has been handled. 24/06/2019 19/07/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

11 1 Complaint in relation to Enforcement case 20/07/2019 15/08/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

12 1 Complaint received against Officer representing 

their powers in order to fulfil their own interest 

costing the complainant considerable amount of 

money. Changing the goalposts on several 

occasions 

22/07/2019 19/08/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

13 1 Complaint about a Member of staff’s attitude 

towards equality and diversity issues.

27/07/2019 29/07/2019 CLOSED YES YES Partial X

14 1 Complaint about the Mountain Centre address to 

a Member of the Authority 

08/08/2019 02/09/2019 CLOSED YES YES Upheld X

15 1 Complaint in relation to planning applcation - 

16/14319/FUL change of use.

19/08/2019 19/09/2019 CLOSED YES NO Not Upheld X

15 2 Stage II  investigation to be done by Monitoring 

Officer

18/10/2019 02/12/2019 CLOSED YES NO Not Upheld X

16 1 Complaint - disgusted with toilets provided at the 

Waterfall Car Park

30/08/2019 02/09/2019 CLOSED YES YES Upheld X

Audit & Scrutiny Committee

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS

1/04/2019 - 31/03/2020
Index Performance Department

P
age 247



17 1 Complaint received about a planning application 

that has been granted

22/09/2019 21/10/2019 CLOSED YES NO Not Upheld X

17 2 Request for Stage II review 12/01/2020 03/02/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld x

18 1 Complaint on filming on the Black Mountains 03/10/2019 25/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Partial X

19 1 Complaint about enforcement case 20/09/2019 25/10/2019 CLOSED YES YES Upheld X

20 1 Complaint relating to a planning decision 16/10/2019 13/11/2019 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld x

18/02/2020 27/04/2020 CLOSED YES NO Not Upheld

21 1 Complaint - Decision report on Planning 

application and Enforcement case

02/12/2019 07/01/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

21 2 STAGE  II investigation requested, as it does not 

take into consideration further listed points

07/01/2020 10/01/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

22 1 Complaint - failed to inform complainant on 

development taking place behind their property

09/12/2019 14/01/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

23 1 Complaint about officers behaviour being 

unprofessional and totally unacceptable.

20/01/2020 17/02/2020 CLOSED YES YES Partial X

24 1 Complaint in relation to how the planning 

department dealt with their application

25/02/2020 03/04/2020 CLOSED YES NO Not Upheld X

25 Complaint against a planning officer behaiour 09/03/2020 06/04/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld X

P
age 248



LOG 

NO:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Date Received Complaint Summary

Date Ack (5 

wd)

Date Resp (20 

wd)
STATUS Ack in 5 Resp in 20 Upheld? Planning Delivery Corporate 

1 Stage 1 27/04/2020 complaint how an 

enforcement/planning application 

was handled

27/04/2020 22/05/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

2 Stage 1 15/04/2020 Compalint - enforcement 

case/planning case 

29/04/2020 18/05/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

3 Stage 1 30/04/2020 Complaint about concerns about 

how a planning application is being 

handled 

01/05/2020 28/05/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

4 Stage 1 11/05/2020 Facebook post being taken down 14/05/2020 14/05/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

5 Stage 1 12/05/2020 Complaint in relation to a planning 

application 

12/05/2020 16/06/2020 CLOSED YES NO Not upheld x

Stage II 19/06/2020 requested an internal review 19/06/2020 02/07/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

6 Stage 1 14/05/2020 Complaint in relation to Access 

closures 

29/05/2020 29/05/2020 CLOSED YES Not upheld x

7 Stage 1 29/05/2020 Complaint about Central Beacons 

areas remaining closed

01/06/2020 04/06/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

8 Stage 1 02/06/2020 Complaint about open access land 02/06/2020 04/06/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

9 Stage 1 08/10/2020 Complaint about closures of paths 08/10/2020 05/07/2020 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld x

10 Stage 1 05/07/2020 Complaint in relation to 

Enforcement case 

ENF/20/02114/BCP2

05/07/2020 OPEN YES x

Audit & Scrutiny Committee

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS

1/04/2020 - 14/07/2020

P
age 249



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 COMPLIMENTS LIST           Date:  31st March 2020 

NO DATE COMMENTS 
50 08/04/2020 Email from member of the public thanking Joshua Burrows and Colleagues for their support and speediness, for keeping 

planning going in these extraordinary times. 

49 10/03/2020 Email received thanking Ffion Bevan and Alice Thorne for hosting a really helpful and useful meeting  

48 08/03/2020 Email from member of the public thanking Clive Williams and the team for the fabulous job that has been done in clearing a 
well-used path at Millbrook Bridge Green Lane  

47 04/03/2020 Cllr John Morris would like to acknowledge the support and wanted to thank all BBNPA wardens for the help in the 
community during the recent floods 

46 03/03/2020 Email thanking Bradley Welch for great day in the  Black Mountains Land Use Partnership discussion with Defra and Welsh 
Government  

45 27/02/2020 Thanking Sam Ridge and Judith Harvey, and our Wednesday volunteer group who spent the day helping with flood recovery 
work at several properties in and around Crickhowell  

44 26/02/2020 Email from Planning Agent thanking Planning Admin for a fantastic service  

43 12/02/2020 Email from Cllr Kevin Madge congratulating to Julia Gruffydd and Staff in receiving the Advanced Charter for Member 
Support and Development  

42 05/02/2020 Various compliments to Information Team at Mountain Centre for the information provided to members of the public  

41 04/02/2020` Member of the public thanking BBNPA staff who was involved with the incident of injured pony at Cwm Cadlan  

40 08/01/2020 Thank you email for Daisy Hughes Dc Admin for all her help into an old planning application  

39 20/12/2019 Email thanking Alan Bowring for great presentation that he gave LOR branch meeting 

38 27/11/2019 Thank you email from Community leader thanking Eleanor Flaherty and the Wardens who supported their walk this year. 
The way you they worked and adapted to our needs and abilities was great and made the trips really easy. 

37 14/11/2019 Thank you email to planning for their help. 

36 13/11/2019 Thank you email to Planning for their kind and very swift reply  

35 07/11/2019 Thank you email to Davina Powell and the Planning Team for responding to their planning application so efficiently  

34 07/11/2019 Thank you email for all the help Kate Edwards and National Park Ecologist for all they help with their planning application   

33 05/11/2019 Thank you email to Jane Pashley for all the pertinent information that was provided to them. 

32 03/10/2019 CEO at Honourable Artillery Company emailed Paul Sinnadurai stating that he walked the ridge south west of Talybont 
Reservoir from Pant Y Criegau to Tor y Foel and north east of the estate from Aber up Twyn Du and over to Fan Y Big. He 
noticed the great work that BBNPA are doing on the path at Twyn Du and the new (cattle?) fences on the path at Torpantau.  

31 23/10/2019 Phd Student emailed thanking Paul Sinnadurai for giving a really interesting and informative talk. His talk gave me the 
chance to appreciate and reflect upon all the different challenges he and his team face on a daily basis to manage the Brecon 

P
age 251



Beacons park. He admired his passion and commitment, which made me realize how important it is for us to protect our 
landscape the local community.  Thanks again for your time. 

30 18/10/2019 Willowtown Primary School, thanking the Education Team.  The children had a lovely time with all the planned activities 
which fitted well with the seasonal topic the children were doing  

29 25/09/2019 Email from South Wales University of South Wales, thanking Hayley Sharp and Geraint Roberts & Education Team for a 
fantastic day.  The comments and feedback from the students and the teaching staff were all positive and reflected by a high 
standard of presentations the students done. 

28 16/09/2019 Email to DC Helpdesk for providing them with invaluable assistance 

27 11/09/2019 Email thanking Jane Pashley for helping to provide information on Tree Preservation Order so promptly 

26 11/09/2019 Thank you email for Sheila O’Brien for being proactive and pragmatic way in dealing with the enforcement case  

25 03/09/2019 Email from a Member of the public  thanking Jane Pashley for the impressive service, speed in dealing with their query  

24 02/09/2019 Email thanking Jane Pashley for the swiftness of her response. 

23 26/08/2019 Email from member of a ground force engineering company would like to thank Jon Pimm for the way he handled a high rate 
resident who was cursing at him. 

22 21/08/2019 Email received thanking Jane Pashley for the her assistance and the comprehensive answer provided  

21 20/08/2019 Thank you email for Clare Brooks and enforcement team for handling the case with professionalism  

20 20/08/2019 Thank you email from Brecon Town Council to Chris O Brien and Helen Lucocq for attending meeting, it was very useful. 

19 08/08/2019 Thanking you email from Filming company  for the professionalism and guidance from Jon Pimm, Bronwyn Lally and Wyn 
Morgan  

18 05/08/2019 Thank you email to Kittie Powell for the prompt response in relation to urgent tree-cutting  

17 30/07/2019 Email from member of the public who was attendee at a meeting in relation to LDP Consultation , and would like to thank  
BBNPA Planners for addressing potential queries from the publics in relation to LDP Consultation  

16 25/07/2019 Thank you note from one of the Prince Trust thanking the authority for the opportunity to work and learn and for the 
experience which has given them confidence. 

15 18/07/2019 Email from member of the Public thanking the Prince’s Trust for doing a first class job on the Rights of Way at Old Rectory 
Close 

14 17/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Development Control admin team member Alex Ham for providing a brilliant hatched plan 
and for all her help. 

13 16/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Development Control admin team member Sarah Halliday for very speedy and helpful 
response 

12 02/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Clare Brooks for carrying out brief check of the authority’s records in relation to building in 
question 

11 07/06/2019 Thank you email sent to Donna Bowhay and Kate Edwards for the speedy attention to their query  

10 28/06/2019 Member of the public thanking mountain centre staff Gaynor for her time and effort spent in replying to them  

P
age 252



9 12/06/2019 Member of the public from Cardiff Ramblers thanking Lisa Lloyd, Clive Williams, the Wardens, and volunteers for creating 
the paths behind the trees as discussed.  

8 03/06/2019 Various thank you emails to Sunita Welch, Suzanna Jones, Alan Bowring, Wayne Evans, Peter Bradley, Geraint Roberts, 
Toby Small for doing a tremendous job in Hay Festival Walk. 

7 03/06/2019 Thank you to Richard Farquhar and Rhys Powell for their assistance in taking part with the repairing the PYO Letterbox Aven 
at Porth yr Ogof Cave entrance to stabilize the platform, from Caving advisor to BBNPA  

6 29/05/2019 Thank you email to Hayley Sharp, Geraint Roberts and Anna Edwards from Chew Magna visit for the wonderful time the children 
had. The children gained so much from both the great range of activities that you provided but also by your warm, professional 
approach which made the children feel very comfortable and helped increased their confidence levels. 

5 21/05/2019 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water thanking Jon Pimm for his assistance at Llyn y fan Fawr.  He was very supportive and knowledgeable 
which made their task easier. 

4 30/04/2019 Thank you email to Donna Bowhay for the help and input  

3 30/04/2019 Received various compliments for the information staff at the NPVC for they help and guidance 

2 22/04/2019 Compliment form sent into the authority stating “My family and I recently walked the path from Pandy to Hay Bluff. The amount 
of work done on the path is massive. The area is superb and the path made it relatively easy going. Thanks so much for all the 
work to enable easy access and protect the scenery. It was good to see the paragliders flying the area as well. They all 
seemed very friendly and polite. 
Thanks so much” 

1 02/04/2019 Thank you email to Sam Ridge for the help provided to filming company, stating he was amazing  

 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments since last Audit & Scrutiny Committee Meeting  

 

P
age 253



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee Date Minute No Agenda item title Decision text Action Deadline Date Owner Comments Status

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 11 Affordable Housing Working Group 

Recommendation - Award of 

Commuted Sums

Arrange legal agreement with Melin Homes 

and transfer of money / Advise PCC of NPA 

decision

31/03/18 00:00 Mrs Helen 

Lucoq

16/04/2018:  - Further information has been 

requested from Melin Homes in terms of 

timeframes relating to purchase of land, 

submission of planning application etc.

10/01/2020: Status changed from Delayed to 

In progress - Conversation with Melin 

Homes, it is understood that the application 

will be with us in February 2020.  We have 

agreed payment to be triggered at the point 

all pre-commencement conditions have 

been satisfied (anticipated June 2020).  I 

have sent an instruction to Geldards to 

review terms of grant award.

In progress

National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 16 Planning Annual Performance Report Ensure alignment between Welsh Govt KPIs 

and those reported to PAROW -ref James 

Marsden's comments

30/11/18 00:00 Ms Tracy 

Nettleton

15/02/2019: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - First draft of revised PAROW 

report circulated internally and the Chair and 

Deputy. 

Work beginning on coding for UNiform and 

Modern.gov 

Daily email reminders turned off.

In progress

National Park Authority 28/06/2019 10:00 7 Meithrin Mynydd Terms of Reference Consult graziers on Meithrin Mynydd ToR and 

bring back to NPA for approval

31/07/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

Angharad 

Hawkes

24/07/2019:  - This is for Members to lead 

on, the ToR having been revised by 

Members rather than officers.

delayed

National Park Authority 30/07/2019 12:00 8 Contract at Plas y Ffynnon Full options appraisal for HQ future 

accommodation and bring back to NPA

30/09/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 10/01/2020: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - Cooke & Arkwright tasked with 

scoping an Options Appraisal for future HQ 

needs. 

09/07/2020:  - Accommodation Working 

Group reconvened in light of 

communications from Dyfed Powys Police. 

Scoping document for Accommodation 

requirements in preparation

In progress

National Park Authority 03/09/2019 12:30 14 Govilon Line Negotiate sale of freehold land in line with 

report to NPA

31/10/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 10/01/2020: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - C&A have written to the parties 

concerned outlining terms 

Daily email reminders turned off.

16/07/2020:  - Cooke & Arkwright handling 

negotiations with adjoining property owners

In progress

NPA

P
age 255

A
genda Item

 14

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6559#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6559#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52570
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52570
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7726#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7726#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52941#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52941#


National Park Authority 29/10/2019 11:30 16 Consultation Draft Llangattock 

Conservation Area Review

Publish Llangattock Conservation Area 

Appraisal for consultation

08/11/19 00:00 Mrs Janet 

Poole

To do

Schedule final decision at NPA on Modgov for 

Llangattock Conservation Area Appraisal

08/11/19 00:00 Mrs Janet 

Poole

To do

Consider adding to Scheme of Delegation 

review, officers and Chair of NPA to sign off 

consultation drafts in future (talk to Tracy 

first!)

31/03/20 00:00 Sean O'Connor

To do

National Park Authority 29/10/2019 11:30 8 Future Priorities & Structure Proposals Implement reporting and restructuring 

decisions made by NPA and make progress 

report to NPA in Feb 2020

31/03/20 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 17/01/2020: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - Report prepared for Members' 

consideration at EGM on January 24th, 

2020 

In progress

National Park Authority 10/12/2019 12:30 13 Biodiversity & resilence of ecosystems 

duty report

Finalise response (check webcast and do a 

covering letter as JA suggested) on 

Environment Act and submit to Welsh 

Government

24/12/19 00:00 Rebecca Price To do

National Park Authority 11/02/2020 11:00 6 Chief Executive's Announcements Circulate key learning points from Academi 

Wales course to all members

21/02/20 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

National Park Authority 26/05/2020 10:00 10 Annual Governance Statement 2019-

20

Submit NPA item for 26 June - Corporate Plan 05/06/20 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell To do

P
age 256

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54176
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54176
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54177
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54177
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7734#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7734#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=56409#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=56409#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7814#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7814
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7814
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57146


Get AGS translated and send to Elaine to 

submit with Accounts

26/06/20 00:00 Angharad 

Hawkes

Julia Gruffydd

To do

National Park Authority 26/05/2020 10:00 3 Minutes Give feedback to members on the learning 

points from Winter School

26/06/20 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

National Park Authority 26/06/2020 10:00 10 Establishment of an Accommodation 

Working Group

Amend and translate ToR for Accommodation 

WG and publish in Scheme of Delegation

03/07/20 00:00 Mrs Julia 

Gruffydd

To do

National Park Authority 26/06/2020 10:00 11 Welsh Language Standards 

Compliance Report

Submit/publish the Welsh Language 

Compliance Report

10/07/20 00:00 Sian 

Shakespear

To do

Raise translation in meetings at next Welsh 

Language Working Group (discuss with Julia)

31/07/20 00:00 Sian 

Shakespear

To do

National Park Authority 26/06/2020 10:00 6 Chief Executive's Announcements Widen remit for meeting with NRW to include 

pollution of SACs

30/06/20 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

National Park Authority 26/06/2020 10:00 7 Corporate Plan 2020/21 Finalise, translate and public Corporate Plan 

2020-21

03/07/20 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell To do

P
age 257

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57147
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57147
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7814#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7814#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57141#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57141#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57623#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57623#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57625#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57625#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57626
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57626
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57619#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57619#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57620#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57620#


National Park Authority 26/06/2020 10:00 9 Amendments to Appointments 

Committee

Translate amended terms of reference for 

Appointments Committee and add to Scheme 

of Delegation

03/07/20 00:00 Mrs Julia 

Gruffydd

To do

P
age 258

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7768
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57622
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57622
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=57622


ASC

PAROW

No Actions

P
age 259



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Correspondence
	So, what’s different? 
	Contents
	Auditor General’s Foreword 
	What you’ll find in this report
	What we’ve done and why
	Our focus for the first reporting period, 2015-2020 
	Working with the Future Generations Commissioner 

	The implementation challenge:  Is it getting easier?
	What we found 
	Setting the first well-being objectives: Findings from our 2018 report  
	Challenges
	Applying the five ways of working 

	Taking steps to meet well-being objectives 
	Long-term
	Prevention
	Integration
	Collaboration
	Involvement


	So, what’s next?
	What’s next for public bodies? 
	The challenges ahead 

	What’s next for the Well-being of Future Generations Act? 
	What’s next for our audit approach? 

	Appendices
	1 Examination methodology
	Our examinations of the 44 public bodies 
	Method
	Main examination questions 
	Reporting on the examinations 



	3 Minutes
	5 Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20
	Draft (unaudited Statement of Accounts 2019-20)

	6 2019/20 Outturn, Reserves and Project Finances
	Enc. 1 Outturn report
	Enc. 2 Reserves report
	Enc. 3 Project finances

	7 Budget Monitoring Summary and Projects Financial Scorecard Q1 2020/21
	Enc. 1 for Budget Monitoring Summary  Q1 2020/21
	Enc. 2 for Budget Monitoring  Projects  Q1 2020/21
	Enc. 3 Affordable Housing Q1 2020/21
	Enc. 4 for Budget Monitoring Projects Q1 2020/21

	8 Internal Audit Update Q1 2020/21
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Update Q1 2020/21

	9 Wales Audit Plan 2020
	Wales Audit  2020 Audit Plan - including impact of COVID19

	10 Audit Wales Resilience Audit 2020
	11 Integrated assurance framework Q4 2019/20
	IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20Q4
	Detailed performance report - Q4 2019-20

	12 Risk Register
	Enc. 1 for Risk Register

	13 Freedom of Information/Complaints/Compliments
	for Freedom of Information- End of year 2019 2020
	Freedom of Information - 14 July 2020
	Complaints end of Year  2019 -2020
	Complaints - 14th July 2020
	Compliments - end of Year 2019 -2020

	14 Action Tracking

